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PREFACE

The purpose in preparing this thesis has been to
collect and preserve in permunent form authentlic data
concerning the historicel, economic, and social develop-
ment of Fort Bend County, one of the oldest counties of
our 3tate. It has been interesting to investigute the
development the county has achlieved and the relation of
its pioneers,--many of whose descendants still live on
original land grants,--to that progress.

The sources from which the material for this thesis
has been obtained are many and varied. MXuch of the data
has been szcured from early histories of the State, Gam=-

mel's Laws of Texas, the United States Census Reports,

county and state newspapers, county records, records in
the Texes Archives of the State, and correspondence and
interviews with professional and business men and other
citizens of the county.

It is the hope that this study will assist in cresat-
ing a keener interest in the writing of locel history, and
that others may undertake a similar task in recording the

story of the progress of their counties.
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CHAPTIR I
GEOGRAPEIC FACTORS OF FORT BEND COUNTY

Fort Bend County was named for an old fort built by a
group of Austin's colonists in 1821 in the bend of the Bra-
zos River at the present site of Richmond, the county seat.
This "fort" and the circumstance of its location were the
origin of the name Fort Bend Settlement, by which the lo-

cality was known up to the time of the Texas Revolut.ion.1

Location. Fort Bend County is located in the coastal prairie
of Southeast Texas. It lies on both sides of the Brazos
River, only one county removed from the Gulf of Mexico. It

is more exactly located as lying between pasrallels twenty-
nine and thirty degrees, and longitude ninety-five and ninety-

six degrees.2

Climate. The climate is very suitable to various industries
and 1s pleasant to live in. The temperature seldom rises
above 100 degrees or falls below thirty degrees Fahrenheit.
There is usually a cooling breeze from the Gulf in sucmer,

and in winter extreme cold is unknown, except for an occa-

1 Frances 'hite Johnson, A History of Texas and Texeans,
(ed) Eugene C. Barker and Lrnest .illiam .inkler,
vol, II, pp. 650-651.

2 The Texas Almanac and State Industrial Guide, "Counties
and Cities of Texas", 1936, p. 408.




sional blsst of short durstion from the north. The rain-
fall of the county averages forty-one ilnches per year. It
is well distributed throughout the year, but 1s heaviest
in the winter end spring. Croughts of short periods occur
in the summer und fall. Leevy dews added to the rainfall
provide sufficient wmoisture for abundant plant life. The
extra water supply needed for irrigating rice is provided

by the deep wells in the count.y.3

Drainace; The general slope of the land is in a southeast-
erly direction. The Brazos River and its tributaries afford
the prinecipal drsinage. The San Bern:rd River is the west-
ern boundary of the county--a small stream until it reaches
Srazoria County to the JSouth. Blg Creek, & tributary to the
Brazos, flows throuch the county between the Brazos und the
3an Bernszrd. COn the east side Jones Creck empties into the
Brazos one mile =zbove Richmond, the county seat. Cyster

Creek rises in the northeastern part of the county, and pur-
suinz a course psrullel with the Srazcs, emptlies into the

bay west of Galveston. Clear Creek, Cedar Creek, Snzke Creek,
sebring Creek, Mounc Creek, Cow Creek, Bee Creek, and Robb
Bayou zre well distributed throughout the county and supply

excellent drainage f&acilit.’u:s.‘i

3 aAlex Deussen, Geology and Underfround Waters of Jouthwest-
ern Tart of the Texas Coastal DPlain, p. 149

4 Valuadble ussistznce in this phase of the study was obtained
from Davis Crow, un experienced surveyor of Fort Bend
County.
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Physiography. Fort Bend County, with an area of 792 sguare

miles, has a large varlety of soil, much of which compares
favorably with the richest in the'world. There are fields
along the Brazos that have been in use for more than a cen-
tury, yet they continue to produce profitable c¢rops as 1if
their fertility were inexhaustible. Therefore fertilizers
are not yet needed for general crops on the red lands alcong
the Brazos. More than ninety per cent of the county areu
is covered by soils belonging to the following groups: red
botton l:ends, black sticky clay, 1light sandy loams, and clay
loams.5 In areas appropriate to their growth, the soill pro-
duces ash, elm, hackberry, cottonwood, mesquite, pecan and
both live oak and post oak. The mineral resources consist
of oil, gas, sulphur, szlt snd asphalt. ©
As a part of a state which produces o0il in s favorable
proportion to its immense size, Fort Bend County ranks twen-
ty-fourth with the other 253 counties. Her six millicn Dbar-
rels answer for one-fourth per cent of the totsl flow of

470,000,000 barrels which Texas wes able to market in 1933.7

5 5. A, McMillen, The Book of Fort Bend County, Texus,
pp. 25-29.

6 The Texas Almenac and State Industrial Guide, "Counties
and cities of Texas™, p. 413.

7?7 Ivid., pp. 218-219.



Natural gas, which has a lurge percentuge cf waste due
to poison and lack of market, is found in large and highly
concentruted quantities. This gives ua source of energy
which may in the necr future prove itself a means of support
for this area,

The sulphur industry has favored the county by placing
& field at Orchard. It is at present young in the point of
development, but is destined to become & prominent factor
in the financial advencement of the county.

3alt devosits are also found in severcl locations in
thlis erea, and one, about ten miles north has been opera-
ting as & paying enteronrise.

The Tcxas Coaster, COctober 22, 1922, gives the follow-

ing account of the discovery of zsphalt in Fort Bend County:

A discovery was acecidently mede a few days ago

on Oswald Volka's place about one mile west of
Needville. Volka's children were burning weeds
when they found a large crevice. Upon investi-
gating it, it was seen that some combustible sub-
stance in the ¢irth was burning. It was extin-
guished znd Volkae bored down a few feet into the
earth and found & ten foot strata of oure asphalt.
He bored into a number of places and the sub-
stance was found in every hole.>

Character of the Population. During the ccloniel period

when people in the 0ld sta:tes were seeking new lands of op-
portunity, the first settlers of Fort Bend County were the
anglo-americans who cume from the region across the Missis-

sinpi River. Behind them were the traditions or # proud and

8 News item, "Asphult Deposit Found", The Texas Couster,
vol. XIX, (6ctober 22, 1922), p. l.



dominating race, to whom constitutional government was an
inherited right. 3Bearing this fact in mind it is easy to
understend and to appreciate that it was their intense
patriotism that caused them to participate in throwing off
the Mexican rule,

When the State was & Republic snd its doors were still
open, some Germsn faullies ceme to I'ort EBend County and
helped bear the hrurdships of thuat time. They were a humble
peorle of somevhat heterogenous description, a great part
¢f whom were farmers and mechsnics who had a desire for im-
proving their condition.®

A8 time passed, many German families and others from
the 3tates Jjoined the early setilers in the development of
the fertile soil of the county and in the establishment
of its institutions. Today the descendants of these pioncer
German families are among the county's leading and most sub-
stantial citizems.

Following the Germans came the Bohemian people from
wustria. These two elements early ldentirfied themselves
with the welfare of the county, taking part in all publiec
affairs.l” After 1890 many Czechs begen to come to the
prairies of Fort Bend County from the prairie regions of the

Middle ‘Western States. ELach year firiends and relatives

9 Trederick lLaw (Qmistead, A Journey Through Texas, p. 4&£8.

10 Francis vwhite Johnson, op. cit., pp. 659-660.



increased the number of these two groups. At the same time

many Bohemian settlers came from Fayette, Washington, and
#illiamson Counties, Texas, The Bohemieans, like the Ger-
mans, have contributed much to the economic wealth of the
county. Laboring at first as wage earners, many of them

rapidly acquired their own farms and soon became prosperous.ll

In 1930 there were 5,231 Mexicans in Fort Bend County.lz
They first ceme to the county in appreciable numbers about
1905, After the Mexican Revolution of 1910, they came in
greater numbers. Their purpose was to secure work teumporarily,
and to return to their native lund et a future date. Because
of their strongly marked racial characteristics, the Mexicens
are easily noticed, and they continue a separate class in
the population.

Polish settlers located in the southeastern purt of the
agricultural districts of Fort Bend County about 1910. They
are only an extension of the thickly settled territory of
Chapel Eill, Weshington County, Texzs, and now nuuber about
two hundred and fifty families.l3

The Negro population deates back to the time of the early

settlers for meny Negroes were brought to the county as slaves

by their owners. Randall Jones, one of the first settlers,

11 Interview, F., A. Schawe, Realtor of Rosenberg, Texas,
July 20, 1941.

12 TFifteenth Census of the United States, vol. III, (1930),
p. 1,014.

13 F. A. Schawe, op. cit.



"returned to louisiana in 1872 and traded Negroes for sixty

head of cattle."14 Because of early and frequent marriages

and large families, the Negro populztion outnumbered the

vhites until 1920. There zre now 9,110 Negroes in the County.15
The 3ixteenth Census of the United 3tates gave Fort Bend County

a population of 32,963 people. They viere listed thus:

Native white 18,759
Foreign born white 2,314
Negroes 8,425
Cther groups 3,46516

There ure over twelve hundred other vneople living in
Fort Bend County, who 2re ot enumersted on the census for
the county. These =re the convicts living on the 3tate Pensal
farms., '/ith the vast area of the State from which to choose
locations for the prison faraus, it is complimentary to the
soil and climate of this section that eighty per cent of the
State's farming ventures are locuted in Fort Eend County.

Date on these farms sre as follows.

Name Year Purchused Acreage Cultivated Uncultivated
Harlem Farm 1885 5,600 5,005 595
Central Farm 1908 5,827 4,500 72717
Blue Ridge Farm 1916 4,416 3,954 462

14 A, J. Sovell, A History of Fort Bend County, p. 65.

15 Sixteenth Census of the United States, vol. II, (1940),
P. 194,

16 Sixteenth Census of the United 3tates, Tables 26-27,
po. 157; 173.

17 Interview, R. J. Flanagan, Menaser of the Central and
Harlem Stste Penal Ferms, Sugar Land, Texus, llarch 3,
1942,



Since the populstion of the county is chiefly rural,
towns such &s Eeasley, Tulshear, ¥endleton, Needville, Or-
ch.rd, Liclmond, Roscrberg, Stafford and Jugar land act us
commerci=zl and trading centers. As a matter of fact, there
were no permanently located tovns in Fort Bend County beside
Richmond, the county sert, whieh was estsatlished in 1837,
urtil weny yeurs later, 11 other places were only krown
18 neighocrhoca centers. Today Fort Bend County hes towns,
viilages and communities., For convenience, the trading cen-
ters ure dphabeticelly srrznged ond described on the pages

which follow.

HBeasley. The town of Deasley was numed for Cecil A, Beusley,
who camne to Richmond to live as Janta Fe Rallway agent, and
who in 1389 was the local banker z2nd un cutstending citizen.
Ee owned a trzct of land on the lower line of the Southern
Pacific helf way between Rosenberg znd the Bernard River and
conceived an idee of locating a villege and prccuring for it
railway facllities. The town was promoted emnd was to be
named for 1iiss Isabel Dyer of Richmond whom Beasley after-
wards married. The name Dyer had been given to another vil-
lage in the county so the new town was called Beasley.

Twelve years later Stern and Stern lLand Company of Kan-
3nss City held ~ great auction sale of lots. Beasley then be-
came a cm town., It was the nezrest railroad trading point
of that time for the Needville territory and its voluue of
busines:z during the period the prairie wus settled was enor-

mous. The farwing section surrounding the town is highly
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developed and prosnerous. It is but fair to the furmers
of the community to suy that they have developed faster than
the town. Consequently much of the Beasley trade goes else-
where and the town has developed but little since the exten-
sion of the railroad to Needville,

The first man to live in Beasley, Charlie Harmon, oved
there in 1699. EHe still lives near his original farm. The
first Negro to live in the town was Bush leigh, who now lives
in Richmond.

Bealey hcs excelleht schocl snd school buildings. Buses
bring pupils from Cottonwood, !‘odena, and Tavener. The school
Joined five others in 1938 to form the first six-man football
district in Texas.

In February, 1938, Beasley received much attention in
the magazine, Houston, beceuse of the fact thuat the six
churches there are supnorted by over 600 members, while the
population of the town in 360. The churches are Lutheran,
Evengelical Reformed Church, Baptist, Church of Christ,
Catholiec, =nd Christian Seientist,18

Tulshear. This homey place 1s locsted on the land granted
by the lMexican Government in 1824 to Churchill Fulshezr, 3en-
lor, one of .ustin's 300. In 1880 he gave a right of way
across his lands to the 3en sntonio znd .runses Fass Rail-

way. Surveyors rattled chains and set posts--the town of

18 letter, James L. Boone, 3Superintendent of Schools, Beas=-
ley, Texas, June 27, 1942,
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Fulshe.r was laid out.

Fulshear was a rich man and his hobby was horse rac-
inz. He bought 2nd raised thoroughbreds and for years main-
tained u race course, Churchill Down3, where races, famous
in their day, 1850-1370, were run ana racing nistory was made.

The location of the town fits it adwmirably for stock
raising and plantation farming. Recently tlis couwunity has
mude some progress in the developument of iwproved pecan or-
chards.

There are five stores, a cotton gin, a garage, a black-
smith shop and a drug store. The Fulshear school district
shows an enrolliment of white, Mexicun and Negro chilaren and
separ=zte schools are provideda for each group.

Fulshear was the home of John Huggins, the world's great-
est trainer of race horses. after training for Plerre Loril-
lord he returned to the Unitea Stutes snd eurly in the cen-
tury he retired and came home to Fulshear where he died in

1914.%°

¥endleton. This stop station and post office is on the Viec-
toria division of the Southern Pacific Railroad. The town
derived its name from /. E. Kendle, who subdivided the Mc-
Cormick league and sold it to the ex-slaves from Colorado

and W2shington counties about 1370. This explains why Kendle-

ton is largely o Negro community.

19 Kelly Elisha Warfield, "Our Horses and Jockeys «broad",
Yunsey's Magazine, vol. XIV, (Marech, 1901), p. 361.
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Lbout two wmlles from town 1s the Elizabeth Povell home-
site where Elizasbeth Powell conducted s tevern for travelers
between the lower :ustin Colony and the upper colony around

San Felipe. This site is indicated by a Centennial marker ., =0

Needville., This town is a fine example of & rural conuunity
that hes faith in itself, The only thing wrong with the pleace
is its name. In 1887 the State of Texas offered to sell twen-
ty sections of school 1land in Fort Bend Cuunty. Poor people
from different parts of the country rushed in.

In 1895 August Schendel built his residence and =@ small
store on the hizh nreirie at a plece which was for a time
called 3chendelville. Because the people were poor and al-
ways in need of something, 3chendel changed the name to Neced=-
more. ''hen he petitioned for a post office the names Need-
ville and Neediore were suz:estcd., Postsl authorities ac-
cepted Needville, It was not until 1917 that the rsilread
came through the place,

Needville has a good s3chool, four churches, a bunk, a
drug store, twelve gcneral stores, fcur garages, znd six
filling st=tions. There sre four gins asnd an electric 1ight
plant.

For a place its size, Needville has exceptional cow..un-

ity spirit. There is =2n uctive Parent-Teachers Association

20 Interview, C. M. Howard, Kendleton, Texas, uarca 7,
1941.
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and a loczl orrcanizstion of the Farm Fureau Associ&tion.ZI

Orchard. Forth of Rosenberg, the little coumunity of Crchard,
first culled Fruitlund, was built on luncds owned by 3. K., Cross
of Galvestcn who hsd a raunch cevering = larse portion of the
Gail Borden and Sarah Kennedy leoigucs. Le sold trects . for
settlement in the lute 1330's to wen from lissouri,

The 3anta Fe Rallroad hud becn built sometine before and
the townsite 1aid cut. 3Sowme of the eurly settlers vere Dr.

Ed Cheneweth, Frank Cheneweth, H. H. aylor, krs, ¥alinds .ylor,
Mr. end ¥rs., J. L. Well, T. #. Oyler, L. J. ialger, 2 ¥r., dogg,
end a ¥re, Young, 2nd & Gecoash family.

In 1894, a group of twenty-seven emigrants cume from Chio
to Orchard. -wong them vere J, H. Greenwales, Peter Hetzel,
¥r, end Mrs, welters snd family, Xr. snd dre. Zlume and femi-
ly, Mr. and Mre. Valentine and beby.

About 104 Czech =nd Folish imnmigrents settled on farms
anc¢ ralsed cottun, corn, hay, und poultry.

The first nostmauster was Loctor td. Cheneweth, =nd the
office was loceted irn his residence, which 1s stiil standing.
The trzxins did not stop unless they were rlagged or had a
passeager for Orchiard, and there wog no w=:il crane, DJr, Chene-
weth just rolied the mall pcuch tightly und tossed it into

the copen door of the muil coaek =8 the train passed the station.

21 lstter, chos. T. 2ieh, Jume 20, 1941.
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The first school building was erected in 1894 where
the present hundred thousund dollzr building staunds. Lir.
Aylor furnished the matericls and it wus erected with the
help of volunteer workers. This building was used until
1911, when 1t was replaced by a two-room building which
was replaced by a larger building in 1924, In 1940 the
present building was completed. It is conceded to be the
most modern und best equipped school in the county.

The first teacher weas liiss Josie Gooch, whose fumily
waes uamong the early settlers. 3he moved to East Bernard und
Miss Bessie Hehn from Alvin took her place. /11l Gray who
now lives in Houston was the third teacher in the comuunity.

The schoolhouse wus used a3 a place of worship until
1935 when & Baptist Church was erected. DBefore the erect-
tion of the church, there were a number of weddings us well
es funersls held in the schoolhouse,

The first cotton gin weas built by iylor and Oyler ubout
1865. The present gin is locuted on the ssme spot und is
operated as & Cooperative Gin,

In 1926 the Gulf 0il Cowpany drilled and discovered oil
on the John i, *foore ranch just east of Orchard, C. 4. Can-
field was the field forewmsn snd driller in charge. In 1938
sulphur production wss begun by the Duval Texas Sulphur Com=-

puny on the sanme ranch.az

22 Interview, lrs. llary Sager, September 13, 1938, and 3am
aylor, Orchard, Texus, June 6, 1941,
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Stafford., This community, first known as 3tafford Point,
weas nemed for william M, Stafford, 2 large land ovmer., It
was one of the county's first settlements. Indians came
there to sell buffezlo, bear and deer skins, blankets, and
bead work. It was there,too, thut people came from all
around to celebrate holideys. July fourth meant to the peo-
ple of Stafford a big burbecue and a ball at night.

In 1358, the settlewent was the terninus for the Buffalo,
Brazos, znd Colorado Rallroad asnd a post office was established
in 1860.23
Richmond. This town was established by the firn Handy and
Lusk on the land granted to Mrs. June Long and becume the
county seat of Fort Bend County. It is located on the west
bank of the Brazos River, thirty miles frowm Houston.

The first enterprise was a general store owned by llandy
end Lusk., Clement C., Dyer was licensed to keep a public inn
ané retail wincs and liquors for one year from July 22, 1839.
This was probably Richmond's first hotel.24
In 1840 Richmond was described by Edward Stiff in The

Texes rmigrant. EHe wrote:

e o« « The site is handsome but the traffic is incon-
siderable. There is, however, a prospcct of im-
provement, and the inhubitants merit success;

23 News item, "Stafford", The Louston Press, vol. XXII,
(April 21, 1938), p. B.

24 Llicense Record, Book A, p. 1, Fort Bend County.
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some Tew c¢f whom have alreundy been renarkably
Tortunate in matrimoniel engagements so Tar as
wealth ie good¢ fortune. . . .25

Teday Richmond has a population of 1500 people. It 1is
served by the Southern Pacific and Santa Fe Rallroads and
the Greyhound Bus line. There are two banks, = weekly news-
paper, two hotels, two ¢ins, ar 0il =11l and a bottling works,
besides fifty other business enterprises.

The town supports & Methodist, & Baptist, an Episcopal,
end a Catholic Churech.

Until recently, the chief interests of the town have
centered ebout renching and plantetion farming. There is a
growing interest ih livestock improvement, dairying, truck
crops and the developrnient of improved pecan orchards. The
rapid development of o0il fielés in the county has contributed
to the town's prosperity.

Richmoréd@ people never let = visitor forget that it fig-
ured proninently in early history and is the final resting
place of st least threc 1llustrious cheracters who contrip-
wted much to the building of Texcs. These are Mrs. long, the
"Mother of Texas"; l. B, Lawmar, the "Father of Zduc:tion"; and
Deaf" 3mith, the "Scout of 3an Jacinto."

Yrs. Carry Netion, the women who smashed the ssloon in
the literal sense of the word and prepasred the way for the

elghteenth ‘mendnent, lived in Richmond from 1831 to 1384,

25 Edmund Stiff, The Texas Emigrant, pp. 64-65.
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She was engaged in the hotel business,
Rosenberg. This town was platted in 1883 by George Sealy,
president of the 3Santa Fe Railroad. EHe named it for Henry
Rosenberg, & Swiss Jew, banker, and philanthropist of Galves-
ton, The first enterprise wes a general store owned by D.
K. Brown. It was in this building that the first post office
was established and the first telephone was installed. ir.
end Mrs, John Ebell built the first hotel in 1883. «a board
wealk led from the stetion to the hotel and many are the tales
told about the citiiens who are sald to have fallen off the
walk into the deep mud while "in their cups." Lrs. Ebel who
is now lirs. J. 4. Carter is the oldest resident of Rosenberg.
The first school building was erected in 1293. 3Several citi-
zens, emong whom R, T. !ulcahy was prominent, donated money
with which to build. It was a one room frame building and
the teacher was Miss ‘nna Stapleton who taught ten grades.
The first yeaer the eﬁrollment was only fourteen pupils,

In 1895 Rosenberg had a newspaper which was called The

Silver X-Ray, whose e&itor wes George B. Long. This paper is

now The Rosenberg Herald.

The rapid growth orf the town sturted with the develop-
rment of the rich ruailroad and school lands on the preirie.
This movement, beginning about 1905, reached its highest peek
about 1912. FHaving grown with the prairie furm sectiomn of the
county, Rosenberg is the treding center for this prosperous urea.

..a lurgc trade also comes from the fertile Brazos bottowm plunta-
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tion region which lies across the river from town. Within
recent years the oil developument of the Big Creek Field and
the sulphur development of the Orchard Field have contributed
in an importsnt wey to the prosperity and prospects of the
community.

In 1930, a building containing the City Hzll, fire sta-
tion and jail was erected. At that time the city officers
were George Huntington, ¥ayor; . E. Parrott, i/ater Commis-
sioner; Tom Talasek, Sr., Street Commissioner; W. F. Fink,
City Secretary; T. N. Thornton, Zity Marshall.

According to the 1940 census, a population of 3,457 peo-
ple are served by the Eouston lighting and Power Company,
The United Gas Corporation, and the Southwestern Bell Tele-
phone Company. There are three gins, two banks, two weekly
newspapers, four hotels, six apartment houses, a poultry
and produce house, and a hatchery, besides some sixty other
business houses., Rosenberg had two schools, two gymnasiums,
a Little Theate¢r, one hospital, and two clinics. There are
ten churches, The only Federal Building in the county 1is
the Rosenberg Post Office.

Rosenberg is very proud of its park which is fully e-
quipped for the entertainment of young and old. It is open

day and night with a2 custodian in attendance at sll times.’g6

26 Interview, M. E., Parrott, Rosenberg, Texss, april 3, 1942,
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Suger Land. This little clty stunds as & monuwent tc the
industry of the New Jouth. Citusied on the Jouthern Fecific
«nd the bissouri Pucific lines, twenty-three miles west of
Houston, practically the entire population obtuins 1ts live~
l1ihocd through the zctivities of the Sugsurland Industries and
the Imperiel Sugar Company.

The land on which Suger Land is locuted was olginaily
granted to Szmuel . Williams by the uexicun Goveraneut in
1228, Nearby are the ruins of the beautiful old Nibbs Place.
It was st this historic old mansion thet 3am Houston used to
stop overnight as he traveled from Houston to 3an Antonio,
and legend has i1t that it was here that he obtained the beau-
tiful white horse thut was shot from benesth him in the Battle
of San Jacinto.

Prior to 1914 there was scarcely the semblance of a town,
put today there cun be 3een row con row of well constructed
dwellings, provided with every convenlence. all industrial
and wmercantile buildings are protected with a 100% sprinkler
systew, which has ccanected with it twenty-two hydrantis and
a 100,000 gellon elevated tank.

Twin sewi-circle buildings of sepurate rooxs located
on the banks of Oyster Creek, give an idezl atmosphere for
the ever-growing sche-1 enrollment. 3ugear Land is one of three
schocls In the United States thut has the separate room plan
for cach grade or cluss, Pueblo, Colorado and Sen Diego, Culi-

forniz, =re the other two schonlz. The Sugar Lnnd School is
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the only one 1in the county that is a mcmber of the Southern
A3soclation of Schools.

Sugar land supports three churches: the lethodist, the
Presbyterien and the Catholic.

The civic =nd socizl activities uare represented by a
Masonic ILodre, a Lion's Club, the Garden Ciub, the Parent-
Teacher Associ:ztion, the Boy Scouts, cnd the Chamber of Com-
merce.27

MNear Sugar lLand is the Central ’riscn Farm, model unit
of the State prison system. A lurge meat packing plant, pick-
ling vets, cenning plant, laundry, new cell block and tll the
equipment necessary for an independent prison were erected on
the prison lends in 1933. These lands &re used t¢ grow e-
nough meat and vegetables to supply the other priscn farms and
send = surplus to other stute institutioms.

Fort Zend County is & strznge rixture of traditions.
There 1s 3till faint evidence of the old pluntaticn tradi-
tion und the old time Negro; there i3 =till a swell reicnant
of the glzmcur thet belonged to the days of the cattle king-
dox; =rd zixed with thosc earlier influences, is the new
element, broughkt by the "foreisn™ nationwliities that have come
tc meke their ciulm to this land. All have contributed some-

thing of their own culture.

27 Interview, lrs. F. C. Brecewell, Sugar lLand, Texas. March
5' 1942.
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Fort Bend County today presents a scene of prosperous
homes, good schools, substantial public buildings, «nd
excellent highweys. These evidences of progress ure in
large mezsure derived from or supported by sources of

wealth of which the pioneer never dreawmed--oil and sulphur.



CHAPTER II
EARLY HISTORY

Pre-Colonial Period. As all things have a beginning, so it

was with the county of Fort Bend. Many centuries passed
after the coming of the Red Man before white settlers ar-
rived in sufficient numbers to organize a government in this
territory. The first white men found that Karankawa Indians
had for a long time made their home in the Texas coastal coun-
try in which Fort Bend County lies. These nomadic and semi-
aquatic Indians were tall and powerful, the height of the
adults averaging more than six feet.
Fray antonio Solis, a Spanish missionary, came in con-
tact with tribes of the Karankawa Indiens while he was on
an exploring expedition along the Texas Coast in 1767. He
recorded in his diary a report of these Indians and their
barbaric customs as he saw them. .sn excerpt from his account
says:
They (the Karankawas) drive a stake in the

ground. Then they kindle a huge fire and bind

to the stake the victim whom they are goiug to

make dance or whom they are going to sacrifice.

All of them gather together and as soon as the

discordant notes of the cayman are heard, they

begin to dance and jump about the fire--Dancing

and leaping and with sharp knives in their hands,

they drew near to the victim, or cut off a piece

of his flesh, come to the fire and half roast it,
and within sight of the victim himself, devour
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it ravenously. . . .1
Early Texas pioneers accused the Karankawas of great
savagery and even cannibalism which appears to be corrobo-

rated by the statement of Solis. Another account of their

barbarism has been left by Noah Smithwick, a blacksmith, who

2
escaped from them.

Atkinson tells us that by the early nineteenth century
the Karankawas hated the white men because of the treatment
received by the Indisns at the hands of Jean Lafitte and Mrs.
Jane long. Lafitte stole the Indian women, while Mrs., lLong

turned cannon upon them from her camp at Bolivor Point.3

The First Colony. The hostile Indians and the invasions of

filibusters such as Long had greatly retarded successful
colonization. In 1820, Moses austin, a citizen of Missouri,
resolved to attempt to found a colony in Texas. He went to
San Antonio to make application to the Spanish authorities
for a land grant. His request was granted, but upon his re-
turn home, he became ill and died. ‘'hen his son, Stephen F.
Austin, learned that it was his father's desire that he carry
out the colonization project, he left New Orleans and went to
San Antonio to claim the right to his father's grant. uc-

companying Austin on this trip in June, 1821, were several men,

1l Chris Emmet, quoting Fray Antonio Solis in Texes »s8 it ias
Then, p. 2.

2 Noah Smithwick, The Evolution of a State, po. 38.

3 Mary Jordan Atkinson, The Texss Indians, p. 191.
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emong whom were Edward Lovelace, William Little and James
Beard who were later to be prominent in the development of
the Fort Bend Settlement. After leaving San Antonio, Austin
and his friends inspected the country and he selected the
rich lands of the lower Colorado end Brazos Rivers for his
colony. They returned to New Orleans and prepared to send
colonists to Texas.4
Cn November 22, 1821, a group of emigrants entered into
an agreement with Austin whereby each colonist was to receive
free a section of land providing that he place himself under
the direction of Austin. The emigrants were expected to
sail on the Lively and after landing they were to erect nec-
essary bulldings, to cultivate corn and to gather the crop
into a common storehouse.?
On November 20, 1821, the Lively sailed from New Orleans
with aporoximately twenty colonists and all of the provisions
for the colony. Due to a stormy sea the schooner weas unable

6 It was on December

to make port at the mouth of the river.
23, 1821, that the vessel landed its passengers c«nd a portion
of the provisions for the colony on the est end of Galveston

Bay.

4 J. H. Brown, History of Texas, pp. 86-93.

5 E. C. Barker (ed.), "Agreement with Emigrants", The Austin
Papers, vol. I, pp. 432-433.

6 Ibid,, vol I, p. 526.
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Among the members of this vanguard unloaded on the Gulf
Coast were William Little, James Beard, a man named Thoimpson,
who was a carpenter, and William S. Lewis. Lewis related at
a later date that there were others besides those listed whose
names he could not recall.7

These men formed the nucleus for the beginning of that
section later to become known as Fort Bend County. They were
left stranded with only a smzll part of the origimnal cargo

consisting of various types of farm implements, ample quanti-

ties of food, and the necessary seed for crops as was carried

by the Livelz.8

After several days of exploring the west end of Galves-
ton Bay, the group :oved up to the mouth of the Brazos River

9 Here these men were divided into two

on Janusry 2, 1822.
groups, one of which remained with the supplies at the coast,
end the other headed by «#illiem Little, started up the Brszos
for the purpose of communicating with the group of immigrsnts
traveling overland from New Orleans. They also wished to noti-
fy Austin of their arrival in Texas. After six days the men

returned to the cuamp at the mouth of the Brazos.lo

7 William S. Lewis, "adventures of the Lively Immigrants",
Quarterly of the Texas State Historiczl association,
vol. III, July, 1€99, p. 14.

8 Ibid., pp. 14-84,

9 1Ibid., p. 76.

10 Ibid., p. 82.
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Little and his men, after making the exploratory trip
up the Brazos, were not only unable to find austin, but were
also unable to locate the settlers vwho were supposed to be
in Texzs. They realized that they were stranded in a terri-
tory inhabited by Indians. That they were without adequate
provisions was an even more serious circumstance. They de-
cided, however, to make the best of the situation. They would
ascend the river, build =2 stockade, and clear the land as
they promised in their contract with Austin.ll

While trying to locate Austin and his group, Little and
the men accompanying him had seen a location on the Brazos
River which they considered suitable for settlement. Recall-
ing this fact, the men constructed rafts, loaded their sup-
plies, and moved up the river in order to establish themselves
at this favorable site.le

After several days of travel on the river, the group came
to the site for which they were seeking, a pleasing location
on the west bank of the Brazos River. The description of the
site selected by these men is a rather accurate picture of
the location of the present town of Richmond, the county seat
of Fort Bend County.

Concerning this esrly settlement of Fort Bend County,
Homer S. Thrall says:

William Iittle who accompanied Austin on his
first trip to Texas, selected the site of the

11 Ibid., p. 83.
12 Ibid., p. 87.
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town of Richmond. In 1822, four young men built

a block house there in the bend of the river.
William Morton settled on the east side of the
river. During the same mnd following year, Ran-
dall and Henry Jones, «#illiam Styles, Jesse Thomp-
son, Churchill Fulsheur, Thomas Barnet, C. C. Dyer,
Eli jah Roark, Thomas H., &and Paschal Borden, C. C,
William, Archibald znd Robert Hodge, and James Fris-
bee settled in the county. Randolph Foster ob-
tained a league of land for supoulying meat, as a
hunter, to Austin sand his party. Probably a larger
no. (sic.) of the survivors of austin's first 300
colonists live_in Fort Bend than in any other county
in the State.1l®

Therc seems to be some doubt, however, about the circum-
stances of the erection of the "Fort", as indicated by at
least one early settler. «“hen Dr. George Feris was an old
man, he wrote the following recollections of old Fort Bend,
as follows:

#hat About the 0ld Fort?
By whom constructed and against whom intended.

The writer never met a person who could even remem-
ber a tradition of its builders, or at what time it
was built.

All is involved in obscurity and left to conjecture.

The first mention about it is by General Pike in
1804 when it was in ruins--and the next by an old
Cushatta chief who said:

"It was built by peale faces long time ago, who had
big gun”". Continuing, Feris relates, "History says that
La Salle, « Frenchman, took possession of the whole
county from the Mississipol westward as early as 1685
but, per contre, Spanish historians afirm that De Soto,
as for back as 1544, took possession of all the country
lying west of the "Father of Waters™ in the name of
his Catholic mujesty the King of 3Spain. . . in 1837.

13 Homer 3. Thrall, A Pictorisl History of Texss, p. 660.



It (the Fort) vas nearly level with the ground
around, but & close inspection disclosed thc fact
that it wes merely a rectilinear earth work with
one entrance locking to the west and an embra-
zure presenting eastward doubtless to ensble the
Indians "big gun" to comuand the river ford, which
it overlooked.

The infercence dravn from this is that it wes in-
tended to repel aggrescion from the East. It was
situated on the west bank of the river znd is at
present inclosed in the garden of the Blakely
place.

The first settlers seid that there was a plain
trail from the opposite side leading through the
forests and cane brezks und emerging thence into

the Hunter place, thence east to San augustine.
So much for the pre- histcerie period of our coun-

try all of which seems to favor the presumption
of 3Spenish occupancy antedating the advent of all
others of the white race.

Early in October, 1823, the work of allotting land to
the settlers was begun. sustin employed Horation Chries-
man as surveyor. New settlers began arriving, and by July,
1824, the issuance gf titles was begun by Baron de Bastrop.
Thirty-nine titles were obtained by settlers living in the
vicinity of the Fort settlement, that were later included in
Fort Bend County. Most of these titles were for land along
the Brazos River.

A 1list of the members of the "Cld Three KHundred" who
were 1ssued land titles in Fort Bend County is given in

Appendix -.

14 Feris, Ceorge, "What about the 01d Fort?", South Texum,
lovember 12, 18691, printed in the Texas Coaster, vol.
XLI, (June 15, 1936) p. 3.
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Indien Relations. From the beginning of colonization of

the region end the settlement at the Fort, the colonists

had been disturbed by the Indians. They huc 1little

patience with the "Craunks," as the Karankaw: Indlans

were called, and hunted them down at any provocation. The
Tonkawa Indiens, & peaceful tribe living in central Texas,
remained more friendly to the white people than did any

other trive., However, they liked to steal from the colonists
and often came or ventured near the Fort Settleument. One
incident is toléd which occurred in the late summer of 1823
when some of the Tonkaw: Indiens ventured =8 far north as

New Year's Creek, stole some horses and returned to an en-
camprment on Big Creek near the Fort Settlecent. Requested

by the Kuykendalls, who hud followed the Indians, Austin
gathered some volunteers, who vere Jcined by others &t the
Fort Jettlement and went in search of the thieves. They were
found on Big Creek whereupon Chief Carita offered to return
the lorses and to punish the offenders. Tive Indiuns vere
selected to be given fifty lashes, twenty-five by Carits and
twenty-five by -~ustin, after which each culprit should have
his head shaved. Carita's lashes only produced imitation cries
of pain, but the lashes as given by sbner Kuykendull, zcting
for .ustin, ifflicted resl pain =nd the Indi:ns yelled prom=

ises never agzinr to rolest the settlers' horses or cattle.15

15 J. H. Kuykendall, "Reminiscences of Early Texcs",
Quarterly of the Texas 3tate Historicul aAsscciation,
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The stolen horses were returned to the fort according to
the promises made by Carite.

In 1824, the Karankswa Indiuns attacked some of the
colonists, =nd = company was organized by Captain Randall
Jones to march against them, At least one white man, wil-
liam S. Spencer, was killed in the battle that ensued, 16

As a rule the people of Tart Bend County had less
molestation from Indians than those elsewhere in the
colonies. However, during the entire Colonial Period the
men of Fort Bend County were in the militia or ranger
service and were often caelled to pursue end punish Indians
on the Colorsdo, the Laveca and farther north and west..l7

Severel locations of Indian camps in the county are
known. Some existed zlong Big Creek, one of which was on
the south bank Jjust north cf the Brown community road. There
was a c=mp on Clear Creek, by the Duke staticn on the 3anta
Fe. ihile the systemctic blasting was under wey in the summer
of 1925, in cornectior with the sesrch for sslt domes, &
cherge set in a mound-like island in Moore's Lake is reported

to have uncovered shells, crude pottery &nd arrow heads.18

The llexican Invasion. Relative peace, industry a=nd progress

prevailed in the Fort Settlei.ent for a period. But by 1835,

16 A. J. Sowell, History of Fort Bend County, p. 78.

17 Clarence R. Wharton, A History of Fort Bernd County,pp.£9-50.

18 S. A. Mcliillan, The Book of Fort Bend County, Texas,pp.53-55.
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the unsettled conditions in lexico bhegen to be reflected
above the Rio Grande,

In the fourteen years that had elapsed from the start-
ing of the :meric:n settlements in 1821 to the beginiing
of trouble with Mexico the colonies grew repidly. From all
the older stutes settlers flocked to Texas, "The Land of
Opportunity.” It is estimeted that in five years from 1831
to 1336 the population increased from sbout 20,000 to over
SO,OOO.19 3anta Anna, the dictator of Mexico, was shrewd
enough to see that unless drastic steps were taken to drive
out the .mericnns, Texas would be a lost province. His =zcts
show that his purpose was to get people to revolt and then
by the force of overvhelming numbers to exterminate their
armed forces, burn their homes, snd drive the settlers from
the country.zo

During the fall and winter of 1824-1835, 3Santa Anna
conguered the liexican stutes south of the Rio Grende and be-
gan the destruction of Coahuila-Texss., To bring this =zbout,
Viescu, the governor of Coshulla-Texss, was depnosed in June,
1835. This event alarmed the Fort Bend citizcns and other
colonists who were undecided a2s to the course of action that

should be followed in the absence of .ustin, who wzs uat that

time in Mexico City.

19 E. Yoakum, History of Texas, vol. 1, pp. 274, 327.
20 Ivid., np. 351-353.
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It wes not until the return of Stephen Austin in Sep-
tember, 1835, that uncertainty was gquieted. He told his peo-
nle that a consultation wes necessary to unite the colony

2l A cu1l for

and to decide upon the action to te followed.
the election of delegates to a conventlion to be held at 3San
Felipe on Cctober 16, was lssued by a committec on corres-
pondence., One of the polls in the Fort vicirity was Stafford's
Point. 4As a result of the election, several Fort Bend peo-
ple were elected as delegates. They were Thomas Barnett,
#Wyly Martin, Rendell Jones, =nd C., C. Dyer.zz

«#hen the settlers of Fort Bend learned that General Mar-
tin Perfecto de Cos had taken Sen .ntonio, nearly every mean
and boy who owned & gun left home to join the army which wes
to sttack Cos at San .ntonio. .omen and children were left
to gather the crops.zs

among the Fort Bend men actively engeged in the campaign
of 1835 were Thomas H, Borden, E. H. Dorst, levy Scott, T. J.

Smith, J. R. and Daniel 3hipmen &nd Eirum M, 'rhompson.24

21 ZETugene C, Barker, The Life of Stephen F. Austin, pp.
479-480.

22 Telegruph and Texus Register, vol., I, (October 10, 1835),
p. 2, “illiem C, Binkley (ed.), The Officiel Corres-
nondence of the Texas Rgvolution, 18.5-1836, vol I,p.39.

€3 1rs. Dilue Harris, "The Reminiscences of Mrs. Dilue

Harris,™ Juarterly of the Texas Eistorical ..ssociation,
vol. IV, iJuly, 1899), p. 160.

24 D. W. C, Baker, A Texas 3crap Book, pp. 585-63<.
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The General Council, which had been left in charge of
the administration of Texas affairs by iustin on December
10, 1835, apvrcinted Rendall Jones as an assistant to Col.
Fannin in collecting supplies for the volunteer aray. all
donztions were to be given Jones at the settlement.25 Dur-
ing the third convention held at San Felipe, the Consulta-
tion of Novenmber 1-14, 1835, the colonists had agreed to es-
tablish a nrovisional form of government of one member from
each municipality. ‘Vyly Mertin, Randall Jones and Thom:as

Barnett fron the Fort Settlement st various times served on

ct

his ccuncil for the municipality of 3San Felive. The set-
tlers =t Fort Bend petitioned the council to grant a sepa-
rate rcunieipslity due to remoteness from San Felilpe, but the
requsst was refused.26

ifter the return of some of the men from the storming
of San intonio, the colonists felt eesier. Then in Febru-
ary, 1838, newe reached Fort Bend thst Sante Anne was march-
ing with =2 lerze =2rrmy towards Szn Antorio. Wean; of the men
sgein left their families to Join the Texans under cormand
of Cem Hecuston. A Convention had been called to meet at San

Fellipe on Merch 1, 18%6, and on the followine day the conven=-

tion rssemnbled at ashington on the Brazos. Thomas Barnett of

25 Williem C. Binkley, op. cit., pp. 75-77.

26 Ivid., vol. 1, pp. 227-228; H. N, P. Gamnmel, lLaws of
Texas, vol. 1, pp. 551, 813.
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Fort Bend was a member of this convention and & signer of

the declaration.z7

"hen news came that Santa anna had cros-ed the Colora-
do River on his eastwurd march from 3an antonio, the peo-
ple living in the Fort Bend vicinity joined irn the "Runa-
way Scrape”. O(x carts =2nd pack horses were lozded &nd the
Fort Bend families begsn their travels towxsrd Lyanch's Ferry
on the 3an Jacinto River. after crossing the ferry, many
of the families made their vey towzrd the town of Libcrty.z8

Houston's army, retrcating vefore the Kexicans, crossed
the Brzzos above 3Sen Felipe with the eia cf the steamboaz
"Yellowstone"., Fe left at San Felipe a small forcec to check
the pursuing Mexicans and sent & similer force to guzrd Thomp-
son's Ferry, at the old Tort on the big bené near whaet is now
Richmond. He then marched his army to "Grece's Retrect" near
the present town of Hempstead where he wmede camp.

Sante /nna ia pursuit of Eouston's uarmy had crossed the
Cclorado. “hen he resched Sen Felipe he found the town had
been burned. Abandoning his plan to cspture Houston &t
Groce's Ferry, Sznta Anna turned south toward Earrisburg. On

the way he drove back Vyly Masrtin at Thompson's Ferry, near

27 Williaw C. Binkley, od. cit., po. 465-467.
t',

lrs. Dilue Harrils, op. ci

o
(67]




34

Fort Bend, cnd crossed the Brazos. From this point he
headed for the confluence of the Sen Jecinto River and
Buffalo Bayou.29
‘/hen Houston leacrn d of Santa ..nna's wmovements he
marched his army southward to a place opposite Hurrisbdburg.
At three o'clock the next day the liexican army thot had spread
terror and destruction through Iort Bend hed been defeated.
Many Fort Bend men had part in the successful fight
staged by the Texens for independence. Randolph Foster aided
the cause by helping to keep Houston's arwy supplied with
meuat. M, B, Lamar was commander of a cavalry troop. among
others from the Fort Settlement to serve during the cumpaign
of 13836 were ..ndrew J., Beard, John F. Borden, Churchill Ful-
shear, John V. Morton, Patrick B. O'Connor, Robert Neel, levy
P. Scott, Thomas J. 3mith, John 3Shipmen, Jesse Thcmpson, S. I.
wheeler, Cyrus Vickson, Tumory. Edmund, Patrick, Richard and
John Darst. Others engaged 1In tne cumpeign were Ceptain wylie
lartin, lieutenunt Randall Jones snd willium T. Austin, the
last one numed serving ags LHouston's aid-de-cump.so

The San Jacinto Veterans who sre buried in Fort Bend

County are John A, Barkley, died in 1844; andrew Jackson

29 Henderson Yoakum, op. cit., vol. II, pp. 115, 1Z0.

30 D. W. C. Beker, i Texas Scrapbook, o. 632, passim; se Jo
Sowell, A History of Fort Bend County, pp. 15, 181;
Homer 3. Thrull, A Pictorial History of Texas, pp. 550-
620; S. H. Dixon and L. i« Kemp, The Leroes of 3an
Jacinto, rp. 102-379.
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Bezrd, died in 1866; Thomas Belknap, died in 1840; Paschal
Pavola Borden, died at Stafford's Point in 1864; Captain
Robert James Calder, died ..ugust 28, 1885; Ldwmund C. Derst,
died prior to 18¢8; Patrick E. Darst, died in 1853; Major
Robcrt Eden Handy, died in 1838; Colonel Liirabeau Bonsapurte
lemar, diled in 1859; Wilson T. Lightfoot, died in 1858; Den-
iel Perry, died in 1868; Lrasmus Smith, died in 1837; .il-
liem #. Sumers, died in 1856.°%

There were gre_t cxpectaetions of boom developments in
Fort Bend County at the close of the Texus Revolution end
ambitious promoters laid off snd advertised townsites far

and wide., Robert Eden Handy znd William Lusk, merchants =t

Brazoria, advertised in the Telegraph and Texcs Reglster =t

Columbia thut they had gone to Richmond in Fort Bend County.sz

In the ~ugust 1, 1837, issue of the Telegraph znd Texus

Register appears the first ucdvertisement of the town. hile
there were a number of well known >ersons signed as proprie-
tors of the town, only Handy and Lusk had zny interc¢st in

the enterprise, the lunds purchused for the township being
wholly in their names. It is suid that Lusk was from Richuond,

Virginia, und hence gave the town that n;me.33

al. L. ﬂ."Kemp, "Gruves of 526 3oldiers of 3uan Jacinto Found
in EZighty-Cne Counties", Sun ..ntonlo rxpress, vol. LXK,
(Scptember 8, 1935), p. 25.

52 Advertisement, "Take Notice", Telegreph .nd Texas hegister,
vol. II, (:spril 11, 1837), p. 4.

33 udvertisement, "The Town of Richmond", Telegraph snd Texss
Register, vol. 11, (August 1, 1837), p. 1.



During the second session of the Congress of the Le-
public which met in Houston in llay, 1837, a kr. arnold,
menber from Necogdoches, offered a bill to incorporate
Nacogdoches, which bill provided for & board of eight trus-
tees and conferred general municipszl powers upon the,
imendnients regquired every citicen to lkeep « bucket, hook,
end leader for use in cuse of fire.34

Cther menbers, impressed with !r. ..ronold's biil, added
tovms until the act, when finally passed, actually listea
nineteen towns, emong them the towun of Richmord, which was
therefore incorporated before it wus inhebited. It was
surveyed by lMoses lapham, & Lero of San Jacinto.55

Another .et of Incorooration was pussed at the next
session of Congress, MNovember 18, 1837, creating Hich..ond
a body corrorate, In that zct the bounduries of Richiwond
were fixed in the following words: "all that tract of
county known as the city of Richizornd suiall be kxncwn as the
limits uné bounderics of ssaid city."36

Tkree years later, on December 10, 1841, the citizens
of Richmond petiticned the Congress to repesl the .cts of
Incorporetion, which was done, and for msny yesrs the city

rcmained unincorporated.37

34 H. P, N, Gamnel, lLaws of Texas, vol. I, pp.238-23¢.

35 C. R, “harton, History of Fort Bend County, p. 86.

36 H. Pn Nl Gam-el’ 92-0 Cit. ’ VOJ.. II’ p‘ 210
37 Ibid., p. 17.




CHATTER III
LEGAL AND JUDICIAL HISTORY

As settlements increased in adjacent country, the
promoters of the city of Richmond soon felt the need of
an organized county. A petition wuas therefore prepared
asking the Congress then in session at Houston to create
the county of Fort Bend. There were one hundred and twen-
ty-eight signers. The name of Randzll Jones headed the
list. Thirteen of the aiginal gruntees of Mexican grants
appear on the list. They were: Randall, Jchn and Henry
Jones, lLauncelot Smither, Joseph Kuykendsll, John and Ran-
dolph Foster, Wylie Martin, Philo Fairchild, John znd Wil-
liam ILittle, Thos. Barnett and .indrew Northington.

President Houston signed the Act incorporating the
county December 29, 183'7,l

President Houston appcinted wylie Martin as @hief Jus-
tice of the County of Fort Bend in December, 1837. MNartin
at once issued an e}ection proclamaticon that all qualified
voters of the new county should meet at Richmond c¢n Jenuary
13, 1838, for the purpose of chocsing a county seat, and of

electing the County and District Clerks and a Sheriff.

l H. P. N. Gammel, The Laws of Texss, vol. II, pp. 118-119,
Minutes County Court, Book 4, p. 1, Fort Bend County
Records.
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The Judges of the election were Rendel Jones, Hiram M. Thomp-
son and Daniel Perry, while Robert Dicke¢rson, S. Thomas and
R. Stiff were Clerks. The results were that Richmond re-
ceived eighty-three votes, Fort Bend, sixty-seven votes, and
Fayetteville twenty votes. Richmond was therefore declared
the county seat.

The first county officers were: John V. lMorton, Sheriff;
Wylie Martin, Chief Justice, William H. Pool, District Clerk;
Joseph H. Barnard County Clerk and E. R. Rector, assessor and
Col)ector.2

John V. Morton was appointed County Clerk pro tewm and
as such signed his name to the first murriage license issued
in Fort Bend County on December 31, 1837. It authorized the
marriage of idam Coble and Miss Mary Letcalf. The ceremony
was performed the following day by Chief Justice Wylie Martin.®

Adem Coble came to Fort Bend County in 1836. HKe was
issued Donation Certificate No. 120 for 640 acres of land for
participating in the storming of Bexer in December, 1835,
and Bounty Certificste No. 1430 for 320 acres of land for his
service in the army in 1836. Coble and his wife were living

in ILavacs County in 1850.4

2 Minutes of the County Court, Book A, p. 1, Fort Bend County
Records.,

3 Marriage Records, Book A, p. 21, Fort Bend County records.

4 Sam Houston Dixon and Louis W. Kemp, Herces of San Jsacinto,
p. 416.
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It is interesting to know that it was not until October
4, 1844, that the first divorce wus grented in the couuty.
At that time the court "relieved Mrs. Martha armstrong from
the metrimonial fetters that chained her to L. M. nrmstrong.5

As time passed other county officers were named. The
first ones so to serve were Commissioners of County Land bosrd,
1359, Daniel Perry, President, J. F. Payne sand sndrew J. Bonds,
Associate Commissioners; llontgomery Galbraith, Clerk; Commis-
sioners for Inspection of lLand Office, 1840, J. h. Barnurd,

A, W, Jones and John V, Morton; County ~ttorney, H. I. Parker-

son, 1847; County Coroner,, James Perry, 1842; County Survey-

or, Nathaniel Peck, 1839; Cou.ty Treasurer, Randall Jones, 1844.

On January 29, 1808, the County officials drew the first
county court jury. Those who had the honor of serving on this
jury were: Cherles P. Edwards, Emory Darst, J. F. L. Parrott,
Gustave 4., Parker, Daniel Shipmen, .ylie Powell, #illism Bar-
lett, #illium Bridges, ~dam Stafford, Michael Young, 3amuel
Pharr, .aron C. Dodd, Semuel Dawon, John Claiborne Foster,
Samuel Flint and Edward Johnson.

The first term of the county court convened on aApril 9,
1828, with .ylie Martin, Chief Justice, and C. C. Dyer and
I. F. Johnson, «ssociate Justices. The first ceuse cslled for

trisl was stylced lMoses Lopham vs. Gustave 4., Parker. Judguent

5 lilnutes of the District Court Record, Book B, p. 1llz, Fort
Bend County.

6 Election Register, No. 255 (1836-1842), pp. $31-332; No.
256 (1842-1846), pp. 30-31; No. 257 (1846-1854), pp. 383-
84, Archives, Texas State Library.

6
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in this case was rendered for 126 with five per cent in-
terest. No particulars sare given in the records.

The first Jjury case tried by this court wa«s that of
Robert I, Kuykendall vs. Joseph H. Woods. The jury in that
case consisted of Gustave .. Parker, Emory K. Darst, Samuel
H. Pharr, Samuel Damon, Edward Johnson, Ch-rles O, Edwards,
sndrew Bonds, Eren C. Dodd, George W. Long, ./illiam Bridgcs,
#ylie Powell and John Goodmzan. They returned a verdict for
the plaintiff for $155 with five per cent interest. The
records give rno particulsrs about this Cuse.7

Of this group of jurymen, informetion could not be found
about any except Emory H. Darst. He ccme to Texus in 1829
from Mis=ouri =nd perticipsted in the bettle at Velasco and
w=s with Edward Burleson in the fight at Concepcion. Later
he was a member of the detail which guarded 3:ntz Anns while
he was held prisoner on Dr. J. A. E. Phelps' plantation.
Darst died in 1880 in the home of George ii. Pleasants in
Richmond.®8

On page three in Book A of the County Records is founa
this entry:

It is ordered by the court that H. E. Hudson
and James . Smith be appointed a committee of
exanination during the present term to exaunine

the claims of &ll applicunts to plead and prac-
tice law in the several courts of this Republic.

7 linutes County Court, Book 4, pp. 1-2, Fort Bend County
Records.

8 Information from Homer Darst, Richmond, Tex s, January
10, 19435,
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/e have examined the claims of Wylie Martin
to plead and practice law in the several courts
of this Republic, and find that he is entitled
to all the orivileges of a member of the bar,
and recommend his admission.

The foregoing report appearing, it is ordered
by the court that the clerk of this court issue
such a license to the said Wylie Martin as is
usual, asd the court adjourn until tomorrow, 9
o'clock.,

The first term of the district court of Fort Bend

County convened on Tebruary 27, 1838, with Benjamin C.

Franklin, Judge of the Second Judicial District, presiding.

The first grand Jjury consisted of William ialker, foreman,

John Goodman, Ignatius Johnson, williem L, Little, Eli Fenn,

Henry Jones, G, B. Tinsley, J. Coble, VWilliam Beard, Darney

Wickson, David Austin, and A. J. Bonds.

The first case tried by the county was styled John

Caivin vs. James wWilson. The record states: "The defendant,

not appearing when called, it is ordered by the court that

James W, Smith, Esq., be appointed curator ad hoc letum, and

that the case proceed as though the defendant had appeared.”

The case was nonsuited on the grounds that it was a bet and

unlawful. whereupon it was ordered, considered and adjudged

that the defendant recover of the plaintiff the sum of the

costs of the suit.

only about Eli Fenn.

10

Of the above group of jurymen, information could be found

9

Ibid., County Record Book A, p. 3.

Fenn was a native of Georgia who came

10 lMinutes of the District Court, Book 4, pp. 1-2; 12, Fort

Bend County.
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to Texas in 1826. He carried his share of the burdens in
frecing Texas from Mexico's rule when he jolned dylie Mur-
tin's compeny which was guarding Thompson's Ferry. kLe was
not in the battle of San Jacintq for he was one of forty-
six men under Martin who was sent to Nacogdoches to protect
that place agcinst the Indisns. His death occurred in Rich-
mond in 183’7.ll

The first bill of indictment found by the grand Jury is
in these words:

The graund Jurors ccme into court; their names
being czlled, ell answering to their numes; they
mede the following presentment to wit:

Republic of Texas

County of Fort Bend

/e, the grand jury 4n and for seid county, on

our oaths do present V. Banks and John Moore for

a violation of the laws of the Republic in a case

of battery committed in said county against the

peace and dignity of this Republic.

Fetruery 28, 1838 12
7111iem VWalker, Chairman.

As esrly us 1836 Fort Bend had e representstive to serve
in the First Congress of the Republic when Jesse H. Cart-
wright was elected. He had come to Texas with fifty slaves
and obtained a lezgue of land in sustin's abandoned reser-
vation. .bout 1830 he bought lznd ut the heud of Oyster

Creek where he was living when elected to Congress from the

11 Information given by F. M. O. Fenrn to Homer Darst, Rich-
mond, Texas, anc trunswitted through personal inter-
view, Januery 10, 194c%,

12 Ibid., Minutes, Book 4, p. 5.




Hurrisourg District which iIncluded the Oyster Creck csettle-
ment.l:5 Cartwright was fcllowed by Thomas Barnett who served
in the Third end Tourth Congresses wihich met in Houston in
1838 and in :ustin in 1239, Barnett was reelly the first
representative after the county was crganized. He came to
Texas in 1822 end settled on the cast side of the Brazos Riv-
er in sustin's cclony. He served as president of the iyun-
smnienta from 1830 to 1822 and wus & member of the 1835 con-
sultaticn and of the 183€ Convention. He signed thc Texay Dec-

larution of Independence. Barpett is buricd in a private ceme-

0]

tery near Dyer, sli miles west of Rosenberg.

County Jails., It secms that the county had 2 jail before it

had & court house for the records show that Samuel Jones was
awarded the contract for building the first jail and was paid

3250 by Sheriff John V. Morton from subscription funds. The
Richmond Telescope and Literary Register of October 30, 1849,

describes the jail as being . . ."a safe and comfortable build-
ing". On Bovember 18, 1850, the court decided that this old
Jail would be sold to the highest bidder on February 24, 13851.
available records did not indicate to whom the old jeail
building was sold or how much vas rec¢eived. At the meeting

of the county court on .ugust 17, 1852, J. H. Herndon, ben

13 Louis J. Wortham, A History of Texas, vol. I, pp. 314,
64,
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T. Atkins, J. 3. 3Sullivzn end T. H. Lichiahun were uppointed
as a comrittee to furnish the court with a plun ané dinen-
sions of the new Jjall which wzs to bc built on the court
house square, This comuittee fuailed to report snd vias cis-
charged from its duties 3t a meetiag on Novembsr 15, 13Ig.
« new committee conaisting of Mills M. Battle, A, T. Luts,
T. H. FcMahon and %illiem Ryan was appointed. On Deceuber
20, 1852, the comuittee reported =nd the court snnounced that
it woulcd let bids in February 185%. The two story Jail was
completed during the yesr 1855 =zt & cost of 54550.14

This buildinz served the county as = jail until 18¢s8
vhen the o»regent jaill wes constructed. The proposition to
build the new jail wus decided upon by the comziszioners
court wnich met July 17, 1896. =£lgin brick =nd lcNecl 3toune
#were muterlals used by comtractor L. 1. Noyes for the $18,000
building. On 3eptember 23, 1596, I. lcFarlane was authorized
tu pay $59C€.00 to J. P, Jones =nd wife for lots upon whkich to
build the juill. Bonds were is-ued by ord:r of the court for
$20,000 to build sné furrnish the house. The new building
wus examined by the court with the eid of John F. Esrt, 3Sup-
erinterdent in the employ of the ccmpany, and wes saccepted

April 5, 1e0g,15

14 Minutes County Couri, Book A, DD. 67, 75, 78, 84, 180-18l.
15 Ibvid., »r. 105, 135, 144, 15¢-151, 162,
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Courthouse3. On June 1C, 184Z%, an crdcr cf the court was

entered confirming the purchase of & hcuse in Richuond for

a court hovse, frow the estste of Willism Tusk at {800 on
credit of twelve months, by J. B. ¥iller, then Chief Justice
c¥ the County.

In Februvery, 1849, C. C. Dyer, Chief Justice, M. M. Bot-
tle, County Clerk snd J. H. Herndon were copointed a comrittee
to investignt: the repalring of the old court house which had
been bcught from the Iusk estate, or to take such steps to-
werd the building of = ncw court house as might be deemed ex-
pedient. t the Yey term of court, following, this committee
reported that the house then occupled as a court house could
not bte well repsired, end recorwmended the scle thereof and
that a new court house be built =2t a cost not to exceed #2500.

This sczme committce with the addition of J. S. Sullivan
wrs approinted to make plans and eatimetes for the court house.
In June, the commissicners ccurt ordered that =2 court house
be built in sccordence vith plens and specifications m:de
by the committee, At the August tcerm, 1849, J, H., Herndon pro-
pc3ed to build the new court house for $2500 and to take the
¢ld court heuse property ot $600 as psrt payment. He also
nromised to furnish a house to hold ccurt in if the new court
bouse was not finished for the fall term of court. Herndon's
vreposal wus accepted.

Cn August 27, 1849, J, S, Sulliven, M, M, Battle and

John F. Borden, county surveyor, were directed to designate
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on the public square the spot on which the new court house
ahould be built.

Cn January 22, 1850, the court directed the county und
district clerks to rerove the archives cf their respective
offices to the house known :8 the Parkinscn hcouse in Rich-
mond, which hod been prepared by J. H. terndon for the pur-
nose., In anddition Herndcn was reguested to furnish & stove
aund put 4 lock on the door snd fasterings on the windows.
The new court houze bullt by Herndon wes cxemined snd appro-
ved or april 29, 1950,16

The third court house of Fort Pend :‘County vias locuted
where the precent Daviz Building stands. The oricinel pro-
perty wes & three story brick dulldins which was purchased
by the county from C. H. Xendzll on June 6, 1371, for ,7500.
The county occupied 2nly the two lower storices of the build-
ire and the !Masons used the upper stcry. Thiz builéing re-
rained the court houvse until Janu-ry 10, 1887 when it w=s
destroyed by fire, The commissioners court ordcred that the
Kend~ll Buildina on }ortcn 3Street be declarsdéd the court
house, and it continued to be 3o used until the construction
of n new cne in 18881,

It seems that the cormisaioners court h=d in mind the
construction of 2 new court hcuce before the 21ld one was des-

troyed, es the minutes ¢f the court show that on September,

16 Ibid:, pp. 14, 54-56, 58-59, 62.
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1886, the commissioners court ordered the county judge to
employ an architect to draw plans for a new court house,
and in October, 1287, the contract was let to B. F. Trester
of Dearborn County, Indiana, for 324,700.00, the architect
being George Dickey whose address is not given in the re-
cords.

This building was accepted by the commissioncrs court
in June, 1888, and continued to be the court house until
the present building was erected in 1909.17

The first county officers to occupy the new court house
in 1888 were: R. M. Ernest, County Judge; J. M. Garvey,
Sheriff and Collector; J. J. Dickerson, County Clerk; Henry
Furguson, (Negro) County .ssessor; and Jim Roberts, (Negro)
County Treasurer.18

In 1908 the commissioners court, consisting of D. R. Pesare-
son, J. R, Farmer, W, J. Bertrand, R, B, Marshall and J. C.
Hunken, after purchasing Block 99, in the city of Richmond,
coimenced the erection of the present court house and scme
was completed in January, 1909, at which time that building
was designated as the court house of Fort Bend County.19

In 1935 the commissiouers court, then consisting of John

M. Moore, J. M. Kovar, id 3tern, I. G, .irtz and Hunter Harris,

17 Uinutes Commissioners Court, Book C, pp. 175-176, 186,
191, 198, 210, Fort Bend County.

18 1Ibid., Book C, p. 292.

19 Ibid., Book J, pp. 163, 173, 176, 274
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constructed the extension to the court house, greatly udd-
ing to the convenience thereof.zo

In the meantime, before the second court house was built,
the citizens of Fort Bend County were interested in the
question of the sannexstion of Texas to the United States.
In March, 1845, the United States Congress approved a bill
providing for the admission of Texas to sStatehood. a4t a
public mceting held =t Richmond early in ~pril, 1845, «
number of the "old settlers" met from the various sections
of the county and proudly raiscd the "3tars &nd 3tripes"”.
This first meeting must have been principally for general
discussion of annexation since the new:paper account does
not mention any definite ac‘t;ion.zl

At a more general meeting which was held at the court
house in Richmond on April 21, 1845, the guestion of annexa-
tion was agein considered. James B, Miller was elected
chairman of the meeting with Mills I, Battle as secretary.
R. C. Campbell guave an explanation of the purpose of the mect-

ing which as stated in The Telegraph, was: "for purpose of

taking the sense of the citizens of county on the subject of
annexationto the United States." A com:ittee was appointed

to draft the preamble and resolutions to express the feelings

20 Ibid., Book R., pp. 502, 598.

21 News ite::;, "Richmond", Telegranh and Texas Register,
vol. X, (April 16, 1845), p. 2.
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of Fort Bend County citizens in regard to annexation.
After a twenty minute recess, the comuittee composed of
R. C. Campbell, F, M. Gibson, and J. H. Barnuard, reported
their work, which was adopted as follows:

Whereas, the citizens of the county of Fort Bend
have always manifested, and still cherish, a deep
and abiding interest in the welfare, and prospects
of their country; and whereas, in the opinion of
this meeting, nothing can tend more to the advance-
ment of the wealth of Texas and the security and
happiness of her people, than the proposed umcasure
of annexation.

Be it therefore resolved, 1st; That, like the

prodical who had sojourned long in foreign lands,
we wi%% return with pleasure to our Fether's house.

Viller's popularity and valuable service to the Repub-
lic resulted in his nomination for the first governorship
of Texas at a meeting of citizens from washington and sur-
rounding counties in Brenham on July 8, 1845. A similar
meeting was held in the home of Hudson Gaston, in Fort Bend
County November 22, 1345. David Randon served as Chairman
and James M, Briscoe was appointed 3ecretary for the meet-
ing. TPlans were made for a campaign in 1iller's behsalf.
His announcement was not aporoved by at lcast one leading

newspaper the Telegraph and Texas Register because the editor

said that he had ". . . deviated from his ordinary prudence
and ylelded too hastily to the solicitation of his friends.”
Miller lost to J. Pinckney Henderson.23

22 1Ibid., vol. X, (May 7, 1845), p. 3.

23 Ibid., vol. X, (November 19, and 26, 1845), p. 2.
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In accordance with the proclumation issued by Presi-
dent .nson Jones, Tort EZend County held the election on
October 13, 1845, to secure the opinion of the c¢itlzens
of the county relative to the audoption of the new State
Constitution 2ané the cpnrovel or disapproval on the gues-
tion of ennexation. The results of the voting in Fort Bend
County were: for the Constitution, 165 votes, ageinst it,
one vote; for annexation 166 votes, zgainst it one vot.e.z4

An enactment by the Second 3esszion of the legislature
caused the first dissatisfaction of Fort Bend County citi-
zens with the policies of the 3tate. It wes the avzortion-
ment ..ct passed by the lLegisluture in larch, 1848,%% This
act made them feel that they would not have fair represen-
tation at the next session of the legislutwre.

s Mass meeting wes held at Richmona on septenber 9,
1848, in protest against tnis Act end agsainst & previous
decision of the State Supreme Court cconc:rning the lund
titles of some of the citizens,

Dr. James B, Mi'ler oresided, «nd william Craft anc
T. G. Collins served as Secreturies for the mecting. The

purpose of the meeting wes exrlualned by J. S. Sullivan.

24 C. C., Dyer, Chief Justice of Fort Bend County, to the
Secretary of 3tate, ashbel Smith, October 27, 1845,
in 8peci:l Fleection Returns, .rchives, Texas State
Library, sustin, Texas

25 H. P. N, Gammel, Laws of Texas, Vol. III, pp. 312-314.
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Then William S. Raynor, Fort Bend County Representative,
explaeined how the apportionment .ct was passed and how it
became a law., 4 committee consisting of William Chambers,
J. K. Waters, E. Brush, James Knight and J. S. Sullivan
was appointed to draft resolutions vhich were unanimously
accepted by the group. The resolutions were s follows:

"Be it resolved, by the people of Fort Bend
County in mass meeting assembled, that the land
titles of Texas, by o late decision of the Supreme
Court of the Stete, and the numercus relocations
lately made as a consequence of such decision,
upon lanas held by the oldest and most unquest-
ionable titles in the country, is a sericus and
wost zlarm ng public calamity, and oue which calls
most imperatively upon those in authority, for the
riost prompt znd effective relief in their power
to apply.

"Resolved that a due regurd to the wishes wnd
welfare of the people at large, should proupt his
Excellency the Governor of the St:cte to convene
the legislature as early as possible, so that what
ever relief can be afforded by that department of
the government, under the Constituticn may be
speedily hed.

"Resolved, that taxation without representation
is a grievance to which the descendants of '76 dis-
like to submit; yet, did not the people of this
county beliecve that unowaly which they find on the
stetue book styled an apportment bill, approved soue
time? In March, 1848, bore a strong resemblance
to a handvwriting on the wzll, which, when properly
interpreted, will read, "Your land titles have been
weighed in our balances, and are found warting",
they would, without a muraur, acquiesce in this
Legislature disfranchisement, But this comes to
us in such a questionable shepe that we feel con-
strained to urge most resvectively upon his Ex-
cellency the Covernor of the State, the propriety
of calling an extra session of the legislature, so
that an upportionment bill may be pussed in con-
foruity with the reguirements of the Constitution,
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before Fort Bend is entirely degrived of a voice

in the councils of the State.”

Randal Jones, J. D, Vaters, wWilliam Chambers, C. C.
Dyer, William S, Reynor, E. Brush, James Knight, E. Cheney,
John Perkins, Henry Jones, George Pleasants, and J. M. Cook
were appointed as a committee to cuall upon I, S. Peck, the
County Surveyor, and request his resignation. This com-
mittee visited the surveyor that afternoon and secured
along with the surveyor's resignation all his field notes
taken in making surveys.27 The legislative evils pertain-
ing to land titles and to representation were remedied by
acts approved by the subsequent session of the State Legis-
lature.?8

On March 4, 1850, Fort Bend citizens participated in
the election provided for in the Constitution of 1845 to
determine the location of the capital of the State. The
result of the vote taken in Fort Bend County is as follows:
Washington received 67 votes; Austin, 26; Huntsville, 2;

Palestine, 2; and Tehuacuna Hills, 3.29

26 "A Protest," Democratic Telegraph and Texas Register,
vol. XIII, (September 21, 1848), p. 2.

27 Ibid., vol. YIII, (September 21, 1848), p. 2.

28 H. P. N. Gammel, Laws of Texas, vol. IV, pp. 469-470;
473-483.

29 C. C. Dyer, Chief Justice, to James B. \Wiebb, Secretary
of State, March 15, 1850, in Special Election Returns
on Location of the 3eat of Government, Archives, Texas
State Library, Austin, Texas



This vote clearly incice=tes the wish of the Fort Bend
County citizegs to locate the capitzl in their part of the
Stete.

(n August 6, 1655, the citizens voted on the question
of accerting or rejecting the Texsas Debt act as passed by
the United States Congress on February 24, 1855, Fifty-nine
votes were cast in opposition tco the proposul by the United
States Government to settle the State's debt and boundary
question, One hundred and fifty-seven votes were cast by
Fort Bend County favoring the acceptance of the proposal.so
Mary miscellaneous matters of intercst came before of-
ficials of Fort Bend County. The record of some of them
are here given. In th: early days of Fort Bend County for-
eigners applied for citizen's papers to the district court
and the pages of the minutes of the court are full of grents
of citizen's papers in those days. The first papers were
grznted by the court to A, F. Lutz, a German who cppeszred
in open court on November 29, 1851.31
In 1863, the Legislsature passed a law eccording to which
physicians hud to secure from the commissioners!'! court a

certificate to prectice wedicine. In ecoordence with tiis

law, the first certificatc issued in Fort Bend County was

30 C. C. Dyer, Chief Justice, to Edward Cla.rk, Secretary
of State, August 23, 1855, Speclal Election Returnms,
-rchives, Texas 3tate Library.

31 l'inutes of the District Court, vol. C, pl 30, Fort Bend
cunty Records.



54

obtained by Dr. Z. L. Cherrsrd, on Janucry 4, 1864.92

In August, 1865, in the first county elecction after
the Civil War, the following men were elected to cffice:
R. J. Calder, County Judge; Roberl Hodges, County Clerk;
We P, Duff, District Clcrk; J. W. iiles, Sheriff and Tax

Collector; #. L. Davidson, County attoraey; C. C. Coss,
Assessor; David TFerguscn, Justice of the Peuce, precinct
No, 1; J. H. Bailey, Constable. They were all removed
from office by military suthority except #W. P. Duff who
took the amnesty cath. The others refused to do 30.53

In pursuence of the .ct of Congress of April 10, 1869,
Major General J. J. Reynolds in command of the Fifth :7ili-
tary Distriet composed of Texas and Loulsiana issued an
election ordecr designating Tuesdsy, November 50, 1869, as
the dete for submitting the constitution drawn up in the
Constitutional Convention of 1868-1869 to all registered
voters st an election to be held in each county.34

st this election stoate and county officers, as well

as a United States Senators and Representatives, were to

bc elected. By order of H. Clay Wood, Assistsent Adjutant

32 Minutes County Court, Book i, (page 1ot numbered) Fort
Bend County Records

33 A. J. Sowell, History of Fort Bend County, p. 154.

34 Churles wWilliam Ramsdell, Reconstruction in Texas,
De 230,

L




General of the 1"ifth Militery District, fifteen men from

the military pvost at Calveston were ordered to rfort Bend
County to arrive by lNovember the rirtecnth. These trcops
were 2ot to be alloved atv the polling place, but were to

be quartered near oy and were to keep order in case of
trouble, rem:zining on duty through the electicn. As a re-
sult of this order Captuain Red came to Richmond with a de-
tachment of Negro troops. ‘hcther there was any distur-
bance is not kncwn. 'T'he trcops dild not stay away from the
polls. They stced with bayonets while the white men marched
between them to vote.55

In this clection John Cobbin e«nd Henry Phelps were
elected to places on the boerd of uppeals and walter Bur-
ton was elected Sheriff for two consecutive terms, (1869-
1374).

In the census of 1230 Fort Bend County had 9380 people,
7508 of them being Negroes. It cun be reuadily understood
Trci these figures why with enfranchisement the Negro frced-
men were able to send nembers of their race to the lLegisla-
ture. kac lIcCabe of Tort Bend County wes a delegate to the
Constitutional Convention c2lled by Governcr xichard Coke
to provide the 3tate of Texas with a Constitution z.ore in

keeping with the principles ofthe Democretic Party =nd to

35 Inforuation obtained from F. M, 0. Fenn cs related to
him by his father, John R. Fenn of Richmond ana trsans-
mitted through nersonal interview, June 26, 1838.
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change some of the =rticles irn the Constitution of 1869,
YcCabe was given a place on the Lduc=tion Comxittee., In
the 3Sixteenth Legislature, B, F. williawms reoresented Fort
Bend County. Among the Negro members of the Eighteenth
Legislature was George “ystt who wus sent frou Fort Bend
end #aller Counties, ., 3, Burton of Richmond was elected
State Senator from District 17 composed of Fort Bend, Wuller,
and ‘harton Counties., He served frow 1574 to 1882 and was
concerned about the future welfare of the frece llegro. On
March 21, 13879, hec introduced in the 3enate a bill entitled
"4n Act to Better Lstablish the .gricultural zand Mechanical
College of Texas for the Benefit of the Colored Youtn."°8

A paraphrage of a little song well established the time
of Walter Burton as an offliceholder of Fort Bend County in
the minds of the people. The sons 13 as follows:

Mother, nmother, nay I go to 3wiaf?

Yes, my durling son,

If you hung your clothes cn,y hickory limb

And vote for alter Burton.év ’

Henry and Charley Ferguson were Negroes who were politi-
cally prominent during this period. Henry, the leader of
the Negrocs, was respected by both whites snd blacks. He
was Sheriff from 1874 to 1876 and then held the office of

Tax .ssessor for the next twelve yeurs, hile he was Tax

Assessor, Henry Ferguson received three hundred dollers

36 J. Mason Brewer, Negro legislators of Texas, pp. 69-&0.

37 F. M. O. Fenn, Richmond, Texas, interview, June 26, 1938.

T
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for building = bridge, and $918.75 for fifty sacres of land
sold to the county for a poor farm. These were violations
of the law.sa

Charley Ferguson was district clerk from 1882-1888. Other
Negroes who were office holders during this time were: Tom
Taylor, “illiam Eaton, J. B. Roberts, J. P, Dill:rd, E. E.
Gunaway, andé ILonden Branch,who could neither read nor write.ﬁg

hen Negroes were elected to office the orffices were usu-
ally run by white deputies. However, this was not true in the
cass of Burton and the Fergusons,

It hzas been rather difficult to get unpre judiced informa-
tion conceraing the tyne of ufficizls that these Negroes made,
Natur=1lly the white citizens that vierc interviewed had little
to sz2y in favor of the Negro office holders, =nd they usually
turncé it off by saying that it was a disgrace to Fort Bend
County.

fter the passage of the Terrell Election Law of 1903,
which smong other things provided for & perty primary in each
county, the Negro vote in Fort Bend County hus not been s
controlling factor. The Negroes had never belonged to the
Democrstic purty and therefore they were excluded from the Dem-

ocratic prinaries,

38 Illinutes of the Commissionecrs Court, Becok C, po. 71, 95,
ort Bend County.

39 Election Registers number 264-271; (1870-1883), pp. 248,
448, 462; 290, 302, 325; 134, 303, .archiwes, Texas 3State
Library, Austin, Texas.
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Probably the worst thing connected with the Negro in
politics in the county was the fact that it divided the white
people into two factions, each one bidding for the support of
the Negro votes.

It is suid by o0ld citizens thei up to 13c8, it w.s im-
possible to be elected to u county office in TFort Bend County

without the support of at least u part ol the Negro vote.

The Jaybird Democratic Association. For forty years after the

Negro had been freecd and given the right to vote, there were
more Negrces thean whites in Fort Bend County. The result was
that prior to the organization of the Jaybird Association, the
affeirs of the county had been dominated by those who could
control the Negro vote. Negro ofrficials had been holding
offices, or white officials who relied on the Negro vote men--
agedcounty 2ffairs, So corrupt a system of county government
ac this was resulted in waste and mismansgement and incressed
the burden of taxation on the veople, the chief tax payers be-
ing among the whites. Findins protests in vain, 2 group of
young white tax payers who belonged to the 1osebud Club or-
€anized to protest esrly in 13886 and gradually gained members
from all portions of the county. The Rosebuc Club finslly be-
came the Young len's Democratic Club. Its aim wus to correct
the existing e€vils and to establish snd maintain a pure govern-
ment by the +Lkite neople. Conferences of this club's repre-
sentatives with leaders of the faction in power were held with-

out results,



59

In due time each side nominated a full county ticket,
and after a heated canvass the cw.ndidates of the white peo-
ple were defeated. During this canvass the term "Jaybird"
was apdlied to the defeated party and ™ioodpecker” to the
others, and the name stuck to :zach,

Te.lings were intensified, rumilies were divided and
perasonal altercations occured wnich ended iu shooting af-
frays. Iinally on .wgust 16, 188%, a deadly combat ostween
the two factions took place in the streets of Richmond .40

Jd. M. vestoiun, the County Judge, telegraphed to L. 3.
Ross, Governor of Texas, Tor troops. Ross wired Captain R.
A. Reichordt, commander of the Houston Light Guard to take
kis company to Richwond at once.41 The troops under Reichordt
errived at twelve o'clock that night una took charge. Gov=-
ernor Ro=3 arrived the next daey, ~ugust 17, 1885, with the
Brenham light Guard consisting of forty wen coumanded by Cap-
tain J. M. Byrne.

Governor Ross remnained in Richmond several days, and
took upon himsell the role of meciator. The "Jaybiras™ were
very desteriined to get control of the government =s they paid
all thc taxcs and represented neurly «ll the white people.

They wcrc determuined that Negro supremacy should ceese. The

40 Information obtelnea frcm F. M. O. Fenn, Richmond, Tex=zs,
June 10, 1978.

41 News item, "Blood Flows Freely", The Dallas Morning News,
vol. IV (August 17, 1889), p. 1
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county government was completely disorganized. The sheriffs
was dead.

In the process of reorganization, the commissioners
court, consisting of County Judge J. M. Weston and comuission-
ers aslex Phelps znd ade Robinson, hcd the right to make the
appointments, but the "Jaybirds" held the power, in that they
alone had sufficient wealth to make bonds for the officiuls
who were to be selected. 4As a result of conferences between
Governor Ross and the leaders of both sides, an agreement wsas
reached on 2August 20, 1889, thst Ira Aten, Sergeant of the
rangers be appointed Sheriff.42

On August 22, 1889, the old commissioners court had
ceased to exist., Juige J. M, lieston tried to open court, but
only WWade Robertson was present. DBy august 24, the Jayoirds
had things in their hands. H. R. Farmer, J. H. P. Davis, &nd
F'. McLaughlin had been appointed commissioners. On September
3, this commissioners court accepted the resignaticn of J. A,
‘Veston and appointed }. J. Hickey to fill his term of office.
This new court required that new bonds be mude by 211 those
officers still in office; numely; J. V. Meek, County Attorney;
J. K. Terry, Tax .ssessor; Frank Bell, Public wWeigher; J. C.
Mayfield, County Treessurer; und w. R. Gayle, District Clerk;
Only one of the old Woodpecker crowd was left in office, . R.
Gayle, District Clerk. His bond was rejected November, 13889,

and, as he failed to make another, he was removed frowm office,

42 Ibid., (August 21, 1889), p. 1.
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and H. R. Farmer was appointed to that office.43

By this time, the prominent "Woodpeckers™ had left
the county. On October 3, 1889, the organization that is
now in existence was formed with 141 members, It is known
as the Jaybird Democratic Organization of Fort Bend County.
Clem Bassett was its first president and F. 1. 0. Fenn was
the first secretary.

Each year the Jaybird Association votes to receive the
entire white pool list as members. A white citizen there-
fore automatically becomes = member.44

Nomination for county office in the Jaybird primaries
is the equivalent of election because there has never been
any opposition to the Jaybird ticket in either the state
primaries or the general election. The association has no
bearing on state or national politics. It is opposed to
any official remaining in office longer than two consecutive
terms. The Negroes are fully satisfied to leave the county
affairs in the hands of the whkite people.

A substantial monument was erected in the o0ld courthouse
vard in memory of the three¢ whose lives had been sacrificed

in the Jaybird cause and to commemorete the principles for

43 )inutes Comnissioners Court, Book C., pp. 395, 399,
400-401, 420, 437, Fort Bend County Records.

44 lUinutes of the Jaybird Democratic Association of Fort Bend
County in possession of the District Clerk at Richmond,
(no page numbers given).
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which they fought snd died.

A noted Brazoria County wag came to Richmond when feel-
ing was 2t its height 2nd a partisan immedictely approached
him with the guestion, "Are you a Jaybird or a ""oodpecker?"

Nd:kpowing his guestioner's affilisations, according to
District Judge . S, lunson, who told the story, the Brazorie
County man finally declsred, "Stranger, I don't belong to
either party--I'm & mocking bird."46

John M. Voore, Sr. is the only Fort Bend County citizen
who was ever elected to the Naticnal Congress. He served the
Eighth District from 1905 to 1913. His election gave a strong
and influential factor to national waterways improvement, and
he worked for the water commerce of Texas both in and out of
Congress. He was a member of the Emigration and Natursliza-
tion Committee and of the Post Office Expenditures and Bank-
ing and Currency Committee.47

Fort Bend County took a place among the progressive
counties of the State on April 9, 1911, After being ham-

pered for years with a convention form of government and a

two-thirds rule," she at last freed herself from the grip of

45 Information given by F. l. O. Fenn, Richmond, Texas, June
10, 1928,

46 Related by . L. Nesbitt.
47 L. E. Daniel, Texas, The County and Its Men, p. 516,

This information is corroborzated by Clem Myers of Rich-
nond, Texas.,
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a "stagnetion puarty" and acdopted the primery mwetkod, wanich
insures equal rights to ull end & true expressicn cf the
wishes of the people.48

During the ‘Viorld Jer, the nccd c¢f protecting the mili-
tery cawps froi the influence of liguor zidea the cause of
prchitition. an awendment to the State Constitution, Section
20, irtieclc 16, was submitted to tho legislature in wn elec-
tion on lay 24, 191¢, ia wnich Fort Beand County voted 485
for prohibition «nd 639 against. The iLighteenth ~mendment
wa3 adopted.

Cr .ugust 26, 1998, Fort Bend County voted 1661 votes
for the legiszlation of S.2 beer in the county «nd 401 votes
ageinst. Cn thc repeal of 3tate Wide Prohibiticn on sugust
24, 19éb, Fort Bend County voted &84 votes ugzinst repeel
anc 1400 for repe.l.49

Concerning the interest of fort Bend County in orovid-
ing free text-bvooks for any child of scholastic uze attend-
ing the public cschools ¢l Texas, the citizens voted in the
generel elcction hela Novewber 7, 1913 for free texts, £85;

ageinst, 91.

42 MNext itex, "Fort Bend County ..dopts Primury llethoa", The
Rosenberg Herald, vol. XVII, (April 14, 1911), p. 1.

49 Election Record Book 2, np. 45; 1l44; 152, Fort Bend Coun-
ty zecords.
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In the Special Elec¢tion held August 24, 1955, when
amendment seven was asked to be voted upon whether to per-
mit furnishing free text-books to every child of scholastic
age attending any school within the state the vote in Fort
Bend County was 1,199 for the amendment and 914 against.sc

On the day for women to register that they wight be
entitled to vote, a number of them were awaiting the opening
of the tax collector's office at Richmond. Nrs, Bessie Urana
of Guy, the thirty-six year old mother of eight children, had
the distinction of being the first woman in the county to
register that she might cast her vote for democracy.51

The ratification of the Nineteenth Amendment to the Con -
3titution of the United 3States which gave to women the right
to vote was submitted to the voters of Fort Bend County in a
gpecial election on May 24, 1919. The vote was 410 for, and
712 against ratification.9%

The first woman to hold a public office in Fort Bend
County was Miss Minnie Mayes of Rocenberg. She was elected
to the office of County Superintendent of Schools in 1921
and served until 1923, Neny other women have held office in

the county.

50 Election Record Book 2, pr. 42; 182. Fort Bené County
Records.

51 Anonymous, "First to Register," The Rosenberg Herald, vol.
XX1V, (June 28, 1918), ». 1.

52 Election Record Book 2, p. 45, Fort Bend Coi nty Records.
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Jomen “ho Have lield Office in Fort Bena County53
~ccording to "Jaybird" rules, nomne heléd office iore then two

consecutive terms, but muny were subzequently reclzcied.

NAME CFTICE
Miss Imogene fullinex District Clerk
Yise June Elusdel | Schecl supcrintendent
Miss Kate Liitchell County Clerk
Mrs. &Lline C. Nlozne Cistrict Clerk
¥rs. Imozene Chance County Clerk
ira. P. Co Smith Uistrict Clerk
Nrs., Allecn E, Mitchell County Tre=asurer
Yisa Mutlye Schulaz Schocl sSuperintendent
Mrs, Mennie Lehmann County <Clerk
Adrs. Mincie Drown Couuty Ireasurer
AMra. Fannie Chadil County Tresasursr
miss debel Schulz Listrict Clerk
¥iss Flls Mecek County Clerk
Liss Mionette Griffith County Trcasurer

For the first time in ninety-six years the Fort Bend

County rr:und jury adjourned in December, 1933, without re-

2 . oé
turninz a murder indictment.

53 FElection Record Books 2 snd & snd Bond Lecord, Fort Bend
covnty, v21. V, County Cleck's Ufiice.

54 wonyooud, "Hinoty-3it Year {ld itecorda broken", The 3an
Benito lirht, (December 20, 1935.)




CHAPTER IV
FORT BIND COUNTY AND NATION.:L DEFENSE

The citizens of Fort Bend County participated in the
Texas Revolution. They were active also in the affeairs of
the Republic, and continued their interest in public mat-
ters after joining the Union. In fact, there have been Fort
Bend County men in every war in which our country was in-

volved since 1836.

The Meir Expedition. During the ten years after the Battle

of San Jacinto, Mexico claimed Texas, but did little to as-
sert the claim. In 1842, after the Senta Fe Expedition which
prompted an invasion by lMexico into Texas, the people of Fort
Bend County were disturbed b; hearing of a Mexican Army under
General sdrian Woll which occupied San antonio. Texans has-
tened to San Antonioc. Volunteer companies begun forming.
Cne, recruited in Fort Bend County and led by Captein #ill-
iam Ryon, hastened to the conflict. Joining other det:ch-
ments of the Texas army, the men marched to the Rio Grande,
following the invaders who recrossed and escuped in the hills
of Mexico.

At the river the Texas army disbanded; some returned
home while others decided to lay siege to the town of Mlier.

Captain Ryon's company formed a part of the expedition to
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Mier. The story of their desperate fight in the town,
their surrender to overwhelming numbers, their weary march
to the interior, the drawing of the beans where & white
bean mesnt life and a black bezn meznt death, Castle Pe-
rote and its horrors of filth, fever and starvation is too
well known to be repeated here.

On the way to Perote the Texuns were Jjoined by the sur-
vivors of the Santa Fe Expedition. John lMcNabb of TFTort Bend
County was one of them.l

That there was considerable interest in the fate of
the Mier prisoners is evidenced by a public meeting held
in Richmond on March 4, 1843, to devise a plan for securing
their release, James B, Miller acted as cheirman of the
meeting. The Fort Bend County citizens were in favor of
any plan to obtain the relesse of the Texans, even an of-
fensive war.?

The Mier men with the Santa Fe prisoners were kept in
Perote for more thin a year. In spite of their condition,
the Texans werc able to remain rather cheerful, believing
that they would soon be released. Captain Williem Ryon was

able to borrow money from a friend of his father, and with

1 A, J. Sowell, History of Fort Bend County, p. 218.

2 News item, "For the Telegraph", Telegraoh and Texas Re. -
ister, vol. VIII, (Yarch 15, 1843), p. 2.
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this money he made prison life :iore comfortuble for his

3
men.

There were 30 many wen from Fort Bend County that the
citizenry prescnted a petition in December, 1843, to the
Texas Congress =28king thut a law be paszed for thc relief

of these men. Dr. Joseph E. Birnard, then a itepresertative,
alded in getiing thc act paased Jeanuery, 1844, and the
Fort Bend County men were released by the general order

September 16, 3844.4

Vexican War. After Texas was annexed to the United States

and the Nation becsme involved in a war with Nexico, (1846~
1848), the people of Fort Bend County were still interested
in keepingz the lexicans out of the state., JSeverel Fort
Bend County men joined the zrmy sttacking the lexicuns.,
Andrew Jackson Roark was in charge of a cowpany of Texans
and participsted in the capture of Mexico City. Gilbert

R. Brush joined General Taylor's army and¢ wes wounded at

the Battle of I‘Onterrey.5

The Civil War. Tke pecople of Tort Bend County went to war

with those cof all the other ccunties in Texss. The incidents

3 Captain Ryon to ~bner Harris, Castle Perote, liexico, June
27, 1844, in houston Wede's Notes and Fruguents of the
Mier Expedition, pp. 11, 51=55.

4 H. N, P, Cemmell, lews of Texss, vol. 11, p. 85€.

5 Clarence R. ‘"harton, 4 History of Fort Bend County, p. 223.
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preceding this conflict have becn frequently told, hence

it is not necessury to repeat them here.

Economic Conditions ir the County in 1860, In 1860, the

county weas in every way self-supnorting. Llivestock, such
as horses, 1ules, cattle, end swine, wus raised in abundunce,
though mules figured less prominently in the working schene
at that time. Oxen were used extensively in farming und
occupied & much more imnortant »luce thun wwules or horses.
The number of wules as 734 while work oxen numbered 2,680.6
Cotton, corn, cane, peas, beans, and sweet potutoes
were grown in great abundance, while oats und Irish potatoes
made a large contribution to the country's food supply.
Further contributions to self-sufficiency vere wool, honey,
butter, orchard products, some tobacco =znd some uanufactures,
the last named consisting of brick, sawed lumber, ginned
cotton, cloth, sugar, and mea1.7
At the outbreczk of the wsr, there were two hundred
and sixty sleveholders, ninety of whom operated extensive
holdings, seventy-four of them containing between 100 =nd
500 acres euch; fiftecn, between 500 =nd 1,000 scres, and one

a
of more than 1,000 acres,® G3uch plentatione required wany slaves,

6 The United 3tates Census, 1860, p. 140.
7 1Ibid., op. 141-143, 582,
8 Ibid., p. 216.
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Often the value of the slaves r.n into several figures,
Edward M. Branch of Richmond w:S one of the slave owners,
and un sppraisement of his large estate as ecrly s 1838,
shows the value of slaves. Of course sex and age often
deterr.ined the price. For exampnle, a Negro girl of fif-
teen years was valued as high as 3700.00 ¢nd a Negro boy
of twenty-three, as high =s :ﬁlOOO.9

It is impossible to know the scale of prices for the
purchase of slaves during the w.r. Nost of the sales were
made in cotton and land. ''here was considerable activity,
hovever. Some planters rid themselves of their slaves to
their more optimistic fellow citizens. Refugees from other
states brought in slaveg and disposed of them.lo

The assessments in 1860 were land, £&,250,000; slaves,
$3,140,000; horses and cattle, £670,000--a total of over
:?7,000,000.ll

+t this late period, it is difficult to get a »icture
of the days of sluvery in Fort Bend. }ost of the legends
which come dowvn to us are colored by the tradition=lly kind

mester and otedient slave. Only now anda then are authentic

Tacts found.

9 Probate Record,Book 4 of Fort Bend County, p. 55.

10 Abner J. Strobel, The Cld Plantations and Their Owvners
of Brazoris County Texss, p. 1l3.

11 TUnited 3States Census for 1860, p. 129.
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A March, 1844, issue of the Telegruph of Houston,
tells of two slave disturbences. Ten sleves auttacked B. F.
Terry, but he stood them cff with s pistol and a whip, shot
one in the leg to disable him snc broke the zrm of another
with the whip. The account slso tells that the overseer on
the Burdick plzntation nezr Richmond was killed by a Negro
in the field.l2

Further evidence of dissatisfaction zmong the slaves
is found in th¢ newspapers' advertisements offering rewards
for the delivery of runaway KNegroes. It appears that the
customary rewcrd was 50. J. D. Waters of Fort Bend County
was a frequent advertiser. In December, 1843, he advertised
for his nulstto men "Isaac" who was thirty years old, about
five feet ten inches high and "wore generally a pair of
large black \'hisl«:ers'.'l3

The Legislature took a hand in affairs in 1846 by enact-
ing a bill providing for patrols in ecch precinct of a coun-
ty. They were to be appointed by the County Court and con-
sist of a captain and assistants to serve three months. Half
of them were to be slave owners. Patrols were required to
go over thelr districts st least once every ionth and visit
the Negro quarters where it was suspected slaves were impro-

perly or unlawfully sassembled. I'hen a patrol found zny slaves

12 News item, "Negro Disturbances", Telegraph, vol. IX,
{March 13, 1844), p. 2.

13 Advertisement, "Reward", Telegraoh, vol. VIII, Dec. 30,
1843, p. 4.
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"off their plantations without a pass) the patrol was to
give the offending slave not more than twenty-five lashes,l4

This law was probably responsible for the ditty that
has been handed down to the old-timers of today:

"Run, nigger, run, Patrol'll git you, hit you,
twenty-five 'fore he ever guit you."

In 1879, after A. E. Sweet and J. 4, Knox toured Texas,
they told of interviewing an old Necgro who had been a slave
on the Water's plantation. According to their story, the
old Negro spoke of his "ole massza"™ with affection and seid,
"I know it's better fur de young rolks dat dey am frec; but
«8 fur me, I'd rather be getting my vittles in old massa's
kitchen dan be skirmishing 'round for grub like we has ter

do now".15

Secession. Fort Bend County in 1861 faced the problem of
remaining loyal to the Union or embracing the dcctrine of
secessicn. Slavery, the great economic institution of the
South, an integral part of the agriculturel 1life of the county,
had developed rapidly; in 1860, there were 4,127 slaves ip

the county which ranked it eighth in the State.ls This indi-

cates that the Fort Bend folk believed im the justice ana the

14 H. P. N. Gammel, laws of the 3tate of Texas, vol. II,
1546, p. 195.

15 Alex E. Sweet and J. Armoy Knox, On a Mexican lMustang,
pp. 77-78.

16 United States Census, 1860, p. 240.
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value of African slavery. They then considered the elect-
ion of Lincoln to the presidency as being directly antago-
nistic to the continuution of the institution of slavery.

November 21, 1860, in response to the call for a
county convention, Fort Bend citizens gathered at Richuond
to select delegates to the State Convention which had been
called. At the County Convention a resolution was adopted
which read in part:

"That 2ll laws prohibiting the free importation

of slaves were a standing reproach and an offen-

sive stigma on the institution of slavery which

in the South is regarded as a grcat and signal

good both to the white and Negro races and cleur-

ly defendiple on moral, social and religious

grounds."

Janusry 8, 1861, an election was held throughout Texas
for the election of delegates to the Secession Convention to
be held in Austin. Frank Terry of Fort Bend County was
elected with opposition.l8

The State Convention assembled in Austin and adopted
resolutions providing for secession, subject to the ratifi-
cation by popular vote on February 23, 1861l. The vote of

Fort Bend County was 486 for secession to O ageinst it.lg

17 C. R. ‘harton, History of Texas, vol. II, p. 71l.

18 George P, Foster, Chief Justice of Fort Bernd County, to
the Secretary of State, January 27, 1861, in Special
Election returns, aArchives, Texas 3tate library,
Austin, Texsas,

19 lbid., (February 26, 1861).
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Once the decision was made, there was no hesitancy. Fort
Bend County men in large numbers donned the gruy of the
Confederacy.

Two days after the vote on secession, B, F. Terry and
others petitioned the Commissioner's Court to apnropriate
money for the purchase of arms and equipment for the vari-
ous companies of "Minute lMen" to be organized in tie county.
The organization of "Minute len" wcs one of the first demon-
strations by Fort Bend people to protect their property.

The Court appropriuated 33,500 and appointed Smith Darnell
to purchase the following equipment:
75 improved Colt army pistols
50 muskets
400 pounds powder
300 pounds No. 1 buckshot
1,000 pounds lead
30,000 Colt's pistol caps
500 musket caps 20
75 powder flasks.

Five months later, July 15, the court gave additional
aid out of county funds and purchesed horses, guns, pistols,
and articles of clothing for the soldiers leaving the county
for the seat of war. Fifteen of the horses purchased for
use of the volunteers were returned as of no use to the

Confederacy and were sold for cash at public seles "with

saddles and guns to be returned".21

20 lMinutes, County Court, Bock &, pp. 217-218,

21 Ibid., Book a, p. 227.
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Further aid was given by the County Court to Terry's
"Texas Rangers", especially to Captain J. T. Holt's com-
pany which was compnosed mostly of I'ort Bend County men. On
September 12, 13851, the Court appropriated $500 toward the
supoort and maintenance of Captain Holt's "Terry Guards".

S. A, Stone and 203 other citizens petitioned the Court on
October 20, 1851, to make an ap»-ropriation of §$10,000 for
the benefit of componies from Fort Bend County to enter ser-
vices of the Confederate States. This assistance was not
given imuediately, but several months later the Court again
anpropriated $4,000 out of county funds for the purpose of
defending the coast of Texas against Federal invasion.22

During the specisl term of the Court, July 11, 1861,
$2,000 w=s aporopriated as the county's share in meeting the
expense of a military encampment established by Harris, Bre-
zoria and Fort Bend Counties.®9

From county funds, Captain Holt's compuny was granted
$5000 for the purchase of winter clothing, shoes, and other

nceded equipment. The company had recently left the county

to engage in the war. A committee composed of ~. Moore, H.

Kyle, =nd G. ®. Foster, was appointed to secure the necessary

articles and have them made into "pants, drawvers, etc." to
be shioped to the Fort Bend soldiers. sn additionsal {142 was

aporopriated December 20, 1861, to pay for shivping the guns

22 Ibid., Book A&, p. 225.
23 Ibid., Book A, p. 226.
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and clothing to Captein Holt.z4

At & meeting of the Court, Cctober 31, 1862, 3. k. IFrost
handed in {827 which had been collected, stating thust the
amount was contributed to purch.se clothing for Fort Bend
County soldiers then in arkanszs, The Court appropriated
an additionul $3,000 for the sume cause, J. /. killer wus
apoointed ourchasing agent to secure the clothing.z5

The next mention of the Court's action pertaining to
the soldiers wus in the minutes of December 5, 1864, when
the sum of {500 was appropriated out of county funds for
the purpose of defrnying expens<s of packages sent by citi-
zens to their friends in the army east of the Mississippi
River.26

The county records contain no other items concerning
the soldiers until the Court met MNay 13, 1865. At that time,
on petition of C. /. Buckely =nd other citizens und tax puy-
ers, it was ordered that Fort Bend County support a soldier
home by sup»lying }. . Bestwick, proprietor of Verandah
Hotel, with a sufficient amount of provisions to reimburse
him for meauls und lodgings furnished soldiers ut twenty-five
cents each. I'e was required to kecp a register of numes,

commmunds, sna other recorcs of the soldiers, each of whom

24 op. cit., Book A, pp. 232-233; Z36.

25 Ibid., (October 31, 1862), pages not numbered.

26 Ibid., (December 5, 1864), p=ges not numbered.
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was required to secure a ticket from the county treasurer

for meals and lodgings. D. K. Kinkle was uuthorized to feed
horses belonging to soldiers charging them twenty-five cents
for each feed, to be peld in ccrn at forty cents per bushel,

He was ordered to keep a register and mnuke a formaul report.d7

County Relief During the Civil \ar., As volunteer c¢nlist-

ments sand conscriptions continued to decrezse the number of
men in the county, it becume increasingly harder for soue
families to secure « living. Relief couuittees viere or:an-
ized snd money vwa3 advanced for the provisions of needy fam-
ilies. May 22, 1862, #, K. Devis was enpointed us the
county's agent to solicit and distribute contributions for
thut purvose., The county contributed 1,000 to the fund.<S
In giving aid to scoldiers' families, the Court wus

governed by the following rules:

First, Court will obtain the number of wembers in each
fanily, age, :nd sex.

Second, amount of meuns which ecach family has who is
seeking aid from county.

Third, an allowance per month in cash to provide
necessities of life wnd in case of sickness further
sum as just and proper.

Fourth, definition of femily re«rs scther, wife,
und children of soldiers toc young to ezarn support,
not hirelings or persons who izy stany at home,

27 1Ibid., (Mey 13, 1865), psges not numbered.
28 Mlnutes, County Court, Book a, p. 228.

29 Ibid., (Septeuber 2, 1862), pages not numbered.
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The County Court gave each month to every family a
sum of money not less then eight or more than forty dol-
lars, depending upon the number of children in the family.
The 35tate, supplementing the efforts of the county, gave
cotton and wool cards to the families who were unable to
pay for them.

When the Court met July 25, 1883, it cuthorized the
county relief committee, with R. 1. Colder as agent, to
purchase clothing made in the Texas penitentiary with which
to supply the families of the soldiers. Colder's purchases
smounted to $1,929.20. The clothing was delivered to Chicef
Justice C. H. Kendall for distribution,°"

In September 1. H. Handle was appointed by the County
Court to superintend collections from planters of Fort Bend
County for fimilies of the soldiers. The county treusurer
was suthorized to pay for services rendercd.sl

The Court procured 2250 pounds of sugar in 1864 for
the scme purpose., Half of this sugar was purchased by the
county for fifty cents a pound. One barrel of molz:sses - &S
donated by Kyle and Terry and wu= distributed, one-hulf gal-

lon to each family.32

30 Ibid., (July 25, 1863), pz=ges not numbered.
31 Ibid., (September 30, 1863), pages not numbered.

—_—_—

32 Ivid., (March 28, 1864), Dpages not numbered.
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In order to obtain meat for the soldiers' families,
the County Court agreed to pay $50 per head in Confederate
State nNotes for a sufficient number of beeves from stock
raisers of the county, the beeves to be butchered by Plea-
sants and Davis whc were to keep records of beeves 30
slaughtered. All stockmen cheerfully signed the agreeuwent,
except ¥, S. Jones who refused upon the grounds that he was
unwilling to allow any person to take his becves unless he
was along to point them out.:jz3

This relief policy was continued throughout the war.
Janusry 1, 1865, the €ounty Court ordered Chief Justice
C. H. Kendall to contract for &nd receive from tax payers
a sufficient amount of wcod, corn, ieal, ¢nd potatoes, und
other produce for support of soldiers' families and to re-

ceipt for same in vpayment of the special county tax. The

following rates were allowed:

Corn per bushel---eecccmcccccaoao ¢ .40
Pork on foot=--===c-ccccccccccccaaxa .05
Pork per pound-==w-eececccceccncacaaxn .06
BACON==mm=mmmemmmm—— e m e .123%
Beef on foot perhead=-=--==-c----- 10.00
Beef per pounde===---cecccceccccc—c- .0334
J/ood DpET COrde=e===--ec-cccccccc—cca- 3.00

It was in this manner that Fort Bend County supported
the families of her men who enlisted in military service.
The records of the Adjutant General's office of Texas,

which contained the original muster rolls, were destroyed

33 Ibid., (April 29, 1864), pages not numbered.

34 Ibid., (January 1, 1865), Dpages not numbered.
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in the burning of the Capitol in 1888. There are therefore
no available records to show how meny rien frou Fort Bend
went to the Civil Var., It has been estimated, however, thut
ninety per cent of those between sixteen and fifty were
either in the actual service or some auxiliary war work.

One of the most distinguichea ¢f the Texas regiments
was the Eightieth Texas, better known zs "Terry's Texas
Rangers"., Its first cclonel, BeujJ.nin F, Terry of Fort
Bend County, was killed at #Woodsonville, necr Bowling
Green, Kentucky, in the fzll of 1861.

while their husbands went to serve in the crwy, the
women of Fort Bend County took charge of &ll affairs both
in the home and on the farm. With the assistance of the

slaves, life continued much as usual. Crops were raised

and gathered, and both Negroes and whites were fed and clothed.

In addition, the women knitted, masde gurments, and filled

boxes to be sent to the soldiers,°
In a communication to Mrs., T. J. Hunter, President of

the Ladies Aid Society of Fort Bend County, dated January

26, 1863, the Second Regiment of Texas Volunteers give thanks

for forty-four pairs of woolen socks =nd threc woolen neck-

ties. Other contributions were requested to be left uat J.

W, House's store to be forwarded.36

35 TUnited Daughters of the Confederacy, Texus Division,
Directory, 1922, p. 118.

36 H. E. Bolton and E. C. Barker, «ith the Makers of Texsas,
p. 306, quoting from the Tri-ieekly Telegraph.
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Responding to this spirit of loyalty, on larch 16,
1864, in Richmond, the Fort Bend County soldiers pledged
that as members of Compeny A, Fyron's Regiment, they would
reénlist for the war, "regardless of the duration or con-
sequences”, and that "they would never lay down urms while
a foe found cshelter vithin the Southern Border™. . . but
would protect the country for “the good that may result to
unborn generations and for liberty =nd freedom all over the
world" .27

‘then news ceme of Lee's capitulaetion in april, 1865,
the people of Fort Bend were in favor of fighting on. =
mass metting was held at Richmond in which resolutions were
passed, in substance as follows: That under no circumstances,
and in no event woull the people submit to their dominating
end perfidlous enemies, who have "placed an ocean of blocod
betwecn us which cz2n never be crossed or dried". They called
upon the 80,000 soldiers west of the liississi-pi to stand
firm, .nd offered to equip 30,000 Negrce<s "who", the reso-
lution said, "with the aid of Cod, Kirby Smith and General

Magruder, would hold Texus" .93

37 News 3tory, "Fort Bend County Letter™, The Houston Tri-
.eckly News, vol. XXII, (March 23, 1864), p. 4.

38 C. R. ‘hcorton, History of Fort Bend County, p. 179,
quoted from the ‘eckly Constitution, augusta, Georgisa,
(June 7, 1865).
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The gsllent soldiers of Fort Bend County had fought
for the "lost Cnuse". Nany of them lived to see the day,
however, when they vere glad they could tske "Cld Glory"
tc their hearts again. 3igain on the field of battls, Fort
Bend County boys aere toduay proving their right to the in-

heritance of "honor and velor".

Conditions after the ./z=r, The Southern Jonfederacy h.d gone

down in defeat. Gencruzl Gordon Grenger landed in Galveston
with a Federsl .rmy June 19, 1865, On that duy he issued a
proclamation freeing the sluves in Texas. The Federal occu-
pation of the State was at last a reeality, anc & company of
Union soldélers was stationed at Ricnmond. The Negroes, no
longer under restraint, appeared in crowes on the strects
at the county s3eat singing:

Lincolin rode the big black horse;

Davis rode the mule.

Ilincoln wuz de noblema

.nd Davis wuz de focol!

Fort Bend County was bankruot. 3he faced =zn overturn-
ing of her economic system. Unlortunetely the slaves viere
frced orior to the beginning of the artton nicking season.
This fact created a new labor problem for the pl-ntati.n

owners who had denended entirely upon slave labor for the

oroduction of their crops. Vhenever they could get them,

39 Recelled by Yiss lavinia Feris of Richmond, Texas, who
was interviewed June 17, 1l:4:2.
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former masters continued to use the Negroes elther as day
laborers or as sherecroppers.

However, the newly freed lMegroes were nov «s inaus-
trious as they had been in slavery times. Dr. George Feris
describes the new system of labor thus:

In a great majority ol instances the Negroes

have vicrked listlessly =nd to kill tire instead

of grass end veeds. . . The experiment of white

labor has not been tried here, Great dissatis-

faction 1s expressed by the planters enc but few

would try the §egroes znother year 1if they could

do otherwise.?

The liverated slaves continued under the protection of
the Freedwen's Buresu. The people of the county, aithough
defeated in buttle, had not lost their spirits and the
clashes between the Federsl officers and the citizens only
ended when the Buirezu's Commissioner was forced to leave
the county. william H. Rock, Sub-aAssistent Commissioner of the
Bureau of Refugeces, I'reedmen and Abundoned lands, lived in
the county about two und one-half years, during which time
he weas regarded vith favor by necrly all the citizens. 1In
their juagment, he had made a better officer than they had

expectea. It was regretteda thut his official duties com-

pelled him to as-:ociate with freedmen to the exclusion of

40 Mason J. Brewtr, Negro Legislators of Texas, pp. 3-10,

41 George Feris, "Tort Bend County", Texses Almunac and
State Industrial Guide, 1865, p. 1l03.
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whites. when the Bureau collapsed, however, Rock got into
an altercation with Towm Sherard, & Iegro, following which
he quietly left the community, leaving many debts due both
whites and blacks.42

Trcouble with the Freeduen's Bureau, clashes between
the federal offices and county officiuls, and the activities
of the Ku Klux Klan after the war, would constitute a sepa-
rate chapter. It 1s enough to say that the county govern-
ment wes under the control of the Negro vote until the "Jay-
bird association" was formed in 1888.

Though recovery cawe slowly, former slsve holders ad-
Justed themselves eventuelly tc free lebor, znd the Negro

acquired scme notiorn of responsibility.

The Spanish American ./ar. «hen, in 1898, the United States

declared war against Spain, Fort Bend County again sus-
tained her reputation for going to the defense of the country.
hen President Willium YcKinley issued a call for voluntecrs,
numerous young men of Fort Bend County proved their loyalty
to the aAmerican flag and joined the companies being formed

in Houston. They became members of the First Texas Volunteer
Cavalry and trained at Fort Mebry and Fort Sam Houston.

Among them were Major A. E. Peareson, Sargeant Major

—

42 GC. H. Kendall, "A True History of the Last Ku Klux Out-
rage at Richmond", Houston Deily Times, vol. IV,
(January 14, 1869), p. 2.
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R. L. Ranson, Privates Henry Ransom, Donald Robinson, J.
Irving Nichols @and W. H. Davis. The Fort Bend County men,
with the exception of Henry Rensom,did not reach the scene
of war due to its short dursation. . H. Davis is the only
living veteran. He recalls that there were other Fort Bend
County men who Joined the First and Second Texas Infantry,

but no county records were kept and no data are available.43

The i#orld #War 1., V‘hen the war began in 1914, nmost of the

Fort Bend County people were neutral in sentiment. They
cnly hoped it would not lsst long. Gradually, popular feel-
ing begen to turn aguinst the Central Powers, especially
Germany, and this feeling grew so intense that by the begin-
ning of 1917 the greater purt of the people wvere iu favor

of our entrunce into the wer. The citizens of Fort Bend
County vere never indifferent to the general demends made
upon them by the conflict after the United States became
directly involved. They did their part in contributing men
and money. In addition to the many called into service
thrcugh the selective draft, several hundred voluntarily
Joined the navy, the azrmy, or the air corps. No separate
companies viere formed of Fort Bend County soldiers; they wcre
scattered among regiments and divisions., Their military records

are available at any time and will become more complete yeer

43 Infcrmation or letter, «. H. Davis, Big Springs, Texas,
(June 28, 1942).
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after yeay. Quite the opposite is true of the records of
the work done at home by those wiio did not enter the crued
forces. Records have been destroyed, and newspupers &are
incomnletc, so thet it is impossible to prepure a complete
account of any of the war time uctivities. However, from
the dey thz=t wer was declared, TFort Bend County begen to
orgenize for work.

In accordance with the¢ Zelective Draft Act, Fort Bend
County's draft board wss set up, composed of G, C. Bsker,
Jr., John !, MMoore, snd Dr. J. R. Lay, sall of Richmond. 44
Moore resigned =nd R. A. Hogan took his place; Dr. Lay re-
signed and Dr. J. 5. Yates of Rosenberg took his »lace.
br. J. C. Johnson of Richmond was very cooperative in assist-
ing with examinations of the draftees. 4D

The Fort Bend County Council of Defense was organized,
July 23, 1917, at a meeting held at the courthouse. Mem-
bers choseun were: D. R. Peareson, A. P. George, .and J. W,
Kovar, Richmoad; 3am Poorman, Katy; C. .&. Chernoskey and
C. K. Lee, Rosenberg; E. . Huggins, Fulshesr; lm. Robinson,
Missourd Clty.+®

6

44 News item, "Texas ILxemption Bosrd anrounced", The nouston
Post, vol. ¥XXI, (June 28, 1917), p. S.

4% Interview, G, C. Baker of Richmond, March 3, 1942,

46 Interview, D. R. Pearccon, Richmond, March 3, 1942.
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On February 1£, 1613, u« kKilitury cowmittee of the
Council of Lefense composed of C. K, Lea, =2, J. winston,
D. R. Peareson, and .. F. George nuppeared before the Com-
missioner's Court to obtain funds for county protection.
The Court set ngide 2,500 d the generwl funa to buy 100
Winchester ifles, 3N0-20 nodel, 1894, together with belts
and 15,000 rounds of ammunition.47

Jeptenpber 8, 1913, fourteen worien of the county res-
ponded to the call sent out by the County Chuirman of the
Council of Defense at the request of the governor, iavit-
ing thc patriotiec wcnen of the county to meet st the court-
house. &t the meeting which ensuea, &n auxiiliery orguniza-
tion was perfectcd to work in conjunction with the Fort
Bend County vouncll of Defense. The foilowing members were
elected to office:

Mrs, ., J. lcKay of Rosenberg, Chairman

¥rs., J. C. Johnscn of Kichmond, Vice Chairman

Mrs., will Wade of Tulshear, 3econd Vice Chairman
Mrs. G, Cloeckner of Rosenberg, Secretary-Treasurer

43
At this time, under instructions from the State Council

of Defense, the Fort Bend County Council of Defense organi-

zed a Comuunity Council of Defense in every school district.

It was deterr.ined, said those responsible for the meeting,

47 Minutes, Commissioners' Court, Book M, p. 387.

48 Necws iten, "Women's Committee has Been Organized™, The

Rosenberg Hersald, Vol VI, (3<ptember i, 1318), p. 5.
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"to do what the Kaiser had insisted could rot be done in
this country, to so thoroughly organize the people thuv
they would be just ss efficient in war work as the wil:tis
eand that each individual will reslize the imnortance of
each one's part as a wer worker."49 Thereafter all kinds
of wer work was carried on through the couperation of the
Community Councils of Defense., They automatically dis-
solved when the wer ended.

By September, 1918, lLegal Advisory Boards were estab-
lished whe assistec registrants to enswer their guestion-
naires., They were comrosed of the following citizens:

At Richmond: V. L. Davidson, F. K. C. Fenn, C. Minkwitz,

E. D. Bel1l, J. D, Newell, T. Hannen, £, C, Farmer, Toia Darst,
J. M. Gibson, V. J. ¥cFarlane, E. P. Darst, Dr. R. Peareson.
At Simonton: H. M. Mitchell, T. L. Xullins, T. J. Hicks.

At Rosenberg: E. E. Chernosky, E. 0. Schulz, F. X, Joerger,
Alvin Downen, lee Meysr, G. T. Snedecor, a. L., Pleak.

At Sugar land: A, M. waugh, S. G. Deatheridge, C. A. Dirks,
vo T, Eldrige, Jr. At Missouri City: Z. R. Robinson, A. J.
Adams. At Beasley: M. L. Speed, George B. Hutchings.

At Katy: J. E. Cobiness, L. C. Roberts, B. a2, Everts, At
Orchard: Fred Kemp, ..ndrew Quinn, will Wooster. At Need-
ville: Rudoloh Baca, Ed Reisinger, Ben Geick, C. F. Zick,

We J, Otto. At Fairchilds: Frank Welenta, Stephen Vacek.

49 News iten, "Community Councils of Defense Formed", The
Rosenberg Hersld, vol. VI, (September 13, 1918), p. 4.




At Guy: A. J. Horton, 3. E. Beerd. At Thompson: J. V.
Hampil, W, H. Herzog. At Clodine: Joe Terrnus. 4t Booth:
T. G. Speed, . I. Booth. At Fulshecr: E. M. Euggins,
John lMayes, W, J. %ade., =t Krasna: ©B. J. Dusek, Joe
Grigar.so

The Fort Bend County chapter of the -mericar ked Cross
was organized on Mey £, 1617, by ¥Wm. M. Baxter, WKansger of
the Midwestern Division. The following officers were elected:
Judge C. H. Chernnsky, Chairman; Mrs. J. C. Johnson, Vice-
Chairmsn; *rs, W. H., Hinson, Secretary; T. ai. ‘7essendorff,
Treasurer; D. R. Pesareson, Finence Chairman; Mrs. Jennie
Wessendorff, Chairman of Producticn; iirs. Helen Farmer,
Chairmanr of Surezicz2l Dressings; Mrs. F., M, 0. Fenn, Chair-
man of Publicity.51

The Fort Bend County Red Cross Chapter secured the ser-
vices of Miss Jene Bleisdell ns 3ecretary of the Socisl 3Ser-
vice vork in 3September, 1919. 3he held this position for
over = year.52

E. A, Peden of Houston, Fcod Administrator for Texas,

perfected his permanent organization in Junuary, 1913 with

county food administrztors in each county in the Ztate. W.

850 mnouncement, "lLegal .dvisory Boerd", The Rosenberg
Heruld, vol. VI, (September 27, 1918), p. 1.

81 Interview, Mrs. . H. Hinson, Richmond, (April 11, 1941).

528 News item, "Red Cpos: News", The Rosenberg Herald, vol.
VII, (September 19, 1919), p. 6.
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J. Meininger of Rosenberg was appointed for Fort Bend Coun-
ty. Throuch his efforts the county wes s2id to have been
the firet in the United States to give up the use of flour
when the country was called upon to save food for the sol-
dlers.

"ILiberty Day" in 1918 was not observed ss a hollday
in Rosenber~. Business wcs pushod with the usuzl vigor
until 5:30 P, M., when without any speech making, a car
which vras decorated with various unpropriate nottoes vias
loaded with flour by the Rosenberg high schouol boys. Two
days loter the car reached Camp logan at houston and was
received. by Lieutenant Chas. 3talsburg in charge of Bakery
Compsny lumber 24, It was estimated that 150,000 barrels
of fiour was sent to =rmy camps thut duy from Fort Bend
County.

When Food . dministrntor Peden called for assistcnce in
rrobing the high cost of living in 1919, he received his
first response fros Fort Bend County. w. J. Meininger of
Rosenberg, County Food ..dministrator, sent in the n=mes of
his nrice determining committec which became the first to
be announced in the state., It was composed of R. F. Ransom
and ¥rs, T. B, Vessendorff of Richuwond; W. J. Otto of Need-

ville; J. L. Zuber, Abe Duily, Chas. Hollman, Tom Colemsn,

c& News 1tem, "Tort Bend Sends Flour", The Rosenberg Her-
aid, Voi. V, (Kay 3, 1918), p. 1l.
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‘ _ : 54
A. a. Chernosky, and ¥rs, Lee H, ieyer of Rocenberg.

The people of Fort Send Ccunty .t @1l financial de-
runds pluced upon them uvceause of the wzr. Five Liberty
Loan Drives verc conducted in Fort Bend Zounty during the

war years and in cach inst.nce the quota assigncd the coun-
55

-

ty was qvcr~:ubscribcd. Chas. Lea waee County Chairmun,
“hen asked to subscrite §537,160 1in wWer Javing Stun)s,
they cvbrerited $4DC,®OO.56
During the war there were many azeni-cfficicl orzzani-
zations engaged in providing comforts nd convenicnces for
the 30ldiers in the c mps in the United 3Ststes und adroad.
In the £211 of 1913, Tow B. Darst v i3 County Chairmazn of
the 3alvation ‘rmy work in Fort Bend CTounty. Ec raised the
county's ouots of 3500.57
when ths 22311 went cut in 1919 for mcney to support
French crphans, Fort Bend Ccunty collected &70%., This was
sent to the authoriticz by Mrs., U. R. Pearcson, County

Chzirmcn for that '.ork.58

o

54 announcement, "Fort Bend .gain Fir i State to .answer
Call", The Rosenberg Herald, vol. VII, (august £2,
191G), Ds s

55 News itemn, "Reports of the Tifth Iibverty Ioun", The Ro-
senberg Herald, vol. VI, ( May 16, 1¢19), p. 5.

56 Nevis item, "Over the Top Aguin", Jobid., (July 5, 1918),p.1.

57 UYews item, "about that 3alvation ;rmy

uotu", The Ros-n-
bers Herald, vel. VII, (July 11, 1219), ».

2.

58 News item, "French Orphsns", The Houston Post, vol. XXXIIT,

(Junuury 5, 1919), o. S.
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Armistice Celebration, November 11, 1918, was a red-

letter d=y in Fort Bend County. ‘‘hen word of the .rmis-
tice was received W. C, Czigan of the Rosenberg Ice &and
Light Company immediately touched the siren fire whistle
and petriotic citizens caught the whistle's meaning zand
rushed to Main Street. Flags were unfurled, a holiday wus
declared. Every place of business wus closed and the peo-
ple assembled around a guickly improvised speczker's stand
occupied by Mayor Taylor Ray, Reverend John Garret, Judge
J. C. Chernosky, County .ittorney F. X. Jcerger, and Churls
Lea. Each made slort talks. Schad children attended in
a body =2nd opened the exercises by singing ".merica”". The
Rosenberg band played patriotic numbers. The duy was given
to appropriate recognition of the close of the long period
of war.59

The citizens in Richmond likeisise celebrated the duy.
Every store closed, a big pstriotic parade hesded by white
and Negro school children followed by autos with horns blow-
ing, marched through the streets to the shrill cry of whis-
tles und the ringing of bells. The people gathered at the
high school suditorium where a patriotic meeting was held.
Judge D. R., Peareson and Reverend F. T. Clark were speakers.

The Ladies auxili-ry of the Lpiscopal Church hela a prayer

59 News story, "The Dawn of Peace"™, The Rosenberg Herald,
vol. VI, (November 15, 1918), p. 1.
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service et Calvary church and et night a thanksgiving pray-

er service of all creeds was held at the lethodist Church.so

American Legion Post. On Friday night, January 23, 1931,

at the courthouse in Richmond, there was a meecting of Legion-
aires of Fort Bend County for the purpose of electing offi-
cers for the newly organized Post known as the Fort Bend
County Fost, Number 271, Twenty-nine men became charter
members., Sam Nordhousen of Richmond was uncnimously elected
as Commender. Other officers elected were: A. Reynolds,
Ad jutent; H. #¥. Gabitsch, Service Officer; H. T. liorgan,
Chaplein; E. O. Bender, Liaison; a. Kohutek, Sargemnt-at-
Arms; T, Strewple, Historian. In 1919 there was a Legion
Post in the county named for Quentin Roosevelt, but it
disbanded due to lack of interest.el

The Fost now hus a membership of efghty-six men. In
1936 land was leased froum the 5State and a $1,000 "Legion
Hut"™ was built on a triangular piece of ground west of
Rosenberg where the three highways weet. The building is &
twenty-four foot by thirty-six foot log cabin. The legion-
aires furnished the labor and Ted Strempcl scted as fore-

. 62
ILan.

60 News story, "Richmond Celebrates All Day", The Houston
Post, vol. ¥XXXII, (November 12, 1918), p. 15.

61 News item, "American Legion Post Is Organized™, The
Texss Couaster, vol. XXVI, (January 30, 1931), p. l.

62 News item, "New Home of ~merican Post to Be Dedicated"
The Rosenberg Herald, vol. XLIII, (September 3, 19563,
Do i
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American Legion Auxilisry, In May, 1931, Lirs, NMartha

Woods of Houston assisted in organizing a Legion Auxiliary
of fourteen churter members when the following officcers
were elected: 1Yrs, E., O, Bender, President; lirs. H. Y.
Roddy, Zecretary-Treasurer; lrs, Ted Strempel, 3Sargeant=-
at-Armns; Mrs. H, ii. Gabitzsch, First Vice President; krs,
W. Danklefs, Chaplain; XNiss Marie 3Schultze, Historien.%®
The auxiliary is active in all civic and war work and
stresses rehabiliation. It gives an honor medsl to the

outstanding students in the affiliated schools of the

county each year,

63 News item, "Auxiliery to smerican legion Is Orgunized”,
The Texes Coaster, vol. XXXVI, (lay 1, 1931), p. 1.




CHAPTER V
DEVELOPMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

A major problem during the early history of Fort
Bend County was that of transportation. The people had
the alternative of a water route by way of the Brazos
River to Brazoria and Galveston or an overlend trip to

Houston.

River Navigation. Nrs. Dilue Harris tells that in June,

1836, her father and other men who had cotton on the banks
of the Brazos built a flat-boat to ship their cotton to
Brazoria. She also writes how planters on both sides of
the river assembled cotton at William Little's plantation
where the steamboat, "Yellowstone," would come for it, and
how on other occasions cotton was taken on rafts to Brazoria.l

By 1840 much interest was being taeken in establishing
regular steamboet trips on the Brazos. The Telescope of
April 4, 1840, prints the following:

Representatives of owners of the British ship

"Ironsides™ now lying at Galveston visited Rich-

mond on Thursday to establish a steamboat to run

from Galveston to Groce's Retreat on the Brazos.
The boat is to be made of iron, to draw only iwo

1 ¥rs., Dilue Harris, "Reminiscences", The quarterly,
Texas Stete EHistorical Association, Vol. IV,
(Jenuary, 1901), p. 179.
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feet of water with a full cuargo--200 bales of

cotton, Mr. Powell will own ore-half himself;

the other one-half to be disposed of in shares

of $500 each, limited to fifteen.2

In 1843 a Houston paper states:

The steamboat "Lustang"” is now running as a

regular packet between ﬁashington agd Gulves-

ton, end makes trips twice a month.

Several months later this same paper cited the ad-
vantages of a direct road from Houston to the Brazos River.
It pointed out that in wet weather the produce had to be
sent to Galveston by steamboat at a cost of from one to
two dollars per hundred pounds. The increased freight
charge resulted in an increased cost for the com.odities
delivered in Houston. The price of butter was increased
from seven and ten cents a pound to thirty-five and forty
cents, a pound; corn that had been selling for thirty cents
a bushel was raised to a dollar; potatoes that were thirty
cents were seventy-five cents per bushel; beef that formerly
sold for two cents per pound was four cc-nts.4

Since this newspaper article seemed to have little
effect on the trade to Galveston further criticism was con-

tinued in 1848, Houston merchants sent dilapidated steam-

boats into the Brazos River and sallowed them to siik in order

2 YNews item, Telescove, Vol. II, (April 4, 1840), p. 2.
3 News item, The Telesraph, Vol. VIII, (kMarch 2y, 1843), p.3.

4 News item, "New Road", Telegraph and Texas Register,
Vol. VIII, (November 1, 184c), D. 2.
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to prevent n-avigation of the river. & unanimous decla-
ration against such abuses was published in the paper at
Vashington, Texas, =nd was signed by citizens of thirteen
counties btordering the Brazos. Fort Bend County was a
signer of this declaration.5

The trade which had been carried on by stesmboat to
Galveston suffered with the low stage of the river in 1851.
A communicetion from an uuakrovn Richmond correspondent
stated that for two months the steamers, "Brazos" and "ii#sh-
ington", were laid up z2nd that Richmond was cut off from
all water conrunication for the present.

The State legislature took matters in hand and pas.ed
acts aspproved on August 1, end 2%, 1856, which appropri-
ated the sum of £50,000 for improving the navigation of the
Brazos River.’ On November 19, 1856, Thouss B. Howard and
249 other Fort Bend citizens petitioned the Commissioners
Court to aopropriate its pro ruta share of $3125 which woula
be sdded to the States =ppropriation in clesning out the

Brazos., The court grznted the request and work began in

1857.5

5 "A Declaration of Protest", The Texas xanger and Brazos
Guard, vol. II, (Januery 16, 1849), p. 21

6 News item, "Richmond", Gulveston i/eekly News, vol. VIII,
(September 2, 18513, D. 2o

7 H. N. P. Gammel, Laws of Texas, vol. IV, pp. 427-431;
464-4056,

8 lMinutes, Commissioners Court, Book A, pp. 124-125.
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The boat landings in Fort Bend County were given in
1857 as Big Creek, #Waters, Richmond, Gaston, and Randon.
Most of these were plantation landings.g

The use of steamboats must have been discontinued by
1895, according to a Richmond reporter who stated:

There is enough water to float a steamboat, but
there is no boat. The "Belle Sulphur", liajor
Cartwel's boat, is still up the river never hav-
ing made a trip. These attempts to prove the
Brazos susceptable to profitable navigation are
likely to result only in great cost to the ex-
perimenters. §6azos navigation has obviously got
the nightmare,

Freighting and Highways. While many citizens were using

the water route to Brazoria and Galveston, other citizens
were "waggoning" snd "freighting™ overland to Houston.

This business of freighting began in early colonial days
end reached considerable proportions during the period of
the Republic and early statehoocd. Regular routcs were tra-
versed by ox-teams periodiczlly. Ferries were used instead
of bridges. John V. Morton, James lI, Thompson and Pascal
P. Borden were licensed to keep the first ferries at Rich-
mond, Thompson Crossing, and Bordentown, respectively. The

license fee was fifteen dollars for a year.ll

9 D. E. E. Braman, Information about Texas, p. 164.

10 Editoriels, "Richmond, Tri-iieekly Telegraph, vol. I§¥,
(February 9, 1895), p. 3.

11 Information obtained from License Record, Book A.,
(1838), p. 1, County Clerk's offrice.
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The ferries were probably cuble affairs, since that
was the kind usually operated in those days. The following
schedule of prices was used in Fort Bend County in 1848:

For each 4 wheel carriage, laden, 50¢ per whecl,

For each 2 wheel carriazge, laden, 50¢ per wheel,

For each 4 wheel curriage, unluden, 25¢ per wheel,

For each 4 wheel pleasure carriuge, 25¢ per wheel,

For each 2 wheel pleasure c¢ rrizge, 257 per vheel,

For each 4 wheel Deesrborn wagon, loaded, 25¢ per wheel,

For each 4 whecl Dearborn wugon, unloaded, 1l2#¢ per whecl.

For each man end horse, 257.

For ench lone man, 12¢.

For each separate horse or ox, l2¢.

For asll unbroken cuttle, 6i¢ per head.

For all shecp, hogs, goets, 2¢ per head.

It was the duty of the ferrymun to cross a2ll persons
applying to him at 811 times between daylight and nine
o'clock in the evening, or between daylight und dark when
driftwood was running. Vthen he crossed after dark, the
price was "conventionzl", which usually mesnt double ferri-
age between dark snd nine o'clock.12

The Cld Richmond Roed which turned off from South Lain
Street of thet town c:rrled the traffic of Fort Bend County
and the Brazos "bottoms" across the Colorado River to San
fntonio end other noints on the frontier,

Roads were kept in repair by overseers who were ap-
pointed by the County Court. Lvery man between the ages of
twenty-one and sixty yeurs wss required to do his shure cf

work or hire a substitute.l3

12 lMinutes, County Court, Book 4, p. 3.

13 Interview, W, L. Nesbitt, Columbus, Texas, May 2, 1942,
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To meet the needs of the State farus of Fort Bend
County, Captain &, J. (Buck) Flanesgan, the msnager of
Centrel-Halem State Farm, built =2 bridge across the
Brazos River at a cost of only fifty cents in woney.
This smeall =mount was spent for builing wire. Convicts
cut the timber for the bridge znd the wire was used to
tie it together. The bridge was used to haul fire wood

from the forest on the west bank of the river to the tree-

less prison ferm on the euast vank, 14 REN

The produce of Fort Bend County found a ready market
with the Eouston merchents, Ox wegons vwended their toll-
some way to its marts. Jesse Ziegler describes the scenes
which changed only slightly until wagon freighting gave
way tc railroads:

They ceme in great caraveans, winding into the city
like a long snuake, comnosed not infreuuently of

2 hundred or more wagons drawn by long teums of
huge, unwieldly oxen, or nulti-spans of mules.

The wagons vere lozaded according to the product

cf the given cormunity: cotton, hides, beeswax,
plantation molusses, sugar cane, etc. The old
Kentucky rifle was a fixture across the knee of
the driver; the men who tramped uzlongside the oxen
carried their pistols and bowie knives for hunting
elong the way. By the time the wagons arrived in
Houston, they wcre festooned with wild turkeys,
squirrels, rabbits, venison, und occuasionelly e
black bear. Always there iruileq along the in-
eviteble long eured hound.+d

14 Dick Vaughn, "The Land of Sugur", The Houston Post,
Vol. XXIII, (November 21, 1933), p. l1l6.

15 Jesse Ziegler, ave of the Gulf, pp. 10-11.
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Every town hed its "wagon yurd" where travelers
might leave their covered wagons ..ad live stock to be

cared for, or if they preferred they might make cwmp on

the open prairie.

During the last years of the Republic and the first
years of early statehood, stage coaches ran with sowe 1eg-
ularity between the most important cities. The stage
left Houston for Richmond every Monday morning sand for the
return trip it left Richmond every Saturdsy morning. The
fare each wsy was §7.00, all baggsge over twenty-five pounds
being charged for at the rete of five cents per pound.

48 far back as 1836, the Vongress of the Republic of
Texas passed a law making it the duty of the Commissioners
Courts to open public roads, designating them us Tirst,
second, or third clsss. These county roads were kept up
by the men who lived nezr them, an overseer being sppointed
to supervise such work. The ezarly roads in Fort Bend County
were laid out by the Comwissiomers in each precinet, =nd
"worked" by the citizens.l6 This plun weas continued until
1909 when an act by a special sessicn of the Legisleture
permitied subdivisiovns of the State to issue bonds for high-
way building and road iuﬁrovement.l7 Under this law road

precinets were laid cut in Fort 3Send County. PFPractically

16 iiinutes of the County Jourt, Book A, p. B.

17 Revised Civil Statues of S:ate of Texas, vol. 1, 1925,
p. 233.
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all of the roads were of what wes known w3 ssnd-cley con-
struction. This type of road becuwme impossible during

wet weather. The increase in the use of the motor ve-
hicle, ho.cver, ccused the building of good highways and
roads In Fort Bend County. Four dcsigneted Ztate high-
ways crcess the county. Eighway Number 343, known as the
"0ld 3panish Trail", running from the Harris County line

at sissourl City to the ‘harton County line at Lkast Bernard,
is an cighteen foot concrete road.

Highway Number 36, running from Rosenberg to the sus-
tin County line following the 3anta Fe Railroad through
Orchard to the Brazos iver is a hard surface road of us-
phalt. This roud which also runs 3south from losendberg to
Needville and the Brazoria Courty line at Damon is a paved
road.

Highwuy Number 59, running rron Rosenterg to the Whar-
ton County line through Beasley and Kendleton is a paved
road.

LIighway Number 19, running frow ..lmedu, Harris county,
to =rcola in Fort Bend County, perullels the International-
Great Yorthern-Columbia Tup-Railroac through Juliff, con-
tinuing into Brazoriu County.

Highwsy Number 3, beginzing at Galveston enters Fort
Bend County at ircola and connectis3 with Hizhwsy Number 343

one mile above Sugar Land. This i3 z paved rosd.
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In additiou to these highways the cocunty has un e-
laborate system of all-weather roads,rendering accessible
almost any populated portion of the county. among them are

the following:

Richmond -Thimpson=--=-=====v==- 30 miles, paved
Richmond=-Fulsheir-=e=eeecececce=- 13 miles, semi-hard surface
Richmond-Clodine~===wemcecece= 14 miles, hard surface
Richmond-Gaston-=====ecececeea- 12 miles, well graded
Richmond~-3imonton--===cecee=- 20 miles, semi-hard surface
Rosenberg=Fulsheer----e==e-c- 12 niles, gravel
Simonton-0Orcharde--c=ceceea-- 4 miles, semi-hard suiguce
Stafford-Deialt-=-emmmenaa--= 5 miles3, hard surface

The bus routes through Fort Bend County follow, in most
cases, the designated highways. The Greyhound Buses from
Houston to San :intonio pass through the county on Highway
Number 343. The Bowen Bus line from Rosenberg to Corpus
Christil uses Highway 36 in the county.

A permit to operate a bus line from Rosenberg to Thomp-
son was granted to K. L. Copeland on March 26, 1942, in order
that defense vorkmen who live in Rosenberg would have safe
transportation to Thompson. This line began operation april
5, 1942.%°
As the population increased and there was more farm

produce to market and more materials were needed in the in-

terior, the building of the railroads largely solved the

18 Information was obtained from a large road map made
for the County by Haile and MeClendon, Houston, Texas.

1¢ News item, "R. R. Com. Report on Bus lLine", The Rosen-
berg Herald, vol. XLVIII, (April 3, 1942), p. 1.
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problem of trensportaticn of that day.

Railroeds. To understand the development of the railroads
in Fort Bend County it is necessary to review the early
history of this industry in the state.

The railroad history of Texas began with the history
of the Republic. The first Congress, which met in the fall
of 1836, launched the Texas Rallrosd, Navigation and Bank-
ing Company, but the stock for this company was never sold.
Four years later the Harrisburg and Brazos Railroad was
started by Andrew Briscoe, who let a contract for three thou-
gand ties and advertised for laborers in an iscue of a Hous-
ton paper.zO Briscoe continued to work at the project un-
til March, 1841, when he had to abandon it on account of the
threatened lexican invasion.

The first successful attempt at railroad construction
was made by Sidney Sherman, who obtained a charter for the
Buffalo Bayou, Brazos and Colorado Railroad in February,
1850, and began construction in the spring of 1851.‘?'l The
contract for grading the section to the Brazocs Eiver was

awarded to W, J. Kyle and Frank Terry, sugar and cotton

planters of Oyster Creek in Fort Bend County.22 This road,

20 Advertisement, "Wanted to Hire", lMorning Star, vol. 1,
(May 16, 1840), p. 1.

21 P. Briscoe, "The First Rallroad in Texas™, Southwestern
Historical Quarterly, vol. VII, (April, 1904), p. 281.

22 S. G. Reed, The History of Texas Reilroads, p. 57.



1056

extending westward frow Herrisburg, reachcd 3tafford's
Point in Fort Bend County in 1833. On the day of the cr-
rival of the first train, hundreds of peouple gubiiered there
for a barbecue and celebration. The "General Sheruman", a

small lccomotive, made 1ts Tirst scheduled run September 7,

1855.43 Fassenger carg were street cars that had seen ser-
vice in Boston psrior to 1352 and which were adapted to the
new service on this frontier railroad. ZIsasch car had but
four wheels and seated about twenty persons.

Service was insuszurated on 3eptember 7, 1855. The
service was not as regular as that of today, but the company
advertised the following schedule:

New Route from Galveston to Fort Bend, Yhsrton

and Colorado Counties viz Steamer., Railway, und
3tage, ©On and aftsr Wednesdsy, Septexzber 7, 1853,
and each succeeding "Wednesday and Saturday until
further notice cars with passengers and freight
will leave Harrisburg for 3tafford's Poirnt, Fort
Bend County .t 9 o'clock and returning lesve Staf-
ford's Point at 12 o'clock. Fassengers for the
west leaving Gelveston by steeawers Tuesdsy «=nd Fri-
day cveninga reach Harrisburg gt 10 o'clock p. w.,
stop overnight snd reach Ilichmond in time for din-
ner next dey. Pasceengers for hHouston and Galves-
tou lesving Richmond at 3 a.u. resch Harrisburg

in sezson for dirner snd Galveston Steemer.<4

23 P. Briscoe, op. cit., p. 282.

24 sAdvertisement, "RXeilroad Notice™, The Galveston Nexs,
vol. ¥, (Septeaber 2, 1353), p. 4.
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By the lest of 1355 the B, 3. B, and C. Rallro=d
had reached the east bank of the Bruzos River, opposite
Richmond, a totsl distance of thirty-two wiles. The Com-
peny built & low pilc bridge over the stream, Just six
fect above the low water level., Thiz bridgc wus probably
one of the 1:0st unique in the history of ruilroud build-
ing. & fifty foot opening was left to zllow steumboats
to pass through the bridge. This opening was covered by
a spen which rested on a flat toat, anchored to the rest
of the bridge by log chuins, so that the spun could be
flosted to one side whén it was desired tc open the bridge.
The officials believed that in case of high wuter, drift-
wood would float over the low bridge.

Beceuse the bridge was lower than the river bank, it
was approached on either side by a steep incline. For a
train to succeed in crossing the bridge under its own power
it was necessary for it to hit the bridge =t high speed
so as to be able to get up the hill on the ophosite side,
The gereral practice weas to ruam the trein up to the be-
ginning of the incline =nd then offer the passengers the
privilege of staying with the truin or getting out =nd be-
ing ferried scross. This mskeskift bridge was replaced in

2
1870 by & more substantiel structure. @

25 DNewa story, "West's Rallroad Elstory EBegan at harris-
burg lLate in 18527, The Houston Chronicle, vol. XXXVI,

(April 19, 1936), p. 30.
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Sometimes the cars "tock s stimpede, rushed down the
inclined plapme, :néd plunged into the river”. This heppened
once when two cers were lezded with thirty bales of cotton

and a lurge numbcr of hides The cottcen was recovered but

the hildcs were lo~‘:t.26

In additicn to h:iving the first railroad, the first
train wreck in Texas occeurred iz Fort Rend County on Decem-
ber 15, 1856, when, as 1t wss staoted:

The curs cn the Harrisburg Road failed to con-

nect with the Houston trein Monday for the first

tine. It uopear:s that by scme accident, the csars

viere throun off the track =2t Kyle and Terry's pluce

and wvere detuined there until yesterdav, evening

only erriving at Harrisburg after derk.®

On November 17, 1858, the B, B, B. and C. Railroad
crossed the Brazos River znd astonished the nstives und wild
animals for a distance of atout four miles west of hkichmond,
revorted J. 3, Sulliven, He a&lso steted thet at half-past
eight o'clock in the morning, the trein reached Kich.ond
from Herrisburg, heving two passengers who left Viruinis
roint thet same morning! This wes the first time that pas-

sengers hed come through fror Herrisburg to riciwond in

time for brea:kfast.zo

26 Galveston ieekly News, vol. XV, (April 27, 1858), p. 2.

27 News 1item, Houston Telegranh, vol. YXXI, (Decewber 17,

1856), p. 2.

28 J. 3., Suliiven, "A New Fre", Gelveston “eekly MNews,
vol. XV, (Vovember 18 13587, p. 3.
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ifter the Civil War when the B. B. B, and C. Reil-
way line was extended to Columbus the road changed hands
and was sold to Thom:as W. Pierce and his associates. Under
the authority of the Twelfth Legislature, the cornorate
name was changed to the Galveston, Harrisburg and San .n-
tonio Railway Company, finally becoming ¢ link in the pre-
sent Southern Pacific System.

nother road that proved of importance to Fort Bend
County was the one built from Houston to Brazoria. On
September 1, 1856, a charter was granted for the Houston
Tap and Brazoria Railway Company. The object was an ex-
tension of the Houston Tap Railroad into the rich plunta-
tion district of Brazoria County. & compeny was org:nized
under the charter in July, 1857, the first president being
J. D. Waters of Fort Bend County. This road was constructed
by the enterprise of Houston merchants and the plunters
along the route. It was called the "sugar road", from the
fact that a chief object of its construction was the tr.ns-
portation of sugar to Houston.

This railroad was discontinued after the Civil war zund
in 1871, the property was sold to the Houston and Great
Northern, and after being improved was again operated as a
part of the International and Great Northern Railroad 3ys-

tem.29 There are ten and thrce-tenths miles of this road in

29 B. B. Paddock, A History of Central 2nd /estern Texas,
Pp. 240-247.
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the county today.

After successfully helping to promote the building
of the Houston Tap and Brazoria Railway the citizens of
Fort Bend County resolved to relieve that section of the
county from inconveniences under which it lubored, owing
to lack of means of transit for its produce. 4 mecting
was held and 1t was decided to construct & railroad, to be
operated by horse power, the lower terminus to be Richwond,
extending toward Pittsville through the bottom until it
reached the prairie and thence to be extended from time to
time until it reached Pittsville.zo

After the Civil War railroad building aguain claimed the
interest of the public. The Gulf, Colorado and Santa Fe
line was churtered in May, 1873, a8 & Galveston enterprise.
Construction was commenced st Virginia Poiht in May, 1875,
eand the road w:s opened for traffic as far as Richitond,
October 10, 1878. By that time the funds were exhausted
and construction work was necessarily halted. In 1880 it
was built from Richmond to Brenham.51

ihen the Sant=2 Fe was being built through Fort Bend

County, Richmond had one railroad, the Galveston, Harrisburg

and San Antonio Railroad. The 3anta Fe =sked for a right

30 News item, "Richmond News", Galveston News, vol. XVII,
(March 19, 1859), p. 5.

31 News item, "Texas Railroads First Met Sea Here, Opened
up Empire of Southwest", Galveston News, vol. ILVII,
(August 15, 1939), p. 37.
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of way and land in the town for a stztion. The citizens
did not offer it =2t a satisfactory price, so the 3Santa Fe
skirted the edge of the town where a station was built,
and crossed the Galveston, Harrisburg and San antonio tracks
three miles westward a2t the present site of Rosenberg. This
compeny operates nearly thirty-nine miles in the ccunty to-
day.‘52

The construction of the New York, Texas, and Mexican
Railroad, the third to cross the county is particularly in-
teresting. This railroad was begun in 1880 by Count Joseph
Telfener, a member of the Italien nobility. He had made
quite a neat fortune speculating in South America, and weas
very confident that this venture would prove equally success-
ful., ZREesided Telfener, his father-in-luw, David Hungerford,
two Frenchmen and an Italian were interested in the rail -
road. The original plan was that the road should serve be-
tween Richmond and Brownsville, but in re:1lity it only served
Fort Bend, ''harton, Jackson and Victoria counties. This rail-
road was called the "Macaroni". It went into the hands of =a
receiver shortly after its construction and was taken over

by the Southern Pacific in 1905.53

32 Dick Vaughn, "Texes Twin Cities: Ne:ur Yet Far", The
Houston Press, vol. XXIII, (November 22, 1933), p. 19.

33 Article, "Brillent Era in Texas 3Sugar Bowl lives Again",
The Houston Chronicle, vol. XXVI, (June 18, 1936),
p. 36; J. H. allhand, Gringo Builders, p. 75.
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Another railroad thut alded the citizens in several
small towns in the Northern part of the county was the 3an
Antonio und Aransas Tass Railroad built by Cononel Uriah
Lott of Albany, MNew York, He cume to Texas in 1888 and
settled at Corpus Christi, 1In 1825, he undertook the pro-
motion of the 3an -ntonio =znd .ransas Pass Railway which
was czlled the "Sap" by clitizens of Fort Bend county. The

followings undated extract from Globe Denocrat is entitled:

liow lott Built the 5, A. P,

South Texas is full of strenge thirgs. Ffrom
South Texas came & man who built 600 miles of
rail road frowm a five doller bill =nd faith arnd
the bill was & borrowed one., He got a churter
to buila a rajilroad from San antonio tc Aranssas
Pass . . « The receiver of another roed louned
him enough 0ld ralls for a mile o track. In =«
distant part of the state was purchased an en-
gine which had been condemned six ycars bdbefore
« « o« Two 0ld curs were picked up some where at
a bargain end thut old engine drawing those olé
cars steamed into Sa&n Antonio. On this engine
end cars, in bold let%iring, was printed in lamp
black "S. i#e & A, P,"

This railrond passed through the Northern part of the
ceunty from San ~ntonio to Houston. In 1932 it became a
part of the Southern Pacific Systew.

In September, 1942, there was still living in San
Antonio an old lady, l'rs. Georgina Kendzll Fellows, the
daughter of George .. Kendall, the notea editor of the New

Orleans Picayune and author of The Santa Fe Lxpedition.

She has his diary which records an account of a trip frow

34 Jemes L, Allhands, quoting the Globe Dewocrst in
Gringo Builders, p. 200.




112

New Braunfels to Galveston in December, 1853. 4 part of
it, dated December 13, reads:
Remained in Richriond until :fter dinner . . .
crossed the Brazos on the ferry; did not want
to risk the bridge.
Mrs. Fellowes accompained her father on this trip.

In the San antonio Express for Februxury 20, 1938, she gives

an account of this trip which she made when about eight
years old. Mrs., Fellowes 1s possibly the one person still
alive who could recall being a passenger on the first rail-
road in Texas. OShe ststed that the train had four or five
little box c¢~ars and on the end was & passenger cur. The
seats were along the side of the cer and not uncomfortable,od
The 3Sugar Land Railroad Company had its origin a3 pri-
vate industrial trackage built by E. H. Cunningham back in
the '80's to afford means of transportating the cane grown
on his pluntation to his sugszr mill at 3Sugar Land. It was
chartered on April 14, 18¢3, cos the Sugar Lsnd Railrosad.
Later it extended to ..rcolo, connecting with the Santa Fe,
giving Cunningham fourteen miles of trackage. . T. Eld-
ridge acquired this railroed in 1¢08. He extended it to
Rotchford in 1912 o:nd in the same yeur acquired from Cunning-
ham twelve miles of trackage extending frow Sugar Land to

Cabell, known as the Imperial Valley Railro=d company, which

35 Article, "Ride on First Railroad in Texss Reculled by
San Antonio ''oman, Now 88 ¥Jz:urs 0ld", San antonio
Express, vol. LXXITI, (Februsry 20, 1938), n. 3l.
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n.d been chartered ray 50, 1907,°99
There ure now 15,790 miles of rullrosd in Tort Rend
distributed 88 follous: 3Southern Pacific nndéd branches
87.47, 3anta Fe 37.37, luger lend £1.46, Illinois and
Grect Netionul 10.46, lilssouri, Kanses :nd Texuss ,64.
01ld map3 show the Texas /estern Narrow Grange Railwey that
crossed the rorthern portion of the county. This rail-
road extended from 3ealy to Houston. After the k. K. and
T. and the S. 4., znd a4, 2, were bullt it ceased operaticn.'
in 1925 the Galveston, Hurrisburg =nd 3an :ntorilo
Railwey Company applied to the Interstats Coumerce Com=-

mission for vermit to construct a six :mile treck in Fort

»

Bend County to be used in noving sulnhur snd crude oll.

3 38
The applicstion was not granted.

Automobile Traffic., Automebile traffic was inuuguruted in

1908 when F, I. Booth drove his one cylinder, two seated
red Ford into Richmond. Needless to say the new horsecless
carrlage was a source of much curiosity. It had neither

top nor fendcrs, windshield nor doors, and made the breuth-

37

taking speed of fifteen miles per hour, Tires viere inflated

36 3. G. Reed, A History of the Texas Rsllrouads, p. 344.

37 5. A. MeMillan, The Book of Fort Bend County Texas,
Pe 11,

)

(&)

News iter, "3. P. Wants Spur in Fort 3end County",

Rosenberg Herald, vol. XIII, (July 21, 1925), p. 1.
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by a hand pump, and there were no inner tubes. Thus
began the first motor transportation. No county license
was 1ssued at that time, but the cars carried numbered
plates.

Among others who owned the first cars in Fort Bend
County were J. Mark O'Farrell, of Richmond, R. H. Mulcahy
and Henry Myer of Rosenberg. Their cars carried plstes
numbered two, three, and four, respectively.

Many homeseekers who came by train had their first
rides in an automobile when real estate agents whisked them
from the station to lands far out in the county where they
purchased farms, little dreaming of the distance from town
of the lands they were buying.39

Many farmers now employ trucks to convey their products
to markets in Houston, Galveston, and other more distant
cities. Cotton, cotton seed, hogs, cattle, and vegetubles
are hauled as far as Oklahoma in twenty-four hours.

Since the climate of the county does not necessitate
the land being cultivated quickly, tractors have not been

used extensively to replace the horse and mule.

39 Information given by A. E. lyers of Richmond, (June 10,
1942;, and Mrs., Joe Catron of Rosenberg, (april 3,
1942).



CHAPTER VI
DEVELOPMENT OF INDUSTRIES

The industrial growth of a county is determined by
many factors. The topogrephy, soil, climate, uand trans-
portation facilities of Fort Bend County have encouraged
the development of ferming, livestcck, mineral resources,
and other industries. Many of these factors have also
been an influence for better public utilities throughout
the county.

The approximste land arez of the county is 506,880
acres, of which 10,892 acres were in farms in 1850 as com-
pared with 212,612 acres in 1950.l

Farming hus always been the 1most significant industry
in Fort Bend County. First, with corn, cotton 2nd sugar
cane; leater, with cattle; now with oil and sulphur, Fort
Bend County continues to fulfill the prouises of prosperity
which Stephen F. iustin's colonists envisioned when they
glimpsed the fertile valley of the Brazos River more than

one hundred yeurs ago.

Corn. 3ince most of the early settlers of Fort Bend County

were from the Southern States, they knew from experience that

1l United States Census for years indicated.
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they would nced corn u3 one of their chief sources of
food; hence they brought sccd corn with them. It is said
that some of these pioneer settlers did not even nlow the
land for their first crop of corn, but made small holes in
the ground with A sharpened stick. Into these holes they
dropped the grainsof corn, covering them with soil.

The primary importance of corn in the life of these
exrly colonists is well illustrated in the following quo-
tation:

e ate nothingz but corn bread at first . . . we

grated our corn until father hollowed out a log,

and ve ground it as in a nortor. 7/ had no cook-

ing stoves of course, and Baked our bread in the

only skillet we possessed.

The early records do not show how much corn was raised
in Fort Bend County, but part of every farm was devoted to
corn raising in the pioneer deys. That these euarly settlers
were always deeply concerned about its production is shown
in such reports as the following:

The corn c-op in all of the counties between the

Brazos und Colorado Rivers, from the frontier to
the coast, is renorted to be good.“

2 Caroline Von Hinueber, "Life of German Pioneers in Texas",

tecld to Ruaolph Kleberg, Jr. in wuarterly of the State
Historical issociation, vol. II, (Junu.ry, 1899), p.229.

3 News item, "Take Particular Notice", The Red-Lander,
vol. I, (September 16, 1854), p. 2.
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The corn crop must have continued to be good accord-
ing to reports of 1858:

The Houston Telegranh of the 1lth says that it hus
heard that Messers Kyle snd Terry whose plsntation

is on Cyster Creek will m=zke over 100 bushels of corn
to the acre and that a bet was offered = day or two
gince, of $500 thzt 100 wcres could be, selected in

a vody that would average 120 bushels.

The corn crop for 1860 was reported to be 2.0,405 bus-
hels of corn as compared with 135,205 bushels in 1850.°
It is true that most ofthe corn vas raised for use on
the plantation or farm, but at the same time there were lo-
cal markets which purchased sll the surplus. The price
varied with the demand; however, the average price of corn
ranged frow forty to fifty cents per bushel, zs shown by
the records of various yecars. "Corn which is now about
ready to harvest", it was reported, "is yielding finely.
I do not think the price of corn during the coming yesr
will be above fifty cents per bushel, ind perhaps not that”,
said one v:riter.6 Following the reports still farther, wve
find the price does not vary in any great degree, even at

a much later date. "Corn 1s selling frow forty to fifty

cents & bushel and meal at fifty cents a bushel, and not

4 News item, "Houston", Gulveston News, vol. AV, (June 12,
1858), p. 4.

S "Agriculture of the United 3States in 1860", Eighth Cen-
Sus, 0. 1l4l.

6 News resort, "Crops-Fort Cend County", The iied-lander,
vol. 1, (August 12, 1354), p. 3.
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A thorough resesrch into the muarket price of corn in

recent yeare showe =2 wide variation in the price per bush-

el for the years 1952 to 1942, inclusive. The lovest

market price wes in 1952 when it sold for 23 cents per bush-

el; the peak was resched in 1934 when it sold for 85 cents

per bushel. In 1935 the price of 50 ccnts was just about

on a puar with the sellineg price in 1€61. In 1928 the price

per bushel had fallen to 45 cents. by 1942 the price was

60 cents . bushel.’

8

During the lust few yesrs there has been in intensive

effort on the part of the farmers of the county to produce

their living st home, vhich has reavlted in an increase in

the corn acreage., This is shown by the following table:

Year Acres Bushels
1920 36,088 696,551
1925 54,457 655,184
1929 32,645 568, 330
1905 52,335 860,140
1939 49,201 894,192

Cotton. ‘''he raising of cotton in Texas begun erownd the

Spanish missions under the sunervision of the priests. With

7 News revort, "sgricultural Notes", The Colorado Citizen,
vol. ¥XIII, (December 2, 18¢0), p. S.

8 "Crop-Prices", The Texas Almunac and Stute Industrial
Guide, 1936, p. 242; 1939-40, ov. 172.

9 "Crop Acrezge and “roduetion”, The Texas almanac and State

Industrial Cuide, 1929, p. 107; 1936, p. 1l44; 1939-40,
p. 177, United States Census for 1940.
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the eatablizhmnent of :ustin's colony in 1821, the Anglo-
americ:n farmers who c2me to Texas in the deys before rail-
ro4ds, raised enough cotton about their door yerds to sup-
ply their own spinning whecls.lo
Colonel Jared E. Groce, one of the early coloniats,
brought cotton secd with him to the Brazos River in 1821,
ctnd in 1825 erected the first cotton gin built in Texas.

During the next ye:zr sustin built one on the west side of

11

the Brazos River.

In 1829 Randall end James Jones of Fort Bend County
built =z keel boat and took cctton in the seed down to aus-
tin's gzin near Columbia. The cotton wes exchunged for
family supplies of coffee worth ome dcllar a pint, suzur,
fifty centa & pound, and calico seventy-five cenis = yard.lz

A8 early as 1838, itustin offered & silver pitcher to
the nlesnter who reaised the best crop ot sevsnty-five bales
in khis colony; end & silver cup for the best cron of ten
bales. Cup and pitcher are on exhibit in the 3amuel kay

wWilliems Collection, Rosenberg library, Galveston, Texas.

As they left no numes, they were probebly never awarded.

10 "The Book of Texus", The Book of Knowleage, vol. XXI,
De 924

11 Homer S. Thrall, A Pictorial History of Texas, p. 727.

12 News item, "Captair Rendsl Jones", Houston Daily Tele-
graph, vol. X, (June 10, 1873), p. 2.

~
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In 1823 .ustin repcrted thirty gins in the munici-
pality of 3an Felipc de ..ustin of wiich Fort Bend County
was then a part.l3

Though =gricultural societies were formed in Texas by
1843, it 1s rather uncertain how much influence they exerted.
In that year the planters of Erazoria orgunized & soclety
to promote agricultural interests and invited the planters
of Fort Bend, Mategorda ana Coloredo tc join them. Jemes F.
Perry was president. The other officers were John Sveeney,
John -drisnce, and Mathew Hopkins. The organizetion planned
guerterly meetings, but nothing is known of the work accom-
plished.l4

In March, 1340, s market for "planters, cotton bro-
kers, and the public general" was established for the sale
of cotton, corn, hides, et cetera. larket wes open €ach
friday froum uine A, M. to four P. M. Cotton brokers, and
corn factors' stalls were for hire at $5.00 a yeur. A Mr.
Mc¥ahon snd a kr. Brooks, George a. Feris, G. =. Parker,
John V., Morton snd Nicholas Maillard were on the managing

commnittee. John Levering was clerk of the market.l5

13 Iugene C. Barker, (FEditor), Readings in Texas History,
Part I, p. léz.

14 News item, "Agriculturcl Society", Telegraph and Texas
Register, vol. VIII, (August 23, 1843), p. 3.

15 News item, "Cotton liarket Opened", Richmond Telescope
and literary Register, vol. II, (March 17, 1340),
p. 2.
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The census for 1849 shows that Texas produced 46,458
bales c¢f cotton, mainly in two sections: Northeust Texas
which wes but sn extension westwurd of the Lcuicsizna flelds,
and the Lower Erezoc area in which sre rnow Colorado, ‘'har-
ton, Fsyette, Fort Bend, ~ustin, "Wzller, and ¥ashington
counties.18

3turting in 1849, there was a decade in which the price
of cotton was higher than that of any previous year, and
thic increase in value provided an important stimulus to
the plunting of riore cotton in Fort Bend County.

Althcough some c¢f the cotton exrorted by the planters
brought a fancy price, nevertheless, most of the cotton was
sold for the regular merket price and @1l of the early pa-
pers nrinted the cotton market gquotztions. This enabled the
farmer in 211 comrunities to know the basis on which the
cotten would be bought.

4 gspecimen gquotation follows:

Cotton Markets
Liverpool Classifications
Daily True Delta Ofrice
Friday Night, July 7, 1854.

Ordinzry 6:-7
Low iddling 73-7%
¥iddling 8-3%
Good Yid:ling 9-9%

Middling Fai; 95:-10
Fair 10z-°

16 The University of Texas Bulletin Number 3409, (March 1,
1933), op. 71-72. —

17 MNarket reports, "Cotton ldarkets", The Red-Lander, vol. 1,
(July 22, 1854), p. 2.
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To produce this cotton the »nlunters experimented
with various seeds, some common to the whole South and
some gelected from particulorly good plents in the fields.
"Mastcdon" cotton was =dvertised, as were also "Willow",
"Golden Chaff", "Ban+na", and "Twin Cotton Seed", The
"Petit Gulf", "Prolific", and "Dean" wcre favorite vasrieties
in the fifties, =+t various times the planters were trou-
bled to find fertile seed and more thun once secd were lack-
ing sufficient ouantity to replant after = freez.e.18

Some of the Fort Bend County plsanters experimented with
Sea Island Cotton a2nd silk eotton, with scme success, though
neither ever became generally populsr in the county. In
10568 David Rarndon of Fort Bend County snld for twenty cents
per nound five bales of silk cottorn tc R. and D. G. Mills
of Galveston. The next seazson he picked thirty bales of
the seme variety.lg In 1859 he was still planting this
vaeriety =2nd realicing from it a handsome income.zo

During the next few yeers while the Civil War wsas be-

ing fought, Texes wes fortunate in disposing of her cotton,

for no metter how meny blockzaders frowned at her, Texas weas

18 advertisements, "For Sale, The Telegraph, vol. IV,

(January 12, 1839), p. 4, Vol XXI, (Tebruary 20,
1856), p. 4, Vol XXII, (February 4, 1857), p. 4.

19 News item, "For The Telegruph", Telegra-h, vol. X,
(May 20, 1846), p. 3.

20 News item, "Richnond", Galveston .'eekly KRews, Vel XVI,
(September 30, 1859}, . 2.
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the only Confederate Staste heving a neutral country just
across her border. wWith the price of cotton going higher
and with letters from England saying her mills were idle
for the want of Texas cotton, the roads from the TFort Bend
region to the border were thronged with conveyances trans-
porting cotton to }exico., Cotton advanced frow: twenty-five
cents per pound to over a dollar per pound.

It was at this time that the writer for a Galveston
peper described the homemade bageing used in Fort bBend County.
He reported that J, 3. Chambers had shiown him a bale of
cotton nut up in bagring composed of the bark of the Linn
trec woven in strips two inches wide, The bale wuas of the
usual size, the vwriter said, and but for the weight of the
novel bagsing, it would be quite equal to the geniune
"Kentucky", as it was exceedingly strong and pliuble.21

For a decade after the Civil .lar labor was a problem
and the cotton acrecage of Fort Bend County was reduced. That
accounted for a teaporary decline in cotton production.
From about 1876, however, as conditions improved there waus
=n increased production, until normsl crops were again re-
norted.

In 1933 the Federel Government set up a new Progran
for the cotton industry--the restriction of cotton product-

ion. This progran was an experiment on the part of the

21 News item, "For the News", The Galvestor Tri-.eekly
News, vol. XX, (Lay 6, 1862), p. 2.
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government to absorb the cotton surplus and increuase the
price of cotton. In order to achieve these objectives,

the cotton acreage was reduced. The result of drastic
cutting in cotton acreage and the lowered yield was felt

in Fort Bend County in many weys. The increase in the
price of cotton plus the governmental rentals and benefit
payments brought prosperity to the farming industry. Cn
the other hand, however, the many tenants und farm laborers
vere eliminated from the cotton industry, and this swelled
the number of unemployed laborers who depended upon the old i
established regime of cotton raising.

'hen the cultivation of cotton was reduced to the mini-
mum, the laborers of Fort Bend County felt keenly this
change of program. The farm hunds, having been deprived
of their regular means of livelihood, were forced to go in-
to the tuwns and ask for relief,

Some idea of the result of the restricted program us
it =affected cotton production in Fort Bend County can be

obtained from the following table:

Year Bales Ginned Year Bales Ginned
1920 20,761 1935 89,261.
1925 50,416 1936 £4,902
1027 49,623 1937 57,835
1929 11,811 1933 25,064
1931 75,908 1939 35,78522
1933 46,084 1940 61,219
1934 35,060

22 "Cotton Ginning by Counties™, The Texas Almensc and Stste
Industrial Guide, 1936, p. 229; 1937, p. 24; 19359-40,
p. 184; 1941-42, p. 208. The small yield in 1920 was due
to excessive flood waters of that yeur and in 1929 to
prolonged drought over the entire state.
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The cultivation of cotton brought not only wealth
into the county, but it also created a number of other
businesses economically dependent upon it. Growing out of
the cotton industry zare those of ginning, seced oil mill-
ing, brokerages, and storage. ZEach of these in its own
way contributes to making wealth in the county because of
the employment it offers mnd the value of its pay roll.

There are many cotton brokers in Fort Bend County who
buy direct for the large firms in Houston, Galveston, and
Dallas. These men do most of their work on the streets
where they classify =nd buy cotton, which is shipped out of
the county to larger markets.

There are no available statistics which show the num-
ber of bales of cotton produced annually in Fort Bend Coun-
ty during the period of the Republic of Texas, 1836-1845,
nor of several yvears immediately following. The report of

the cotton crop here given begins with the Seventh Census,

Year Bales Ginned Year Bales Ginned
1850 2,464 1900 8,256
1860 13,602 1910 23,999
1870 4,017 1920 20,761
1880 6,431 1930 61,56223
1890 7,108 1E20 61,219

The story of cotton would not be comnlete without a

glimpse into some of the trials of cotton reising. Fort Bend

23 United States Census, ~sgriculturzl Reports, for the
yeers indicated.
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County has been in boll weevil territory since 1898 and
farmers have been working ever since that yezr to control
the evil. The first experimental work on the boll weevil
in the United States was carried on in this county. F. W.
Malley, State Entoiologist, experimented in boll weevil
poisoning on F. I. Bocth's plantation at Booth during the

summer of 1900. This work indicated that boll weevils

could be poisoned even with liquid arsenicals. Unfortunately,

when the Galvestorn sStorm on September 8, 1900, destroyed
the crops, some of the data were lost, Malley went into
cormercial work und nobody continued the experimentation.
Fully fifteen yvears before cotion dusting with pow-
dered ursenicals was recormended by scientists, Negro far-
mers in the thompson section discovered thut boll weevil

damage was reduced by thorough dusting with Paris Green.24

Sugar Cane. The discovery that sugar cane could be grown
with ease in Fort Bend County was made early. The growing
season is long enough for the cane to mature sufficiently
for the extraction of sugear.

J. C. Clopper in 1828 recorded in his journal that the
good sugar lands of Texas lay between the coast and =2 point

twenty miles above San Felipe. He thought there would be

24 S. A. McMillan, The Book of Fort Bend County Texas,
pp. 154-156,




127

a sufficiency of sugar made that year to supply the colo-

nfl.es.z5

lor were his expectations unfounded, because the
crop of 1829 was reported as being 140 hogsheads. However,
the product at thet time was little more than crystalized
molafsses.z6 The planters studied methods of culture and
were rewarded by an increase in the quanity and improvement
in the quality of the crop. The next year (1830) William
Morton advertised a "quanity of sugar plants for sale at
reasonable terms."27
In the early thirties Willlam Stafford was enguged
in plunting cane. The product made from it is described
by !rs. Dilue Harris as being "black as tar", and her father,
Dr. Pleasant V. Rose, found that it was impossible to carry
it in = beg.za aceording to De Bcw, Stafford's mill, built
in 1834, was the first permanent one in Austin's colony.
This mill ground only one or two crops before it was des-
troyed in 1836 by the Mexicans, along with other planta-

tion equipment at Stefford's Po.’Lm:.'?'g

256 "J. C. Clopper's Jdournal and Book of kemorandum for
18287, 9uarterl¥ of the Texas State Historic=zl asso-
ciation. vol. XIII, July, 1909, Pp. £8-59.

26 News item, Texas Gazette, vol. I, (May 22, 1830).

27 advertisement, "For 3ule", Ibid., (October 30, 1830),
Ps 2w

28 "The Reminiscences of Mrs. Dilue Harris", guartcrly of

the Texas State Historical assoelation, vol. IV,
October, 1900, p. $6.

29 1Ibid., vol. IV, p. 173.
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The second stage of the development of sugar cane
planting in Fort Bend County begsn in the eighteen forties
when the cotton planters fell on evil days. Lech year an
increasing number of planters turned to sugur cune thinking
that it would not be affected by the uncertainties that
beset cotton. The enthusiasm for cane increased us planters
reckoned the cost of prcducing at three cents & pound and
selling for seven or eight cents. In addition, the sugar
cane growers obtained from thirty to fifty g«llons of mo-
lesses to each hogshead of sugur., Flenters, induced by
these figures, were obtuining cune for seed and some were
cocasidering abandoning cotton altogcther.so

In 1848 e correspordent of the Telegreoh in Houston
was shown the sugar plantation of William Mcliahon near
Richmond ané reported that the erop would yield over a
hogshead per acre and that licllahon was & pioneer suger
vlanter of the county.31

By 1849, planters were turning lover Texas into "a
sugar bowl"., They had become convinced that sugar was a
much more certain crop than cotton and that it was uore
nroductive, and required less labor.

The dry weather or the severe winter of 1350 causea

the seed cuns for the 1351 crop to be so defective that

30 The Telegraph, Vol. VIII, (December 21, 1842), p. 2;
Vol., VIV, (November 15, 1343%), p. 2.

31 C. A. "herton, A History of Fort Bend County, p. 12.
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many plunters in some sections of the 3tuate wade Just
enough cane to seed the 1852 crop. The reverse, however,
seemed to be the cuse in Fort Bend County. In that year
Colonel J., D, Waters, a Fort Bend planter wrote, "I have
no doubt that I shall muke at least 300 hogsheads, aver-
aging 1,500 pounds to the hogshcad, I am now meking from
eight to ten hogshead every twenty-{our hcurs and have a
sufficiency of hands to grind all the time, night and day,
never stopping to clean out the boilers."32

Sugar curing days vere active ones on the plantetions,
Cotton was scarcely ginned and sold before the cane w-s
ready to be stripped, cut, and windsowed, preparatory to
its belng hsuled to the mill and fed into the press. JSowe-
times December came before all the sugzr was wade, Lach
year an early frost killed the cane, and the next yesr the
sugar crop fell off.33

According to one writer in 1858, the average yield

on an acre was about 1,600 pounds.:54

32 J. B, %Waters, "To the Editor", Lone Star, vol. I,
(November 15, 1351), p. 2.

33 TFrencis ‘'hite Johnson, A History of Texas and Texens,
(ed.) Eugene C, Barker and Zrnest «illiem ./inkler,
vol, II, p. 652.

34 letter, Colonel J. D. Waters, to #, richardson, (July 13,
1858), in Tex:s Almenac for 1858, pp. 76-80.
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By 1858 there were 690 acres plunted in sugar cane in

Fort Bend County, eccording to the Texus nlmunnc?s and

in 1860 the census lists 450 hogshezd of 1,000 pounds
for the county.

After the Civil ar wmany of the plantaticns were dis-
continued, sowe of them never to produce sugur again.
At first the labor and production costs played an enormous
part in the decline of the industry. In 1880 when convict
labor was obtained there was produced in Fort Bend County,
according to the United 3tates Census, 1,327 hogshead of
sugar and 119,079 gallons of molasi:cs on 1,738 acres of
land.>6

It was in 1881 that a magazine writer reportcd thut
gix splendid sugsr mills in Fort Bend County could be seen
on the station of Walker.37

Tort Bend County received much praise at the .orld's
Zxposition held in New Orleans in 1883 for producing su-
perior refined sugar. A newspzpcr of that city stated that
all the prizes for refined sugar w.re awarded to T. W, House
o' Houston whozae crop was raised on his Arcola »lantation

in Fort Bend County. It had been thought, the urticle

35 Ibid., p. 81

36 A. W. Speight, Resources, Soil, and Climate of Texas,
D. 104,

37 Laura J. Irvin, "A Sketch of Fort Bend County", The
Ameg}can Sketch Book, san Historical and Home Journal,
pl 76.
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continued, that it wus imposslibls to muke a fine quality
of sugur from Texas cung, but from the succes: of BEovse and
other planters--notadly E. C. Cunninghem and T, . Ellis--
they have been able to not only equel but even excel some

of the o3t noted lnulslane plenters in quality and guanity

~
2l >

¢l suzar, thelr lends being so rien.®
The census for 1900 does not show that zny sugzar cane
was produced in the county. Therefore, due to & diszster-
ous Bruzos River overflcw =nd the 1900 hurricare it is sur-
nrising that in 1910 the county produced umore than 90,000
tons of ctne on 6,775 seres of lsnd. Within the next ten
yeurs due to Toreign competition znd the invasion orf insect
pests the industry wes clmxost comnletely driven out of exis-

tence, Only fifty-one scr<s were planted in 19220; the yield

39

'3

being 255 tcns of czne and 2,553 gallons of molasses.

In 1922 on the Japeriszl, Harlew and Ramsey 3tate Farms
where most of the crop was raised, 4,000 acres were planted
in czne--un increase of 1,300 zcres fror the »nreceding ye..r.
But due to the floods of .pril znd May, 1922, the cuane gave
& wuch smualler yleld thsn everuge. Iloreover, not all of

that produced was available for suger and syrup, It was

53 News itew, "All the Prizes-=-.rcols's Triumph =t the .orld's
Exposition”, Necw Orle:ns Tribune, (sarch &, 1583).

39 TUnited 3tates Census for years indicated.
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estimated that the yield from 1500 acres would be required
for renlanting.
Sugar cane is now grown extensively on the coastal
prairie ferms of Fort Bend County and though not properly
a sorghum, it is usuxlly pleced in that classifrfication for
coumercial purposes. It is not grown for sugear making, but
for syrup, lsrgely for home consumption and local merkets, 41
At the present time, the sugar ceme crop is usually
harvested in December sfter the rest of the crops are gatherea
and when the farm accounts hzve been bulanced. J3ince there
is not much other work at the time, the whole neighvborhood
nay cocoperate in helping the sugar cenme growers boil down
the csne julce, evapcrate the water end cock off the im-
purities to m ke the syrup, Joxetimes the manufacturing
1s done by an enterprising farmer in the comuunity, who takes
part of the product es ils pay. Horses =nd wules furnish
most of the wotlve power for s;rup making.
The greatest handicaps to successful cane growing in
this section are .ecvils and vorms whien bore into the stulk
end sometimes destroy the entire plunt, esting out the in-

_ 4
terior and leaving only the shell.“2

40 TNews item, "Cane Grinding Time at Sugar Laend", Texas Com-
mercial News, vol. Iv, (December 9, 1922), p. 17.

41 "Sweet Sorghum and Sugur Cane", The Texas ~lmanac and
Stete Industirial Guide, 1939-40, p. 169.

42 News story, "3yrup-iaking Time Is Happ; One", The Houston
Chronicle, vol. L, (December 8, 1940), p. E.
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Potatoeg, Toteto growing for garden use came into Fort
Bend County with the esarly pionecrs, whe plented = gener-
oug supply of the tubers for fumily consumption. One early
veiter stated that:

It has been generally supposed thet the Irish

potato will not thrive in tluls country, only in

the early pert of the seeson., This is e misteke.

Mginnn To ol GPTion, WeLeRIOE Gne SoumA SEOh. B

s 3 i I .

The first successful attempt to grow potatoes coumer-
cinlly to any extent on the coaestal plains of Texsas wus made
in the Brazos Velley in Simonton, Fort Bend County in 1905,
when two plucky former Kansas men, J. R. Spencer and T. L.
Mullins, planted one hundred and forty acres in the spring
of that year. Contrary to predictions, this first crop wcs
a complete success, and a second crop of potatoes was plaunted
on the same land that fall. The proceeds from these two
crops nald for =n 800 ucre tract of land at {25 per acre, of
which the crop land was a pert. Fort Bend County won fame

as the leading potato section of Texaa%4

«nd the potato in-
dustry increased.steadily. In 1909 three hundred and fifty
carlouds of potatoes wcre shippcd.45

“hat probsbly was the largest "potuto patch" in the vworld

was the 2150 acres in the potato field of Sugar land Indussrices

43 News item, "Miscellaneous Items", Telegraph and Texeas
aeglsser, vel. 1, (hovenrter 14, 1855), pe &

44 S, ... ilelfil!lan, The Bcok of Fort Bend Jounty Texes, pe. 178,

45 "Potatoes™, The Texas .:lmanac and -tate Industrial Guide,
1610, p. 189.




at Juger Iend., Tt oroduced 200 Lushels to the zacre end
the crop was volued at a half wmillion dollars.%6
The pesk ycar of pruduction was 1934 when the yield was
25,022 bushels. about 1920 the pctato industry began to
be affected by a disease known as the Southern Blight, which
cruzed g lerge nart of the erop to decay in transit. 3ince
that time there h=3 been ¢ gradual decline in pnotato ascreage

in Fort Bend County.47

Rice. snother rood crop thut wes cultivated by the eurly
pioneers of the State was that of rice. This was evidently
due to the undeveloped condliticn of the country ama to the
lack orf suitable machincery.

according to u letter, dated Octover 1, 1585, addressed
to J. S. Brady, president ol harris County Industrial ..3so0-
cilation, f'rom an unknown aichmond, Texas, writer who signs
kis name “"Eques", Fort Bend County produced & conaiderable
quantity cf rice in 1864. The corres»ondent returning home
from the army in 1863 spent a nigat witn a fawlly wear JSan
augustinoe and was served rice for susper., Procuring some
seed, he nlunted them on his Fort Berd County furm in ilarch,
1864. On scccunt of his being swey from hceme, the crop was
neglected yet ylelded a bountiful hervest. The grain was

lurge end plump and the use of it completely "weaned his

46 \rs. b. a. oumwelt, Blue Scropobook, undated elipping, p. 16

47 So fig I::Cf'ill&n, 22.. 01t- ’ po 1?8.



fanily frow the musty store rice”, 411 who tried the grain
believed that rice culture would te orcfitable at five cents
a pound.48

In The Rosenbers Eerald in the cclumn "From Cut 0ld

Files” the foliowing stutenment is made: "The 190l rice
crops of the Dyer farm ls & esuccess apd next ye'r wlll sce
at least 10,000 ucres nlunted in rice in this county."49

According to a report in 190¢ which gave the acreage
for the »nrincipal crops of Fort Bend County, rice vws3 shown
to have been cultivated on 6,727 acres.9% But it was not
until 1923 thet the farmers of Fort Bend County caiie to &
full reslization of the importance of the rice industry.
Yithin three years frou that dzte the industry was vorth
annually aporoximately a willion dollars. This included
plenting and harvesting esuipment, cunals and the water ais-
tribution aystem 3nd the value of the ennual yield,

The Richmond rice csnal syztem was conatructed in 1l¢23.
Twenty-five miles of main cunals and fifty miles of luterel
canals distribute water to the fields of the growers. Water

for the cqnals is drawn from the Brazos River by twe 900

48 "Egques", "Rice Culture", ieekly Telegreph, (October 8,
1863), p. 2.

49 News item, "From Our (ld Files", The hosenberg Heraid,
vol, XII, (Fsbrunry 6, 1925), p. 3.

50 Trenk #. Johnson, History of Texes and Texans, (ed),
E, C. berker and &. #. #inkler, vol. II, p. G60.
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horse nower riotors »snd two thirty-six inch pumups. The pump-
ing capacity ia 100,000 gnllons per nminute.
Approximately nircty per cent of the rice is produced
on 4 50-50 basls, the Richmond Cansl Compeny, ovmned b~ C. G,
Jackson and T. 3. Jackson of Houston, furnishing sacks,
seed, water ond lundéd 2nd the pgrowere doing the actusl work.
Lend utilized by the rice farmers is leused. Producing a
rice crop up to the time of hsrvasting cost an average of
£55 to 260 an acre in 1942, .pproximately 1,000 men have
been emnloyed in the rice fields during each hsrvest season.”!
In 1930 Fort Bend County ranked third zmong the ten lead-
ing counties of Texas in the production of rice. According

to the census for five crop years, the rice rizld for Fort

Bend County was as follows:

Year ACTESEE Eushels
1320 230 12,344
1924 725 21,500
1529 12,428 600,700
1924 5,414 310,088
1939 4,397 234,0269%2

51 ~Artaur F, Zanders, "kice Industry Hus a Hepid Growth,"
The Texas Coester, vol. XXVI, (February 13, 1931),
o 1; interview, C. G. Jackson, Houston, lexss,
(December 13, 1942),

52 "Agricultural Crop Reports"”, The Texas almunsc sand State
Industriel Guide, 1927, p. 100; 19C&, p. iD4; 19756,
Pe. 244; Olxteenth Census of the United 3tates, "agri-
culture™, p. 140.
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Other Crons, :fter yesrs of ewphasis nlaced upon cotton

as the chief crup of the smell larmers lu Fort Bend County
when they gave over thelr entire ucrcuge to its cultivation
end depended upon the rerchunts to surply their food, an
attempt 1s now bteing n:de to remedy this evil by diversifi-
cution.

Toruge crops beeceme imnortuant 28 the grazing began to
be cultivited., Fort Bend County, ho-ever, has never »ro-
cucecd zorc of these then she could use. W, P, Winner of
Fulshear wes first to show nossibilities of heguri as a lute
grain and forage crop. It is widely planted now, a9 also
is Sudsn srass. In the Sivonton uresa soy besns and alfalfa
are successfully raised, Johnson gras: i3 used a2s a hay
crop. Oats are not raised wmuch on =ccount of the rust.

Truck crops ofrer atiractive po3sivilities, but until
1925 the county had not yet established itself in the murkets
as s trucking center, On the lands of T, L. Xullinsg of
3imonton =snd of the Susurlsnd Industries at 3ugar Land as
well ss the various 3tate Farns, truck cropns of great variety
and excellent quszlity huve been nrocuced. Spinsmch, radishes,
turnips, lettuce, cabbage, ceuliflowcr, bects, churd, be:.ns,
snussh, cucumbers snd nuudxins, not to mention muny other
¥Yinds thaet have heen ¢rown, are produced in abundance.

In June, 1921, Suger Lapd claimed the making of a new

record for Texas when & 30lid curloud of celery was shipped
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to Kensas City. The cor contzined 250 crates of nine
dozen bunches each, or 108 stalks to the crtete. The price
wes 90¢ the dozen, $8.10 the crate. The yield for 1921

was the best that Chearles Valenga, celery czpert, Lad been

able to produce iIn seven years.ss This crop was discon-
tinued in 1923, due to increase in zcreage in California

and Florida during the swuuer nonths.54

Pecans, Pecan trees were found in abundance in Fort Bend
County by the first white men to settle there. True to the
0ld adage that the human race values lightly the things that
nature gives most freely, the merits of the pecan were not

at first recognized. In fact, so lightly were pecan trees
valued that when cowboys on their drives came upon a tree
loaded with nuts, they habitually felled it in order to

gather the nuts more easily, end as cotton production spread
over the county, pecan trees were deadened or cut down to
clear the way for iore cultivable acres. But despite neg-
lect and i1l treatment in the early days, the tree was so
admirably adapted to the growing conditions in the county that
toduy pecans are an important crop. It is not unusual for an
improved pecan tree to produce from 100 to 125 pounds of nuts,

valued at $20 to $25. An acre of good pecan land will carry

53 News item, "Surar Land Ships Carload of Celery", The
Texas Coaster, Vol. “XVI, (June 3, 1921), ». 1.

54 Interview, E. 0. Guehther, Treasurer of the Sugarland
Industries, July 17, 1941.
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nine to twelve trees. Value 1¢ immedivtely udded to the
property when the orcherd 1s set cut. By planting field
crops between the trecs, one is ot losing the use wiile
the orchurd is growing. The prircipul vericties of pecuns
pl:nted in the county cre the Burkett, Texus Frclific, West-
¢rn Schley, Jltmen and Nuggst. The last nezmed is fevored
by the cracking »lente, since 1t has a smooth, thin shell
which can be reedily sepereted from the meat.
Tke lergest orchards in the county ure owned by Dr.
R« B. Herris, F. R. Flelés, R. P. James, Huggins Egtite,
&néd A. P. George.55
Fort Bend County is reeclizing that the pecar is more
then & Jtate emblem. It is a2 morey nmaker of the future.
To the o0ld timers who conce s2id =ztcut 1908 thet Fort Eend
County wes going "nutty" the reply is "money grows on trees",
Ir 1925, Walter Rosenbush of Foster developed a pecszn
shelling industry that shomed interecstirng possibilities in
nroviding empleyment for twenty-five or thirty people in
spare tire. ‘hen the Vage 2nd Hcour lew wes pacszed, he closed
business, as he c¢ovld not puy the required wage.ss
The market -rice varies with sroduction and demsand.

The following report wss obtairsd on necar productior in

55 Irterviews, Dr. R. D. Herris, Fulshesr, Texas, Jenusry
15, 1941,

56 Interview, #elter [osenbush, Foster, Texss, sxay 12,
1941.
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Fort Bend County for four tynicnl seasons:

Year SBearing Trees Pounds
1920 6,037 60,500
1024 3,167 516,700
1929 25,997 322,940
1640 87,240 662,40097

Beef Cattle, The cattle industry of Fort Bend County has

probably undergone greater evolution than any of the other
industries which began with the pioneers. The cattle of the
county were originully of two breeds. ©First, there were the
Spanish cattle introduced at an early date around the mis-
sions and settlemeats in the southern part of Texas. These
cattle incrcased rapidly and spread cver the prairie land
of Fort Bend vounty. They wecre of the vriginal Texas Long-
horn breed whkich existed oo the range until coamparatively
recent times. The othe wariety was the "scrub" cattle,
brought in by the Anglo-American colonists who czme uwfter
1821. Whereas the Spenish cattle becume the early beef
type, the scrub stock frox the older states formed the bas-
is for xost of the dairy prcducts founa on the farms of the
county until the pest fev years. Bullding up this .tock
into bloodec beer -nd dairy stock hez beer cne of tue prin-
cipal problems of the catile industry comsicered as & whole.
Shortly efter 1321 #¥illiam Mortcen brought milch cows

into the regior which is uow Fort Bend County. In the fall

57 TUnited 3tates Census for years indicated.
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of 1825, huandel Jones touuk = Negro boy to louleivna end
traded bhim for sixty heud cf ceztile, cverycne of which he
succeeaed in bringing to his plsce on the Brazcs in Fort
Bend County. Tuis wes the first herd of cattle 1latrod.ced
into Austin's c:lony.58

.ccerding to Thrall's account, abner FKuykendall brought
tc the Depsrtment of the Bruzes seventy head of cattle in
1621-1822, These anim=ls were nut restricted to Fort Bend
County, however,

In the 511 of 1824 Jones a2nd J, Kuykendall drove a
head of sixty beef cattle from the Fort Settlement to 3an
fntonic wkcre they hired <2 bLutcher, and sold their beef for
a gocd rrice.so

The cowmen ¢f Fort Berd Covnty could well include &l-
rost every citizen in the county from the time of orgcniza-
ticn in 1838 to 1200. Trecticelly every mern regerdless of
occupstion, ren a fer heaed of cattle. This can be verified
by exemining the 018 brend reccrd bock in the county clerk's

office. Preachers, lawyers, cdoctors, professional and non-

profes=ional men had s brand recorded. It was necessity,

]

aince thoueands of cattle which belcnged to many different

people wencered over the courty.

58 Mews item, "Cuntain Randal Jones", Houston Dsily Tele-
greph, vol. X, (June 10, 1875), p. 4.

59 Homer S. Thrsll, & Pictorial History of Texas, p. 760.

60 Houston Daily Telegraph, Ibid.




Tbke inmoginatior of the covinen foupd picturesque ex-
pregaion In the dezign end name of' theirbrends. Lach
ovmer sclected & letter or sign of soms kind &s nis orand
end thls was stanped viith e hot iron on every aninal be-

longing to him. Brands wore usually pleced on recoerd inm

the name of the owner in the County Zrand Record Book,
Samples of "Cowhide “rt" in Tort DBend County;61

Brand Cwvner Late
\;{; Jane Long 1333
FJ- Randal dJoncs LESI
C) T, P, & J, . Borden 1638
LYL ’11)1i«m Mortop 1843
I;, ¥, B, Lunnar 1554
11;:=> Jozeph Davis 13857
13?[ © 11%iam Sherifl 1570
‘_RN We Jiw BTbitiE 1871
iileon & Jefferson 1204

The records of the numrer of c«lile cuned in esch coun-

Ly in it=s eerly @0

<

e are Yrief en¢ irnccmplete. Fowever, a

(9)]

0 ahowe

Q

census taken in 12 the cet le population of Fort

Rend County to be £9¢,22% head.5

61 Fort Bend County Brand Records, Bock 4, Cffice of County
Clerk, xichmond, Texes.

62 "Livestock Jenort--rort Bend County", The lexes .Jlmanac
and Industrial Guide, 1887, p. 215.
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By 1860 there was an average of ten cattle to each
person in the county, and the price of beef was low. This
was probably due to the great number of cattle and the lack
of market demand. It is of interest to compare the price
of beef in 1362 with the price of beef at a retail market
in 1942, According to the published statement of a deualer
in 1862, which appezars below, prices were not good at that

time.

Beef! Beef!

Having loceted myself permanently, I am prepared

to furnish the citizens of Columbus and the vi-
cinity with beef at as low price zs can be afforded
and in quanities to suit the purchasers. ly terms
are for first choice 5¢ per pound; for second choice
43¢ per pound; for third choice 4¢ per pound; end
while credit is extended to customers, Ege payment
will be due on the first of each moénth.

The price of beef in 1942 kept in refreigerating coolers
in the same vicinity, according to a dealer, follows:
First choice, 35 cents per pound
Second choice, 30 cents per poung4
Third choice, 25 cents per pound
The Civil War provided the cattlemen with a market for
their beef., But after the capture of Vichsburg by the Fed-

eral forces in 1863, this market was cut off. By that time

63 Advertisement, "Beef! Beef!" The Colorado Citizen,
vol. III, (May 26, 1862), p. 4.

64 ILouis Voscamp, Assistant in Struss leat Market, Columbus,
Texas, May 20, 1942,
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all the ablebodied men had left Texas to join the Confed-
erate forces and the cattle were free to roam the prairies
and multiply. V'iith no market a time came in Texas, it was
said, when a man's poverty was estimated by the number of
cattle he oossessed.65
In 1865-67, Fort Bend County had the fourth largest
cattle assessment in Texas, reaching 78,000 head, which
probably would indicate a presencec of more than lOO,OOO.66
The assessment was only 56,000 head in 1870 because there
was little or no merket for cattle. An effort was made to

get a profit from them by slsughtering them "for their hides

and tallow"., J. Frank Dobie in A Vaguero of the Brush Coun-

try, describes this phase of the cuattle industry. accord-
ing to that authority, splendid herds were driven from Fort
Bend County to rendering olants along the coasts where they
were slaughtered.67

The struggle of the first cattle raisers of the county
to find mirkets for their surplus cattle dates back to the

early drives of the 1840's when many of them were pooling

their cattle and driving them to the market at Harrisburg,

65 Joseph G. McCoy, Historic Sketches of the Cattle Trade
of the liest and Jouthwest, p. 20.

66 "Agriculture of the United Staees in 1860", Eighth Census,
Dis: L4

67 Edna May Tubbs, "Hide and Tallovw Factories Once Thriving
Industry on Coa=t", 3Sszn Antonio Lxpress, vol. LXIX,
(June 17, 1934), p. 27.
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Galveston, or New Orleans. However, "Trail driving” did
not assume pronortions of economic importance until after
the Civil ‘/ar when the influence of northern m.rkets began
to draw the product of the Texas ranges. The cattle of
Fort Bend County were then driven to the Northern murkets
over the Shawnee Trzil and the Chisholm Trail.68 ~8 soon
as the herds were collected, they were driven through Fay-
ette County along the spurs of the trail in Bell County,
proceeding thence due north to Tarrant County where the
trail continued to Northern markets or gress lunds. The cow-
boys of the county did not feel thet their careea was com-
plete without drives to Northern markets. Thomss W. Byars,
of the last of the cowboys who followed the trail, told very
interesting tales of his experiences on several of the
drives.

The Texas :Almanac of 1873 prints =2 list of owners who

had cattle driven over the Chisholm Trail, passsing Caldwell,

Kansas, in 1872. .mong then sre the following Fort Bend

County cattlemen:VO

i« Hoe Kyle May 28, 950
+m, Thompson May 29, 838
J. W. Foster June 3, 1711
D. Dougherty June 12, 700

68 Map, T. C. Richardson, The Texus Almanac, 1939-40, p. 210.

69 Interview, Thomas . Byars, Columbus, Texas, (Aug.51,1937).

70 "Record of Texas Cattle Passing Caldwell, Kanses, Driven
over the 0l1d Chisholm Trail, for the Year 1872", Texas
Almanac and Industrial Guide, 1873, p. 30.
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Guthrie and Beasley June 12, 2000
Robert Lodges June 21, 1700
J. W, ..dams June 22, 1850
John Xoore July 2, 1520
Little & Perryman July 6, 4500
T. P. Thompson July 29, 930

W¥ith the introduction of railroads into the state,
cattle trail-driving was interrupted. The railrozd com-
panies taking advantage of an opnortunity for increasing
freight made provisions to take cure of this phase of busi-
ness, and provided accommodations for the cattle to be
shipped from various locsalities.

Random, a flag station ten miles from Richmond, wus
in 1878 an' important shipping point for cattle in that
section, the railroed having provided ample accommodstions
for that purpose b y building a cattle pen.71

Late in the '5S0's the stockuwen of Fort Bend County be-
gan to use the barbed wire that John /. Gates, a young hard-
ware salesman, had introduced into Texeas in 1871.7% s
they fenced off their land and increased their holdirngs,
big rsnches came into existence s2nd improved strains of cat-
tle, raised under scientific wethods, were introduced, push-
ing the femous Texas lLonghorn into history.

Following the trend of the times, the cattle men of
this section began to feed steers for market and in this

way obtain a higher price for their csattle. 3oon the cattle

71 James L. Rock and W. I, Smith, Southern and ./estern Texas

Guide for 1578, p. 208.

72 L. W. Newton and H. Pl Gambrell, A Social and Political
History of Texas, p. <28.
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raisers began to reelize that if their cattle were to be
used as feeders they riust raise the improved beef type

which would Justify the cost of reeding. Accordingly, they
entered on this phase of cattle industry which resulted in
the introduction of several popular breeds of cattle. The
Holstein-Friesiun cattle were introduced into the county

by H. B. McCrary in 1894, and in the same year the Herefords
were brought in by the Ryon-Farmer Pasture Company. «hen
the Brahma cattle of India were introduced in the coastal
country by T. w. Pierce ("Shanghi"), a few of these cattle
were experimented with in Fort Bend County by k. J. Frost.
He had the distinction of being the second man in the United
States to import Brahma bulls to this country. 4t one time
he brought a sacred bull from India, which cost $2000 to im-
port. These Brahma cattle were considered "tick proof”.
Later the Shorthorns were introduced in the county by the

Voore-Dunlavy Ranch. However, of all the different breeds

which have come into the county, the Herefords are very lurge-

ly the beef unimal of this section.73

A visitor to the ranch of A. P. George would be im-
pressed by the efficiency of his modern stock faru which
has for its only purpose the breeding of better cattle.

George has had years of experience in the stock industry and

73 Interview, A. P, George, Richmond, Texes, May 15, 194:Z.
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his herds zare from the most popular and well esteblished

broodlines, comprising twenty-six well known families of

the Shorthern breed with sires of the leading herds of the

United States and Canada. Besides the Shorthorns, he

specializes in Herefords, Polled-angus, Durham, and Brahmas,

His show cow "Mayflower™ 1s an undefeated class winner and

& heavy milker.’4
The Bassett Blakely Ranch at Gaston attained netional

fame in 1926 when it wes used a3 location for the motion

oicture "North of o6".

Below are data by yeers showing the non-dairy cattle

population of Fort Bend County:

Yeur Number of cattle
1850 49,840
1860 61,853
1870 48,415
1880 44,429
1890 26,860
1900 45,364
1910 40,996
1920 32,384
1930 57,062
1940 43,69479

Dairying, Important adjuncts to Fori Bend County agricul-
ture are provided by duirying and poultry ruising. as of old,

FTort Bend County is still a cattle producing section, but not

74 News story, "A. P, Georges Herd Tukes hLonors", The Hous-
ton Chronicle, vol. XLI, (March 3, 1941), p. 8.

75 TUnited States Census for the yeurs indicated.
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alone for beef purposes. Dairying has made vast strides

in recent years. OSuch a rovement was, of course, to be
expected, =2long with improved breeés &and i.ore attention
being given to sanitary features. Prior to 1920 there

was relatively little milk production for the commercial
markets. 1lost of the dairy prcduction consisted of butter
for local trade. 3ince 1920 Fort Bend County farmers are
increasingly engaged in the industry snd there are several
large deiry farms thet attract considerable notice and pro-
duce profitable returns.

Probably the first dairy business in Fort Bend County
vas opereted by Mrs. Emma Wilson on Churchill Fulshesar's
Leke Hill Plentation at Fulsheer. Mrs., P. H., Manaker of
Fulshear, a niece of lrs. wilson, related that AMrs. vWilson
during a period of finuancial stress in the early '80's, be-
ceme interested in the possibility of deirying as a profit-
eble South Texas industry. #ith habitual energy she pressed
an aray of Negroes into service and gauthered dozens of Long-
horn cows. Negroes put the milk into tubs, which they car-
ried on their heads to a slat-covered dairy h use--a build-
ing which was still standing in 1940. Cream was skimaced
into 2 stone churn so tzall that one had to stand and reach
high to operate the dasher up and down. The butter was
packed into tin buckets and carried by wagon across the
country seven miles to the nearest railroad, where it was

shinped to Houston.
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Mrs. Maneker's story continuesf "ithen I was a very
small girl ‘luntie took me to Richmond, * here we visited
some of her friends. They were highly elcted over a new
breed of milch cows they had bought =nd eagerly took her
out to the barn to inspect them. They were Jerseys--so far
as I know, the first to be brought into the county."76

The best known dairy farm in the county todey is the
one owned by Benjamin Clayton of Czlifornia located on the
beautiful Sartartis Plantation which contains 2000 acres,
fronting on the 0ld Spanish Trail between Richmond and Sugar
Land. There are one hundred .nd sixty registered Jerseys,
almost everyone of them capable of becoming e champion. All
of them produce their own weight in butterfat each year,
and some surpass this record.

The John A. Yarling herd was established by buying good
Jersey calves and reising them into better cows. A firm
believer in good feed for his cattle, Yarling hes been do-
ing extensive growing of the soy bean. He has found it as

good a feed as alfalfea and uses it pboth as dry hay and as

ensilage.78

76 Interview, lMrs. P. H. Manaker, Fulshear, Texas, July
5, 1940.

77 News story, "Beautiful f'artartia Plantation Lends Charm
to County", Fort Bend Reporter, vol. XIII, (September

30, 1938), p. 2.
78 David J. Morris, "John A, Yarling of Rosenberg Sells Cows

to Buy Calves in Order to Build Up Fine Jersey Herd”,
The Houston Chronicle, vol. XII, (Aug. 24, 1941), p.14.




151

Yarling's herd takes most of the honors at the Houston
Fat 3tock 3how held each year. In 1941 when there were 208
entries in the show, his cows won four first places, two
sccond places and placed in several other classes.79 In
1942, at the Harris County Dairy Cow 3Show the Grand Chempion
of the entire fcmale exhibit was Royal Desigh -nn Lee, four
year old cow of the Yarling herd.so

Some of the other outstsnding Jersey dulry cattle owners
of Fort Bend Ccunty are Sugarland Industrics, Pauline Yeld-
erman, /. A, Brinkman, 'Will Lehman, and W. A. Owen.

Aabout 1916 & wave of silo building swept over the coun-
ty. ot first silos proved uisspvrointing becnuse the owners
lecned too heaviiy on enszilsge with too little coneentrutes
for the fattening rs:tion.81

E. W. Foote, a native of Breckenridge, Kentucky, came
to Rosenberg in 1985 and established & dairy in 1927. He
claims to have built the first trench silo in the ccunty,
which todauy has fourteen upright silos end thirty-eight

82

trench silos. The outstending dairy ferms find the silo

79 Newe story, "John Yerling's Lierd Takes Honcrs at Fat Stock
3how", The Texas Coaster, vol. XLVI, (Feb. 20, 1941),
pp. 7.

80 Kews story, "Dairy Cattle ./ir Honors in County Show",
The HOuston Chronicle, vol. XLII, (May 1, 1lv42), p. 12.

81 3. A. Mclfillan, The Book of Fort Bend County, p>. 162-163.

82 Interview, County .gent, H. B. Roes, Rosenberg, Texas,
February 25, 1942,



a necesasity. Together with soil conserveation, it is uak-
ing possible the feeding of more stock on & given area und
consequently more Fort Bend County Tarmers are buying dairy
herds.

Since there are rno creamreries in the county, cream
stations have been established in the various tovrs to which
the farmers take their milk, From the station, the milk is
trucked to Houston. Thus a ready cash market has been de=
veloped for the farmers. The ovners of the larger dairies
send their cream to Houston daily in their own trucks.

As the deirying industry developed, need wus felt for
closer ccoveration. This wus met by the organization of the
Tort Bend ‘ounty Dairy association in Richmond, January 24,
193¢.83

The first Deiry Show was held in Fort Bend County in
1941 and was acclaimed by dalry experts as being the largest
and the best one ever held in the State of Texus. It es-
tablished a precedent in the experience of deiry men through-
out the 3State and was a demonstration of county cooperation.
Over 10,000 neople were attractcd to Rosenberg for the two-
day show which had headquarters at the county fair ground.

The first day featured the military maneuvers of the

battelion of the 204th Coast artillery of Caump Helen with

83 News item, "Dairy ..ssociaticn Organized", The Texas
Coaster, vol. XLI, (January 30, 1036}, p. 1.
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It. Col. Robert F. Kennon in charge, and the Farmer's
Deughter contest. 411 "Duughbter" contestants vere required
to wear costumes made fron cotton. Miss Nelde Hopmann of
Peacsley wss uranimously awarded the title of "Miss Texas
Fermer's Deughter" and wes presented a becutiful trophy.

The National Gevgrerhic lagazine staff photographer took

cclored photogrpphs of the contestants. The second day of

the show feetured the dsiry cattile exhlbit.a4

Poultry. slthough poultry raising end egg production have
existed in Fort Bend Connty since the first settlers came,
very little was done for commercial advancement =2long this
line until about 1200. At that time some families in the
various communities bought incubators from mall order houses
and raised chickens on a small scale principally for home
use or &3 & memms of barter at the locsl stores. The mer-
chants in turn sold these chickens to the townspeople who
did not care to raise chickens or they shipped them to
Houston. s this was before the day of wotor vehicles the
shipments were usually made only for holiday trade in the
city.

The privately owned oil-burning incubator: had their

day of service, but they soon geve way to the new phasze of

84 News story, "Fort Bend County's First Dairy Show", The

Rosenberg Herald, vol. @LVII, (aApril 25, 1941), p. 1.
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the industry--"hatchcries”, which use electricity for
heating. The first hatchery to operate in the county known
as the Rosenberg Hatchery was built in Rosenberg in 1926
by E. G. alvers of La Grange, Texas. It now has a capacity
of 48,000 chicks every three weeks, with customers as far
as fifty miles away bringing thelir eggs to be incubated.
Due to great demand for chicks nearby, this hatchery does
not ship chicks any great distance.B

The only other hatchery in the county is located one
mile south of Needville on Highway 36. It was established
in 1929 by R. Roesler, Sr. and operated by E. A. Reisinger.
The capacity was 12,000 eggs. It now has a capacity of
33,000 eggs. No chicks are shipped, the local customers
coming for them as needed.86

Fort Bend County has no large farums devoted entirely
to comercial egg production. Probably the largest one is
owned by J. B. Mons, who lives on the Needville Highway.
It consists of two acres of well dreined land. an average
of 400 English ""hite leghorns are kept and an average of
250 eggs are gathered each day.87 The Fort Bend County

Poultry Association was organized in 1936.38

85 Interview, Richard Petters, Rosenberg, Texas, :April 3,1942.
86 Interview, Chas. T. Zwick, Needville, Texas, June 20,1942,
87 Interview, JStella Mons, Rosenberg, Texas, Feb, 25, 1942,

88 News item, "Poultry Association Organized™, The Texas
Coaster, vol. XLI, (January 30, 1936), ». l.
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Turkeys, The Fort Bend County turkey crop is growing
larger every ycar and becoming of incereasing importunce
as & uoney crop. In 1930 approximetely 30,000 turkeys were
marketed.

7ith the good murkets und the standard highways in
the county, the poultry ruising interprise, whieh is Just
beginning to be developed commercially is sure to go for-

ward steadily.

il. A recent lucrative industry in Fort Bend County ap-

pearéd with the discovery of oil zt Blue Ridge in 1919.

The Texas Coaster recorded the discovery in the following

terns:

Richzond was un excited town on Monday morning
when the news -pread that a gusher had come in on
the Blue Ridge Cil Field. qulite & number of our
citizens benefited by the gusher, und trading wes
brisk. =~ number owned one-acre tracts while se-
verasl larger tracts were ovned by groups of indi-
viduals. ost of the sales brought $10,000 per
acre, while C. [, Myers received $13,750 for his
one-acre tract.

3ix other fields have becn opened. In 1922 fleld ex-
plorations were followed by the discovery of new fields at
BigCreck, L. A, Meyer and .. U. 30 Relle of Houston at-
tempted to develop the area about 1920, but they were unsuc-

cessful in securing the drilling of a test well until Xarch,

89 News story, "Blue Ridge Gusher Inriches Richmond", The
Texus Coaster, vol. XIV, (.spril 8, 1919), p. 1.
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1922, when they uassigned 5,000 acres to the Gulf Company
and the Onowden-lcCweeney Company. A test well was drilled
to a total depth of 800 feet. It was comnleted on May 10,
1922, as an 800 barrel well, 20

The Nash Field was discovered Janucry, 1926, when the
Rycade Cil Corvnoration completed i1ts Number 5 Nash for an
initial production of 500 barrels per day from a lioccne
sand at 4,127 feet.%d

Other discoveries of 1926 include the Orchard Field,
which was proven for production by the compnletion of the
Gulf Production Company Number 5 l‘oore, on January 18, for
an initisl production of 2,000 burrels daily of 24.5 gravity
01l from an Cligocene sand at a depth of 3,708 feet.

The Sugar Land field vas proven for production March,
1927, by the completion of the Humble 0il :nd Rerfining Com-
pany Mumber 1 3ucarlend Industries, as an 800 berrel well

et o depth of 2,561 feet,%®

90 News 1ltem, "Big Creek 'ell Flows 300 Barrels", The
Rosenberg Herald, vol. {XII, (May 15, 1925), p. 1l.

91 News story, "Texas Hss Greatest Cil Production in Its
History During 1925", Houston Post-Dispetch, vol. LI,
(Janusry 17, 1926), p. 6.

92 News item, "Gulf Production Compcny bBrings in Big nell
2t Orchard", The Rosenberg Herald, vol. ITIXII,
(January 22, 1926), p. 1l.

93 News item, "800 Barrel .ell in Near Sugar Luand", The
Eouston Chronicle, vol. XXVIII, (March 27, 1925),
Da e
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long Point, which was discovered by the torsion bal-
ance in 1924, was listed among the producing fields of the
Gulf Coast following the completicn on December 15, 1928,
of the Gulf Production Company Number 3 VWoclf as a 50 barrel
0oil well at a depth of 600 feet.94 The o0il production from
this dome hes rot proven of any great importance.

The o0il prospect st Thompson had bedn of interest for
many years because of the surface elevation of that area.
On Mey 21, 1931, Gulf Production Company and Cullen and .est
completed their Lockwood and Sharp Number A-1 for an initial
production of 400 barrels per day from a depth of 3,089 feet.
They later secured production from sand at a depth of 3,476
feet and snother at 5,150 feet. The crude oil from this
field yields =n excellent grade of low cold test lubricant.g5

The Clodine field located on the John Frederick survey,
four miles south of the town of that neme weas drilled in
1929 by the Gulf Production Compeny, us.ing the torison and
seismic method. Two wells gave no important indications
and were abandoned. In September, 1941, the Providence
0il Company drilled their Number 1-ai located on the Wing
property. OSince then o0il production in that area has proved

imﬂortant.96

94 News item, "0il News", The Houston Chronicle, vol. XXVIII,
(December 16, 1928), p. 4.

95 C. A. Warner, Texas 0il and Gas Since 1543, pp. 206-208.

96 Editorial, "Fort Bend County", The Cil Weekly, (October
3, 1930), p. 2.
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The booms which followed the discovery of cach oil
field have incressed the wealth And population of the
county znd, whereas the county was formerly wholly a cat-
tle &nd agricultural district, its economic interests ure
now divided between agricultural products, cattle, and

vetroleum, and other minerals,

Sulphur., By 1928 Fort Bend County and other counties along
the Gulf Coast of Texas produced over ninety per cent of
the world's consumption of sulphur. In 1922, the Path-
finder Cil Compeny comnosed of H. A. Meyer, a. C. 3orelle,
and H. T. 3taiti attracted by sulnhur water springs, ob-
tained 2 block of leases on the west side of Big Creek u-
bout twelve miles south of Richmond. After unsuccessful
drilling of several shallow wells, they subleased to the
Gulf 0il Corporation. On December 15, 1924, the cowmpany
drilled and proved the dome with discovery well Number 1,
J. H. F, Davis. The Texss Gulf Company then acquired the
sulphur rights on the leases from the Gulf Production Com-
pany, built a plant and obtained their first sulphur pro-
duction in March, 1930. Sulphur nirning continued until
October, 1938,97

The Orchard Dome was discovered in 1924 by the Gulf

0il Corporation while drilling for oil. The Duval Texas

97 Interview, A. G. V/0lf of the Texus Gulf Sulphur Company,
Houston, June 24, 1942,
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Sulphur Company erected a plant and began operation in
the spring of 1938 and has operated continuously since
that time. Two hundred and twenty-five men are employed
at the plant. They work on eight hour shifts. The aver-

age production is approximztely five hundred tons per

day.98

The Company's plant at Orchard eserned a net income
of $708,5%5.,69 in 1941. Dividends totaling $625,000 ut

81,25 per share, wcre paid during the year.g9

Banking. Closely associated with the other industries of
Fort Bend County is the banking business. In early days

those doing extensive business kept sums on deposit with

Houston and Galveston firms. Graduelly citizens acquired
the habit of depositing their money with local umerchants

and lawyers to be kept in their iron safes,

Finally, in 1882, e privete bank was established in
Richmond by T. R. Beard. It was located in a building
across the street from the present Davis Building. A4s
no one else was finencially interested in the enterprise,
there were no directors or officers. Besard's nephew,wWw. J.
Goss, who now lives in Houston, helped in managing the busi-

ness of the bank until it closed. He states that it ceased to

98 Interview, J. H. Pollard, Assistant line Manager, Duval
Texas Sulphur Company, Houston, Texas, June <5, 1942,

99 News item, "Duval Sulphur arns 708,£35 During 1941",

The Eouszton Chronicle, vol. XLI, (March 7, 1941),
D. 6.
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operate because of lack of funds, although it is known to

100

have paid as high as 96 per cent dividends.

J. He P, Davis snd John !, lioore established the next

bank in 1890. It wsas located whcre the Richmond Phirmecy

is now operating. Davis was president, oore was vice-

president and C, A, Beasley was cashier. oore sold his in-

terest and Beasley became vice-president of the bank, now

known ss the Davis-Beasley Bank. A. P. George was employed

as cashier. At a lzter tiwe, this benk beccme kxnown as the

J., He P. Davis Bank. A branch benk was established in

101

Rosenterg in 1805 with R. £. L., iessendorff in charge.

The oldest bank in centinuous service in the county is

the Imperie)l Bank and Trust Company at Suger Land. It was

organized in 1908 by «. T, Ekldridge, sr.10z2

The Rosenberg 3tate Bank wes organized in May, 1909,

and opened for business on June 21l. The firat officials

were H. R., Kimbler, President und J. F. iilnston, Cashier.

103

The First Fationul Bank of Richmond wus orgenized in

1913, The first officials were J. R. Farmer, President;

A. M. Holmes, Vice-President; J. w. L, Stephen, Cashier.104

100
101
102
103
104

Interview, ., J. Goss, llouston, Tex.s, August 7, 1942,
Interview, A. P. George, Richmond, Texas, July 7, 1942,

Interview, E., 0. Guenther, Sugar Land, Texas, July 17,1941.
Interview, B, L. Johnson, Rosenberg, Texas, Feb.25,1941.

Interview, J. R. Farmer, Richmond, Texas, June 10,1942,
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The Beasley State Benk was organized fn 1917. The
first officials were F., J. Berchert, President; Dr. J. W.
Wec ks, Vice-Treddent; ¥%. E. Fenhert, Cashier, In 1931 this
bank consolidated with the I'irst National Bank of Rosen-
berg.lo5

The first benk in licedville was the Needville State
Bank. It wes orgunized in 1918. In 1925 this bank became
known as the First MNational Bank. Later it was changed to
the First State and Trust Company, and still later became
the First State Bank.106

The Fort Bend National Bank is locatcd in Richmond.

It was organized in 1925, The first officlals were D. R.
Peareson, Tresident; Dr. J. C. Johnson, Vice-President;
Dan lliller, Cashier.107

The First Naticnal Bank of Rosenberg wes organized in
1925. The first officiels were A, W, Miller, President;
Dr. J. W. Wecks, Vice-President; J. K. Junker, Cashier;

E. H. Yalenta, Assistant Cashier.108

105 Interview, J. E. Junker, Rosenberg, Texas, Kay 12, 1942,
106 Interview, Ches. T. Zich, Needville, Texas, June 20,1942.
107 Interview, Dr. E. P, Newton, Richmnond, Texas

108 TInterview, J. E. Junker, Rosenberg, Texas, iay 12, 1942,
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These benks have always been found in the front in
an effort to serve the industry, convenience and advence-
ment of their customers and the county in gencral.

The history of the Imperial Sugar Comnany dates back
to 1853 when a lr. Kyle and B. F. Terry bought the John
M, Willi=ms plentation and built a sugur house. after the
death of Kyle end Terry the heirs sold the property to E.
H. Cunninghum in the '70's. In 1890 Cunninghsm installed
machinery and made refined as well as raw sugar. By 1902
such was the dem.nd for refined Fort Bend County sugar that
it becume necessary to imnort taw stock. The first cargo
came from Cuba through the port of Galveston. ith change
of ownership in 1906, the name of Cunningham Sug-r Company
was changed to Imperial Sugar Company. 'The new owners,
We T, Ildridge of Suger land and I. H. EKemnpner of Galves-
ton, began to increase the capacity ofthe plent so that
today it has = daily cap-city of neerly 2,000,000 pounds.

The refinery establishment embraces several units e-
quioped with -iodern machinery for refining sugar through
2ll its steges. The units include en electric nlant to
supply light and oower, a by-products mill, and machine
shops. 2mple provisions are made for future expsnsicn.

It hes been estimuted that since the company began to
imhort r=w sugars, it his paeid in duties to tke Federal Gov-
ernment mcre money then the government has spent in Texas

for imrrovenents on rivers and harbors. In addition to
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paying over §3,000,000 in import duties, this coupany's
state taxes are more than $150,000 a year. Its miscel-
laneous purchases in the state amount to over 2,000,090,
and its annual pay roll is 41,000,000 per ye\':r.lol9

It is cluimed that sugar rationing by the Federal
Government has caused a huge sugar surplus, filling the
warehouses of the Cowmpany. Due to this condition, the
Company's refinery was closed oh June 17, 1942. It is
reported that it will not be operuted again until the
surplus sugar begins moving in trade channels.llo

The Richmond Cotton 0il Company, Inc., a part of the
Anderson Clayton interests, has been one of the vital
factors in the progress of Fort Bend County. This firm
was established in 1913, under the nume of tne Fort Bend
Cotton 0il Company.

The mill closed after a short period of operation. It
was later taken over by the State and manned with convict
labor. The experiment proved a failure, and again the mill
closed. In 1929 the aAnderson Cleyton interests purchased
the property and the entire nlent was remodeled. It then

opened a cash market for the planter and ginner of the county,

saving them long shipping and hauling expenses for their

109 Pamphlet, From Cane-3Brake to 3ugar Bowl, Published by
Imperial Sugar Company, 1937, Dp. 5-6; 18.

110 News story, "Full Warehouses Force Refinery to Close
Down", The Houston Chronicle, vol. XLII, (June 21,
1942), p. 13.
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cotton seed. Products manufactured by the mill include
cotton seed o0il, cotton seed cuke, cotton seed hulls,
and linters.
The crush for =n average year is 6,000 tons, the
price of which is from $45 to {50 a ton. .lmost all the
meal and hulls from the mill are fed to cattle in the county.
The 1lint is shipped to various places in the United States.lll
The only nursery in the conty is the Teas Nursery ut
Sugaer Lend., It was established in 1934 on thirty-two acres
of land, 3even men cre awonloyed and the compuny averages
about $10,000 worth of business each year.llz
The Marshall Canning Company at Sugar Land, operating
on a year round schedule, was established in 1935, It is
owned by a corporation in liarshalltown, Iowa. In addition
to the use of locul garden products for canning, the firm
brings in beans from Colorado, hominy corn from Iowa and
Southwest Texes, :nd spaghettl from Illinois., The plant is
equipped to turn out 300,000 cases of canned products per
yeer, Between 300 snd 400 people are employed «t the caniery
in normal times uand canned foods ure shiosped to California,

Floriaa, Oklshoma, and to many Texas cities.l15

111 Interview, F. W. Hubbard, Richmond, Texas, lay £0, 1942.

112 Interview, ILarl Patterson, lanager of the Nursery, larch
9, l94z2.

113 Interview, liiss L', A. Burns, Office Kanuger of the Suguar
land Office, larch 9, 1942.
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The Visco Products Company, ownecd by the National
Juninate Comnany of ChicaBo, located in 3Sugur Land about
thirtcen years ago. It was attiracted therc beciause 3Sugar
Iond is a good shivring center und it is also uear the
center of the territory accommodated by the Compeny. The
company ordin=rily produces an emulsion breskerage chemi-
cal for trcating crude oll. It is row producing vwar nat-
erials., Raw pnaterial is obtained by the Company chiefly
from the Dow Chemicel Company at Frceport.ll4

The Andrus .ibstract Company now known usg the Fort
Bend ~ibstract Compsny 1s the oldest business firm in TFort
Bend County. It wes founded in Richmond in 1850 by iielter
Andrus, the first msle child born in the town of Richuond.
This institution possesses priceless documents of bygone
days. .mong them =re the originel 3panish Government
grants to the various lesgues of land in the canty, written
on sheepskin or cn nigshin, c¢n which the Sparish writing is
still legible. One of the these 0ld documents was signed
on July 15, 1824, by Baron de Bastrop, Stephen F. .sustin,
Semuel », Williems and John Austin at 3an Felipe de .ustin.
Another 2ricinel document tears the seal of the Republic

of Texus and the signature ..nson Jon-s, President. There

114 Interview, Dr. *. H. Kirkpatrick, llcnager of the Qugar
Land Branch, January 20, 19435,
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is also a pardon given to David Randon, one of the origi-
nzl settlers of the county, signed on November 18, 1865,
by .ndrew Jackson, then president of the United States.
Mumerous lettcrs in the files of this business dating back
& hundred years speak elocuently to those privileged to
read them of the nhercic achievements of the men «nd women

who luid the fcundations of the culture and enterprise of

FPort Bend County.ll5

115 Nevs story, "0ld Firm Moves Plent", The Texas Coaster,
vol. XXVIII, (May 4, 1923).



CHAPTER VII

SOCIAL AND CIVIC DEVELOPMLINT

Barbecues, Contests, Tairg, The early colonists of Fort

Bené County hed little oprortunity for smucement and en-
tertainment. Fourth of July celebrations, elections, and
simil:r occasions wcre welcome diversiors. 3Sometimes when
the neovle would get torether, for s barbecue, they would
finish the occassion wvith a dance which lasted until morn-
ing. !lore often =n election or the celebretion of a holi-
day furnished the occassion for a berbecue snd & ball,
Mrs. Dilue Harris tells in her reminiscenses of the burbec-
cue znd ball that she sttended on September 1, 1836, at
3tafford's Point. She says:

The barbecue, ball, =znd election werc st lMr. Dyer's

near our house. 'I'bs people cume frow different

settlements . . . There was no drinking or fighting.

The ladies spent the day quilting. The young pec-

prle began dancing 4t 3 o'clock and kept it up un-

til the next morning . . . That was my last ball

at an election. After that there wes too rmuch whis-

key drunk for ladies to be present.

In the late fifties and early sixties the vecpnle con-
tinuead to enjoy i.orse races, dunces-which they often called

masquerade balls--picnics, horseback riding, barbecues =nd

protrzcted meetings.

1 "Reminiscences”, Mrs. Dilue Uarris, (uarterly of The
Texas 3tate Historical ..ssociation, vol. IV,
(October, 1900), p. 103
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In regerd to ths barbecues, llils: Lavinia Ferls says,
"In those dcys when & berbecuec was sugeested, no one thought
of c.rrying & paper srcund, soliciting subscriptions to
defray expenses., Fat yearlirgs, goats, znd sheep were de-
livered =t the pit. The ladles vied witk one arother to
furnish u menu that included every delicucy thke ccunty of-
forded."

The residents of Fort Bend County often traveled far
for their pleasures. A celebration as held in Huerrizburg
on the first annivcrsary of the Battle of 5an Jzcinto.
Many from Fort Bend =ttended. The young pecple denced and
the older people reminisced. These affairs vere typicul
for nmany yenrs. Social 1ife of the people soon included
out-door sports, fuirs, rsnd pleys in addition to dcarces,
The county was not witimut its early-dsy sporting interest.
One of the first horse races was cnnounced to take place
on the Richmond track on the first lMonduy in December, 1847.
The truck wus described as being cightcen feet wide, one
of the best in the country. ITour of the finest horses had
been engaged to perticipate, nnd the cocntest was open to
all horsesz. 'The entrunce fer of 25.00 permitted the en-
trant to compete in the feature race which offered a purse

af 32,000.2

2 John V. Yortor, "Notice, Greast Sport Is Expected",

Telegraoh end Texas Register, vol. II, (October Z5,
1857?, pP. 9.
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Several years later Churchill Fulshear bec.me in-
terested in racing and bought and raised thorough breds
for the track. His stables becsme known throughout the
State. For twenty years, 1850-1870, he maintuined a race
course, Churchill Dovns, where famous races were run. To-
day the Tloor-like space of hsrd packed earth of the track
i1s still suggestive of its former use when the richest
planters of South Texas gathered there to bet high stakes,
on their favorite horse. Tradition tells that Fulshear
pnce owned the land where Corpus Christi now stands, but
lost it on 2 horse race.3

~8 late as 1853 a match race was held on the Richwond
track for s prize of §$600. The two contestants were "Zack
Taylor" ovned by J. Roper and "Tricken" which belonged to
J. Juykendell.4

When races were not being held in Fort Bend County
the citizens were interested in those held in Houston.

The editor of a Houston paper quoted in 16868 that Dr. G,
A. Feris of Richmond, president of the Houston Jockey Club,
w28 in the city arranging for the December races which would

continue for a week, beginuing December 29.5

3 Florz Humphries, "Lake Hill Plantation at Fulshear, Rome
of Cne of Houston's Scouts™, The EHouston Chronicls,
vol. YX7VI, (July 5, 1936), p. 20.

4 News item, "State News™, Galveston .;eckly News, vol. X,
(December 20, 1853), p. 4.

5 News item, "The Races", Eouston Daily Times, Vol. VI,
(November 6, 1863), p. 3.
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Later, in giving an announcement of the races for
the first day, the editor wrote that Churchill Fulshear
had entered his horse "Temerlsne" for the one mile dash

as a contestant for the prize of %125. The papers do not

reveal the vwinners of the races.6

One form of emusement that has been described at length
and of which the writer had ncver heard in any other lo-
cality was called "Gander Pulling". The following descrip-
tion is quoted:

Gander pulling became guite a fad in the late
1330's. Stafford's Point was the locality in
which the snort found greatest favor. The weekly
contests, held generally on Saturday cfternoons,
drew many Houstonians.

The participants mounted their horses and held
them reined up a the edge of the field, waziting.

The next step was to grease the gander's head
sand neck thoroughly and suspend him by his feet
froo un overhardng limb of = tree. With every-
thing in readiness, the starter gave a signzl,
and the line of men came clattering across the
field at top speed. Lach contestant with asrm ex-
tended would gauge the position of the wriggling
gander and gr=b at the bird's slick neck as he
came into position.

The participent lucky enough to tske the gander's
head with him was nresented one hclf of the pot
which had been made un before the contest opened.
The Bemaining half went to the owner of the zan-
der.

6 Ibid., (December 29, 1868), p.2.

7 News story, "Houstonians ILnjoyed Gander Fullin.s in Dsays
of the Republic", The Houston Chronicle , vol. IXXVI,
(August 31, 1936), p. 18.
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Shooting motches were one of the favorite amusements
of the early settlers. The men took much pride in their
marksmanship and to make the best shot was considered a
gre=t achievement. The choice of the quarters of ua becf
wgs usually the prize offered. The hide and tallow of the
animal with the lead fired into the tree to which the tar-
get was nailed made a fifth prize. It was known as a fifth
quurter., Naturally this "fifth quarter™ went to the poor-
est marksman, yet, the lead was valuable &nd was ulways
carefully dug out of thc tree.®

In 1866, one of the chief pleasures of the young veo-
ple of the county were tourn:-uwents which sometimes continued
for two days. 3Such an occasion is described by a local pa-
per which stated that twenty-four Knights of the kichuond
Tournament ussembled, and under Chief Marshall C. Cook, were
marched to the grounds selected by the committee. Specta-
tors were seated under an aerbor and judses were selected.

At the end of the coatest the first day lkiss Mollie 3tuns-
bury was crowned cueen by Phil Mudd. In the evening a ball
was given beginning ut nine o'clock in Herndon hall; supper
was served at twelve.

The second day trick riding was participated in by the

Knights. The events included p»icking up objects frow the

8 Mettie Jackscn, The Rising »nd Sett’ng of the Llone 3tar
Republie, p. 70.
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ground while riding at full speed, the winner on this occa-
sion being John Brown who received 2 copy of Life of Stone-

wall Jackson; "Riding at the Huddles", which was won by

J. M, Jones who received a silver, gold-lined goblet; "Follow
Your Leader", which was won by G. E. Mayes who received a silver
goblet. The queen was then escorted from the grounds and the
tournament closed with another ball at Herndon Halls.®
After the 'TJer Between the 3tates, barbecues were often

an excuse to have political discussions. OCne is mentioned

in 1868 about which the editor of the Houston Daily Times

says: "The Grand Barbecue at Richmond is tomworrow, and we
cannot find time to atiend, but we send a representative,
our hearts and the Times. 'Je wish the barbecuers a good &and
glorious time. Xay they feast their souls on lost principles
and undying hope."lo

Nuch entertaining was done during "Court iWeek"™ when
lawyers, their famlilies, and visitors from the plantations
caine to Richmond to enjoy the social festivities., The
earliest newspaper notice of such an occasion was a party
complimenting Judge W. E. Jones, wkich was held at the Rich-

mond Hotel.11

9 News story, "Knights of the Richmond Tournament™, Rich-
mond Times, (October 30, 1866), p. 3.

10 News item, Houston Daily Times, (Septeumber 11, 1868), p. 2.

11 News item, Richmond Telegraph and litersary Register, vol.
II' (ApriI II’ IB ’ p. .
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Circus Day in Fort Bend County was one of recreation
end excitement in the sixties cand seventies, according to
Miss lavinia Feris. The cireus with a8ll its animals and
painted vehicles of that time was transnorted overland by
wagon and it wes of sufficient ezcitement to afford topics
of conversation for days prior to its arrivel and weeks af-
ter its departure. Miss Feris also say<¢ th~t Richmond was
regarded by tr: veling shows as =2n exceedingly favorable
"stands"., It took nothing wore them 2 wagon, the flare of
a torch and s bleck-faced white man with a2 benjo to draw
a large crowd. ccording to e news story from Columbus,
Texes, the Great Chic=go Show exhibited in that town august
20, 1873, and left the next moruing for Richmohd.lz

There were stock entries and miscellzneous entries
consisting of evcry thing from pictures to plows, including

fancywerk and food st the first agricultural feir held in

\{

Fort Bend County. Iven = samnle of penmenship was exhibited
by "lester"” John Pillard. It was estimeted that 15,000 peo-
ple attended the fair the first day. The lone Star Band
from Fouston furnished music. ..t night fireworks were dis-
pl:cyed =nd a dance was enjoyed. Several Richuond belles
eompleted for the prize offered to the best lacy waltzer,

17iss Kate little winning the prize, & pair of slippers, size

12 TInterview, Miss Lavinia Feris, Richiiond, Texas, June 6,
1942; news item, "From Columbus", The Galveston Com-
mercial, vol. V, (August 23, 1873), p. 9.
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one and one-hslf. OCn the second day the stock was judged
and the fair closed.

The reporter ended his account in the following wanner:
mend they folded their tents, like the .rabs, =nd as si=-
lently stole away . . . this morning upon the fair grounds
a transformation had tzken pluce . . ., all that remained
of the festive scene of the d=y before was ter empty beer
kegs."lS

#ith the eppro=ch of the 1880's, a new generation had
grown up 3ince the Civil W/ar; yet many forms of socilal life
atill pertook of the great outdoors., Below is a reproduct-
ioh in part of an socount of a tournsment much like those
of pre-Civil Yar deys, which was held in Richmond, as pub-

lished in The Richmond De. ccrat in 13882,

GRaND Gal A DaY

Thursday, sAugust 28, 18382, was Richmond's red let-
ter day of the year . .

The dzy's nrogrzm comnenced esrly for some of the
committee were attending to their duties by dawn.
About rine o'clock the committee of reception
stzrted for the Santa Fe depot to meet the duy's
orator. About that time the streets were astir
with Knights in gorgeous costumes, who were to be
the heroes of the day.

The Chicago Band, of Galveston, cume by train and
was provided by S. D. ‘heat with wagons to parade

13 News story, "The Fort Bend Fair", The weekly Telegram,
vol. ¥XI, (June 7, 1878), n. 2,
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the streets. The Knights, marshalled by Clem
Bussett, followed the musicians., The ground was
duly reached where a goodby number were assen-
bled to hear lr. Macklemore's COration. The gen-
tlenan spoke ably for some half bcur . . .

The w. K. Davis Gun Club was next in order, and
the crowd moved to witness some of the best
shootink of the season.

Dr. Turner, msaking nine balls out of ten, won

the first prize. The second prize was won by

J. ¥. Blekely; the third, by George Reeding.

Next in order came the barbecue for whichvere
provided six yearlings, four hogs, eight shecp,
600 lo:ves of bread, coffee, ice cream und lemon-
ede.

The barbecue wss followed by & Tournzment, the
high places being won by Dan Ragsdale, James Bush,
and «, Heamilton, in the order named.

The crow: s and wreaths were pnleced on the hezds of

the recipients by C. Bassett, who presented the

queen with = besutiful cake mede by Xrs. 3. D.
«heat for that purpose.

Marshall Bassett then presented the prized to the
winners of the day =nd closed the day's proceed-
ings. In the evening cume the Ball, which was
described =s follows:

The bell started off with the Royal danece in
which the winners of the prizes in the &fternoon
figured alone with the ladies who had accepted
the tronohy of their victory. Then followed
waltzes, guadvilles, and polkas--but here our
revorter left them, hoping that the cry would be

"On with the dance,
et joy be vnconfined."14

14 News story, "Grend Gala Day", The Richmcnd Democrat,
August 28, 1882, copied in the Texas Coaster, vol.
"1I, (June 15, 1936), p. 6.
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The County Fair. The Fort Bend County Falr association,

Incorporated, sponsored by the Rosenberg Lion's Club, was
organized April 27, 1932, .fter receiving the charter,
the ..ssociation leessed sixteen acres of ground helf way
between Richmond and Rosenberg on Highway MNumber 263. In
1938 twenty-seven acres including the leased land wuas
bought. Seven buildings have be:n erected. 4 race track
wus constructed which was used until 1935 when, because
of luck of revenue, racing was discontinued. The fair, how-
ever, is 4n annual event, asnd is usually held for three
days in October. Hundreds of dollars sre paid in premiums
on farm oroducts, opoultry exhibits, educational exhibits,
fancy work, cunned food, livestock and antique exhidits.
An excellent exhibition of the resources of the county is
always shown to a large enthusiastic crowd.1®
Not satisfied with participating in their own fairs,

the citizens of Fort Bend County frequently had displeays
at the Houston Fair as early ss 1881. In that yeur Miss

Laura Irvin, a reporter for The Americ n Sketch Book, a

Texas ploneer msgazine, wrote thut the Fort Bend display

was said to be the most complete and varied on exhibition

and was an honor to J. W. Echman of Richmond who arranged it.

It consisted of pears, apples, peaches, oranges, melons,

15 Nevs story, "Fort Bend County Fair Associeticn™, The
Fort Bend Reporter, vol. VIII, (april 28, 1933),
p. 1; Interview, liss Tillie Earper, Richmond, Texas,
June 15, 1942,
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(weighing 80 pounds), Irish potutoes (weighing one pound),
ribbon cane, corn, tobacco, fifty varieties of timber, and
nine varieties of soil. The honey display of Echman =at

the Houston Tair in 1882 was said to have surpassed any-
thing of the kind made in the State up to that time. Three

tons of honey were taken from seventy swarms of bees.16

Societies, Theatricals, Marriages. Otiner opportunities

for social intercourse were found in societies, theatricals,
and musical organizations established in the county. On
June 16, 1845, a number of Fort Bend citizens uwet at Rich-
mond and formed a Temperance Society which was founded on
the principle of total abstinence. Forty-six men and women
pledged their cooperation and elected officers. A coumwittee
formulated the constitution which was accepted by the or-
ganization. On the occasion of meeting, two visitors,
Reverend J. Whipple and Reverend J. «#esson made eloquent
specches., The next mecting was scheduled for July 4, 1845.17
A report on the existence of a "Sons of Temperance
Hall™ in Richmond on September 2, 1851, indicates that the

society was still uctive at that time.1®

16 Laura J. Irvin, "A Sketch of Fort Bend County", The
American Sketch Book, p. 75.

17 News item, "For the Telegraph", Telegranh and Texas
Register, vol. X, (July 2, 1845), p. 3.

18 News item, "Mr. Editor, 3ir", Calveston .ieekly News,
vol. VIII, (September 2, 1851), Dp.Jd.
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Amateur theatriculs were enjoyed in Fort Bend County
as early as the fifties. Various accounts state that the
year 1856 was active in dramastic circles. Lota M. Spell
wrote that Richmond boasted the "Lone Star Histrionic usso-

ciation" and the Calveston VWeekly News, stated that "The

Richmond Histrions" are having their own fun, and impart-
ing not a little to the citizens. On lionday night they are
to perform three farces. Admission, fifty cents. Front
seats reserved for the ladies.” e

March 28, 1830, the Dramatic Club presented "The Hidden
Hand", The cust of characters was composed of the leading
young people of the community. Forty-six dollars and sixty-
five cents was realized from the sale of tickets. In August
the same year "Love's Sacrifice" was presented by the Club.

In 1880, in a letter to the editor of the Beaumont
Lumberman the Richmond correspondent wrote: "We've been
having gay times . . . theatricsls, leap yeuar parties, wed-
dings, two masquerades, etc."

Later, in 1885, this correspondent wrote: "We have a
skating rink in full blast here".

As late as 1886 histrionic talent of Fort Bend County

was highly commended. In a letter to the Richmond paper

19 Lota M. Spell, "The Theater in Texa? before the)civil
War", The Texas Monthly, vol. V, (April, 1930), p. 300.
News,story, "RIchmond", Galveston Weekly News, vol.

Xv, (May 2, 1857), p. 5.
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a Houston citizen wrote: "The Harrisburg Amateur Dramsatic
Company pleyed in Houston and they did well, but they could
not hold a candle to friends in Richmond™ . . . Give Lrs.

J. C. XM, and Mrs. J. B. the FPillot Cpera House, lights und

scenery with the Richmond young folks and Harrisburg tzlent

would be non-est?zo

Rosenberg has the honor of having had the only Little
Theater in the county. Through the efforts of Samuel Alex-
ander and Kathleen Joerger, a group of thirty-four young
people met April 20, 1940, at the home of Mr. ¢nd Mrs. L.
G. CGriffin end organized a little Theater. Since organiza-
tion, three »luys were given each season, the door receipts
defraying excenses of the performances, On account of the
war, the orgenization has disbzrnded for the duration.?l

wWeddings in the carly days of the county, as now, were
imoortsnt eveuts, snd people from miles around were invited.
The ceremony wes usuelly followed by a wedding supper con-
sisting of berbecued mution, veal, and pork, with other good

food filling long tebles which were kept spread throughout

the night for hungry guests.zz Dancing w:s an important

20 Tillie Harper, tcther's looseleaf Scrupbook, lLarch 28,
1880, l'arch 13, 1086.

21 Interview, L. G. Griffin, Rosenberg, Texas, Februsry 15,
1943.

22 A. J. Sovell, History of Fort Bend County, pp. 53-59.

ike
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feature of the progrzm. To the tunes made by = fiddle,

a clevis and a pin, the young folks "made the splinters
fly", as one narticipant said many years later. Such a
dance held at Jesse Cartwright's near the Fort Bend Set-
tlement, when his dzughter married Nicholas McNutt is des-
cribed by an early Texan, Noah Smithwick.23 The customns
there described continued in vogue until the outbreak of
the ¥ar Between the 3tates. During the conflict, social
life became very cuiet. The men were goane, the women were
busy managing the homes, directing the slaves, knitting
and sewing for the soldiers. Even the yocunger boys and
girls had their share of work to do.

For a while after the war, there were few entertain-
ments &s a result of the unh=ppy life of Reconstruction
Days. The farther the people of the county got zway from
those days, however, the :ore rapidly the social intercourse
grew, .S in earlier days, weddings furnished =n opportunity
for social meetings. A certain social gesture, tynical of
the gracious hespitality of the picturesgque deys in the
014 South, was known 23 an "enfare", meaning the reception
given the bride by the family of the groom. The brillance
of such affairs wes & matter of family pride and & proof

of sociasl eminence. Guests were invited from a radius of

23 Noah Smithwick, The Evoluticn of a 3Stste, p. 40.
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fifty miles. .48 was customary during that period, each
lady brought extra costumes to be donned for special fea-
tures of the festivities.24 A charivari was frecuently
given the newly married couple soon after they started
house keeping. This was a more boisterous occasion then
the infare. The young people would go to the home of the
newly=-weds with puns znd other instruments with which to
make noise. The couple was expected to open their home for
an informal party.25
Bnother form of "diversion" was the "Protracted meet-
ings", which were often held and always well atended. «hen
it was announced that a "meeting" was to begin, no matter
what was on foothorse race or dance, everything was called
off, and everyone vent to church. A minister is reported
to have once said that it was no use to tell people of
Fort Bend County about paradise; they wanted no better place
to live than their oresent ubode.z6
The celeoration of Christmas with a public tree on
Christmas Ive becume a custom inthe county in the seventies.

Comi:ittees entrusted with arrunging this importent event

wecre appointed long in advance. st the stated time gifts

24 Mrs., T. A. Humphries, "Home ol Feudal Liagnificence Now
Only Bfick Heap", The Houston Chronicle, vol. LXXVI,
(April 18, 1B36), D. 27.

25 Interview, Mrs., Rachel Davis, Richmond, Texas, July 27,1ls42.

26 Interview, !iss Lavinis Feris, Richmond, Texas, June 6,194Z2.
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were carried to the church, ready to be hung by the tree
dressing committee. Witty comments from the master of

the distribution ceremonies increased the gaity. Children
and adults when names were ca2lled all murched down the

aisles and back again bearing gifts.27

Political and Patriotic Activities, In 1884 when Grover

Cleveland was elected to the presidency, there was a cele-

bration in Richmond which, according to one report, lasted

for a day and night. Cannon were shot. Anvils were fired

and "noisy sixshooters made music" during the day. Men

paraded the streets at night, carrying huge "illuminzted

transparencies" and torches.28 Legend has the story that

at that time there was one man in Richmona who had made

stump speeches in the North during the campaign for James

Blaine, the Republican nominee., hen the Richmond Demo-

crats had finished their night of celebration, they threw

into the front yard of the Republican citizen all of the cast-

off paraphenalia of the celebration. Legend says also that

this Republican wss vave Nation, the husband of Carrie Nation.
In 1885 the young men of Richmond =nd nearby communi-

ties organized & social and literary club which by 1888 had

enrolled about eighty-five members. It was known as the Rose-

bud Club. Meetings were held over Henry Frost's saloon

27 Interview, Mrs. W. L. Nesbitt, Columbus, Texas.

28 Tillie Harper, Mother's Looseleaf Scrapbook, undated
clipping, "Redeemed at Last".
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and political discussions came to occupy much of the time
of members. They protested against the continuance of the
Negro controlled regime of county politics. Out of this
social gathering came the Young lMen's Democratic Club of
Richmond. A meeting was called of all the Democrats in the
county. This meeting resulted in the formation on July

7, 1888, of the Young Men's Democratic Club of Fort Bend
County. October 3, 1889, the Democratic Club was merged
into the "Jeybird Associad:ion".z9

In the nineties there was at least one organization
in the county for men besides the lodges. It was the Deaf
Smith Chapter of the Sons of the Republic of Texas orgunized
in Richmond, April 11, 1893, in the office of Judge F. M. O,
Fenn,

Representatives of the Richmond Chapter went to Hous-
ton on April 19, 1893 to participate in the celebration on
April 21. They were present on April 20 when the state
organization of the Sons of the Republic of Texas was per-
fected with W. A, Craddock as State President and P. Briscoe
as Secretary.so

Time passed, members died and other organizations came

to £ill the men's social needs. The "Sons" disbanded, some

29 Interview, F. M. O. Fenn, Richmond, Texas, June 3, 1938.

30 F. M. 0. Fenn, "Sons of the Republic of Texas", The Fort
Bend Reporter, vol. XIII, (September 30, 1938), p. 15.
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transferring their membership to the chupter in Houston.
Later snother chupter, known as Mirabeau B. Lamar Chapter,
No. 5 was organized. John ). Moore, Jr. is now President
and H. N. Darst 1s Secretary-Treasurer.

On Wednesdsy night June 8, 1920, a camp of Sons of
Confederate Veterzns w2s organized in Richmond. This
camp did not Join the Nationzal orgenization and after a
short time interest died and the members disbanded.51

Another club of short duretion was the Young Democra-
tic Club of Fort Bend County which was organized at the
court house ~ugust 17, 1938, with representatives present
from six towns. J. L. Bridges, chairman pro tem of the
meeting prcsided. . H. Higginbotham, state membership
chairman, instructed the group in perfecting the local or-
genization. A membership committee was appointed. 4 char-
ter was presented by Stute President C. A. Fickett of Hous-
ton to a club of sixty-three members.32

The club was never disbanded officiully, but after one
year it ceased to function and died a natural death. The

originsl charter issued to the club is in the tax assessor's

office at the court house,

31 News item, "Camp Confederate Veteran's Sons Organized
Eere", The Texas Coaster, vol. <XV, (3eptember 10,
1920); D+ &

32 News item, "Young Democratic Club of Fort Bend County
Meets", The Texas Coaster, (Aaugust 13, 1938; September
15, 1938),
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Frobably not to seci: less pglriotic than the men, the
women of Fort Bend County organized the Frank Terry Chapter
No. 378 of the United Daughters of the Confederacy. The
chapter was chartered April 30, 1900, at Rlchwond.%® Dur-
ing its first ye=urs great interest was shown among the wowen,
and the chapter's membership comprised the most active and
leading women of Richmond. :/ith the p=ssing of time and
the development of nevw interests the organization becume
wenkened and in 1978 the charter was cancelled. Three char-
ter nmembers, Mrs, Peareson,lirs. Vinston and Miss Feris, ure
living.

There huve been sceverzl clubs organized in the county
that functlioned for only a short time. 3Sometimes its pur-
pose was accomplished or other interests needed encourage-
ment. An examnle of the former was the Woran's Submission
Club for Fort Bend County which was organized ¥arch 6, 1919
by Mrs. Augusta C. Hucheston of New York City, Nationsal
Field counselor. The purpose was to instruct the women in
the use of suffrage. OCOfficers for the county were elected
at tﬁe mecting held at the court house.34Fort Bend County
women opposed woman suffrage, nevertheless, they becsme vot-

ing citizens in 1919 when the Nineteenth smendrent was passed.

33 Interview, frs. J. E. Howze, 3tute Custodian, U. D. C.,
Austin, Texas, June 15, 1942,

34 News item, "WWoman's Submission Club", The Rosenberg
Herald, vol. XXV, (March 7, 1919), p. l.
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Fraternal Orders. The dawn of the twentieth ccntury was

1180 the dawn of 3 new social order in Texas. The first
quarter of the century witnessed rapid changes. The old
order was passing «nd there was wuch necd for spiritual
and cultural advancement,; =8 well a3 material development.
Both men and women participated in the change by orgeniz-
ing lodges and clubs to broaden their views ana furnish
meuns to coordinate their efforts in civic affairs. 1lodges
and non-secret orgerizations of many kinds began to re-
place the older formns of entertainment. They afforded a
medium which drew the people together, a 1means of spiritual
enrichment of the lives of the members, and the pleasure of
contact with friends. These advantages kept the interest
high. Iack of a guorum at regular meetings was unheard of
and often members traveled miles to be present.

The Masonic lLodge, the Independent Order of 0dd Fel-
lcews, the Woodmemn of the ‘World and the wousen's auxillarics

of these organizations have been active at various times.

The ancient Free and :ccepted Order of Masons, Morton Lodge
No. 72, was the first lMasonic lodge organized in the county.
A dispensation was granted May 24, 1850. A charter besring
te date January 24, 1851, was issued at Henderson, Texas,

by W. B. Ochiltree, the grand mester of Texas at that time.,°0

35 Letter, George H. Belew, Grund Secretary, =. F. und a. H.
waco, Texas, June 29, 1942.
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The original charter and all the early records of the
Lodge were destroyed by fire in 1537. Llorton Lodge now
holds regular mectings in its own two story brick building.
During the Centennial celebration of the Grand lodge of
Texas, mneeting in Waco in December, 1937, the work of
William "orton, whose name the lodge besrs, as one of the
first Vasons in Texas, was deplicted in pageunt form,°6

The Rosenberg lodge, A. F. und i, M., No. 88l, was
granted its charter on December 3, 1903. It held its first
mecting Tebruary 20, 1904, The first me.ting was held in
the 0ld frame building belonging to W. A. Moers on the site
now occupied by the Houston Iighting and Power Company.

In 1929 the lasons bought the Beecher Cochran bullding and
moved into 1it.

R. F. Yulcohy, E. D. Donat, snd¢ T. F. Greham were the
first to receive degrec¢s which were conferred IFebru.ry 20,
1004.°7

Sugar land Lodge, 4. Fo uwnd A. b., No. 1141, was
chartered by the Grand lodge of Texce in Decewber, 1920,
The first officers were: C. A, Dlierks, .orshipful laster;
Earry Redan, Senior ./arden, a. L, Waugh, Junlor «erden;

I. G, wirtz, 3ecretary.

36 A. B. Moses, "History of the Morton Masonic Lodge”,
The Fort Bend Reporter, vol. VIII, (Septewber 30,
1938), p. 12.

36 Interview, J. H. Waddell, Rosenberg, Texus, 3epteuwber
3, 1942,
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The lasonic Locges of Fort Bend County are =active,

though thelr meetings are less regular and less well at-

b))

tended than in earlier years of tnecir existence.®

According to available records, the Independent Order
of 0dd Fellows was the second fraternal order organized in
the county. Fort Bend Lodge, No. 61 I. 0. C. F., was organ-
ized at Richmond in 1874. At the same time Naomi lodge of
the Rebeckah Degree Lodge was created.bg These lodges are
not now active, but no record of their formazl discontinu.nce
has been found.

May, 1909, J. W. Goodrich of Houston, who was Deputy
Grand Master of Texas at the time, organized an 0dd Fellows
Lodge in Rosenberg. This lodze disbzrded in the early

thirties because its members becamwe interested in other or-

ganizations.40

In the early 1920's g Rebekah Degree Lodge was organi-
zed in Rosenberg., The Tirst officers were iirs. Johi Yarling,
Noble Grand; irs. Bertha Hartlape, Vice-Grand. It was active

for several years but due to luck of interest it disbsnded

in 1930. The records were deposited with the Hcadquarters.4l

38 Lletter, George E. Belew, Grand Secretary, A. F. and a. M.,
waco, Texas, June 29, 1942,

39 .-nonymous, Eistory of Od¢ Fellowship in Texes Embracing
First Introduction of the Order in 1898 and zn account
of the Severel lodges, p. <E7.

40 Interview, I'. L. Heuard, Rosenberg, Texas, Februury 25,194Z2.

41 Interview, Mrs. H. 0. Schultz, Rosenberg, Texas.
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Texas woodmen of the jorld Camp S&H was grunted ¢
cherter ..pril 13, 1£88, in Rosenberg. The first officers
were: R. L. Nulcohy, Consul Comzancer; G. B. Lung, +4dvi-
ser Lieutenznt; .. Mitchell, Bsnker; G. W. Duffie, Clerk;

R. G. Lee, Escort; P. A, Watson, Watchman; li, P. Ruff,
Sentry,; Tom Coleman, Kinch Eillyer, amd L. E. Proctor, liana-
gers; O. Li. Blair, Thysiclan. Othcer charter wembers in-
cluded J. B. Cooper, C. D. Cawpbell, H. A, Bvans, D. M.
Furr, C. A. Bightowcr, J. B. Moore, ., B. Parott, I. Z.
Reynolds, H. O, Skinper, J. Lli, llells, a. J. lijte, E. Givin,
J. I. Thomas and . P, 3luir.%?

Brazos Caup llo. 12545, lodern ‘/oodman of ameriea, wes
organized in 1907. This lodge was very active for ycurs,
but thougn never officially disbunded, 1t has discontinued
rogular ;cctiyss.és

Supreiae Forest ‘/oodman Circlc, Grave No. 1820, wus or-
gunized February 12, 1516, by State officers, irs. Euua B,
Manchester, Supreme Guardian, irs. Dora Alexender, Suprene
Clerk, and State lansger Mrs. Ellen B, Petterson., The cump

. 4
is uctive today.

42 letter, Farrcr Lewberry, Netionul 3Secretsry, \ooduen of
the #orld, Omaha, Nebraska, July 15, 1942; Interview,
Chas. Vandernider, 3ecretury, leosenberg, Texas, July £0,'42

43 Interview, Charlie 3eydler, Rosenberg, Texas, June 6, 1942.

44 Interview, lirs. Maude .llwright, Rosemberg, Texas, July
16, 1942,
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Rictimoné Chepter, No. 412, Order of tre Esstern 3tur,
was organjzed Yay 20, 1903, and reccived its charter Oc-
tober 15, 1908. The charter wes signeca by lirs. Carrah
Johnson, “orthy Grund-lietron; T. J. Tucker, “orthy CGr:nd-
Petron, and Vrs, Cassie C. leonard, Crand-Secretzry. .fter
ten years of active service, the chepter denised ip 1918,

The Rosenberg Chapter, Order of the Eastern Ster,
Number 429, wvss orgenized Cctodber 2, 190, by Mrs. Cerrie
B, lane, Genersl Deputy of Eouston. The charter was granted
October 14, 1908, signed bty Y¥re., Csrrzh Johnson, '‘crihy
Matron; T. J. Tucker, Yorthy Grard Psatroii cnd ¥rs. Cassle
Ieonard, Grend Secretery. Tris is the cnly zctive chapter
inthe county todcy. VYerbers of tke ordécr in the othcr towns
have pluced their wembership in the Rosenberg Chapter.

Fort Bend Chepter, Order of the Eazterrn Stsr Number
650, ot Roserberg was orgenizeé Septerter 1€, 1920, =znd
received its charter Octobér 14, 1220, The cherter wsas
signed by Yrs. ¥egele B. ¥cody, Wortky Crand XMstrom; C. P.
Patrick, vorthy Grend Tatron; Xrs. Cassle C. leonard, Grund
Secretary.

Sugzr land Chapter, Nurber 660, Order of IZastern 3tar,
was organized Januzary 29, 1921 and received its charter
Cctober 27, 1921, s3igned by Xrs. Margaret Hossy, #orthy
Grand Matron; Johrn PFindlster, ‘Worthy Grsesnd Patron; iTrs.

Cessie C. leon:rd, Gr=nd Sccret2ry. This chapter demised
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in 1931,4°

Royal lieighbors of ~merica, Caemp Number 7cco, wus
established in nosenberg, November 11, 191ib. Cf the
twenty-rive charter mewmbers, seveu are iiving. The mem-
bership is now comcoused of ninety-six. A Juvenils Chapter
was organized ceptember 20, 1925, with twenty-two churter

members.40

Professioncl and Civic scenciec, 7The Fort Bend County

Medical Associstion was organized in 1912 in Richmond with
seven charter members, The first officers elected were Dr.
J. C. J.hnson, President; Dr. J. 3. Yates, Vice¢-President
and Dr. R, 4. Farmer, 3ecretary. Two months after it or-
ganized the fAissociation merged with the Jackson, wharton,
and Matagorda County .ssociation. Meetings of that sssocia-
tion are held quarterly.47

The Fort Bend County Medical suxiliary was organized
in 1938, with eight charter members. The first officers
rlected were Mrs, C, V. Nichols, President; Mrs. J. #. Weeks,
Vice-Fresident and Mrs. Fresnk Andrews, Jecretary. In 1941

the officers decided thet there was no further need for

45 Letters, Yiss Cora Posey, Grand Secretary, Order of the
Lastern 3bsr, ..orlington, Texas, august 11, 1941,
July 9, 1942,

46 Interview, Mrs. Bertha Schawe, Rosenberg, Tcxcs, April
3, 1942,

47 Interview, Dr. J. . Weeks, Rosenberg, Texas, March 18,
19472,



the chapter, and it was disbanded.48

tion of Postmasters vies orgenized in ..ugust 88, 1042, at
Richmond under direction of Joseph Kopecky of Halletts-
ville, district cheirmen of the national #ssociation., The
Postmasters of the county beccme cherter member:s. This

chapter is quite active in orofessionel and sccleal w&ys.49

~mong the civic organizations of the county, the Cham-
ber of Cowmmerce in ceach of the towns of hLichmond, Kosenberg
and Sugar Land has filled an imcort:snt pluce in the cevelop-
went of the county.

There sre nc availeble records pertaining to the first
Chamber of Commerce organized in RkRichuond, aithough G. C.
Baker of that city states that there was one orgcuized in
1902 and thet he was a member. He reczslls that J. H. P.
Davis was rresident and thazt Real Ransom was 3ecretary.

John M. lloore and F. il. . Fenn vere umong the leaders, but
baksr does not recull the exect office tnese men held. This
organlzaticn ccased functicning in a short time, to be re-
vived in the lzte 1920's when oil was discovered in the
county. J. R. Farwer was president for several yeurs. This

orgapization became inective and when the Rotary Club was

-~

48 Interview, Vrsl ¢, . neeks, Rosenberg, Texus, March 18,
1942,

49 News item, "Fort Bend Postmmasters Form Organization?Z,
The Houston Chrinicle, vol. ZLII, (Aug. 23, 194Z2),p. 10.
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organized in 1lgd6; it took over the duties of Chuber of
commerce for the town.50

The Sygur Land Cheawber of Cownerce, first orgunized
in 1918, i3 one of two in Texas thut differs froci: the usual
organization, Brownsville being the other. ot first Suger
Land tried the sucwme form that &ll other Cnawvers of Commerce
use, but since the Imperial Sugar Company and the 3ugarland
Industries owned all obusiness concerns it was not a very
auccessful prodedure. «ith the present charter, obtained in
1925, the memberships are paid by the compunies and &ll the
employees of these two cowpunies are automatically membcrs
or tine oJugar Lend Chamber of Cowmerce. There ure at pre-
3ent over 1,500 members., The first president, G. D. Ulrich,
8till serves in that c;pacity.5l

The tosenoverg Chumber of Comucrce, zlthough not or-
genized until February 24, 1959, has filled an important
place in the development of Fort Bend County. The present
membership, comprising one hundred and four men, is dedi-
cated to the advancement of the woole county while they
strive to make rRosenberg more uttructive in every way. Their

32

slogen is "Roscnbirg, the Eub of the Gulf Coast”.

50 Interview, G. <o, Buker, Ricnuond, Texes, Mareca 3, 194Z2.

51 1laterview, . H. 3tinnett, Secrectury of the Sugar land
Chamber of Cormerce, “pril 2, 184:Z2.

52 Interview, Joe Law, Rosenberg, Texas, July &, l94c.
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The Business and Professional omen's Club of Fort
Bend County weas planned in November, 1934, when a group
of some fifty women met at the Plaza Hotel in Rosenberg.
The actual organization was effected, however, on November
22, 1954, at the courthouse in Richmond. The first officers
of the club were Pauline Yelderman, President; Helene Daily,
First Vice-President; lMarjorie Bolton, oSecretary; Johnnie
M. Copeland, Tresasurer; and lLois i/lelhausen, Parliumentari-
an,

Activities of the club include sponsorship of Rosenberg
Girl Scouts, participation with other clubs in the County
Fair, maintaining a student loun fund, avalleable to high
school gredu=tes, z2nd the securing of vocationul guidance
clusses at the schools of Richmond, Rosenberg, cnd Sugar
Land.53

The Rosenberg I'ire Department came into existence in
1914 when the city water system was instulled., The first
equipment consisted of two high wheel hose carts with ropes
attached so that they could be pulled by man power., ZIach
cart was suponlied with 500 feet of hose and two long nozzles,
In 1921 the o0ld carts, as vell as enother cart carrying two
forty gellon chemical tanks which had been acquired, were

succeeded by a modern fire truck. It was a liodel T

53 Interview, Mrs, Vance winner, Richmohd, Texas, January
6, 1942,
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Ford one ton chasis. This equipment was unsstisfactory,
however, the main drawbeck being the lack ol « pump. A
real factory masde fire truck with a 500 gallon pump was
purchased in 1930. Three years later an eight cylinder
Ford, and snother 500 gallon pump were obtained. The
efficienty of the Rosenberg Fire Department is reflected
in the reduction of the fire insurance rate frow one dol-
lar per hundred in 1914 to thirty-four cents per hundred
in 1942.54

The Richmond Country Club was organized on Februery
19, 1920, by a group of enthusiastic citizens who met in
the county court room. The purpose of the club was an-
nounced as social and civic. On February 25, the members
bought the M. L. lioolley property south of town. Later a
charter was secured and the club vas incorporated for the
sum of $15,000 with a membership of seventy-five. Shares
were of a par value of $200 each. «Hle the club was known
as the Richmond Country club, citizens from many other coun-
ty towns were admitted to membership. “ith the passing of
time and the development of new interests the Country Club

was discontinued.55

54 Interview, Fire Chief Joe Catron of Rosenberg, Texas,
April 3, 1942,

55 YNews item, "Country Club Is Born", The Texas Coaster
vol. XV, (February 27, 1920), p. 1.




198

August 19, 1925, . B. Walker, District Governor,
heading a delegation of Cptimists from louston, organized
the Rosenberg Optimists Club of thirty-eight members at the
Plaza Hotel folloviing a banquet.56 This club disbanded in

1931 when & Lion's Club was organized.

The Lions Club, the first one of its neme in Fort Bend
County, was organized in Rosenberg July 16, 1931l. Among
the achievements of the club are the sponsoring of an elect-
jon for an additional $8,500 bond issue to comple'e the
high school audiorium and gymnasium, obteining a creamery
and a new telephone exhsnge in Rosenberg; the planting of
200 red crepe myrtle trees along the highway,; sponsoring
a baseball team and building a baseball park; securing a
site for a high school band stand; building a band stand
and sponsoring conccrts; organizing & Boy Scout Troop; and
securing a $700,000 federal building for the town.27
In June, 1940, a Lion's Club was organized in 3ugar
Land. The first ofricers were H. L, Kirkpatrick, President;
C. E. McFadden, Vice-President; T. Greenwald, Second Vice-
President; C. A. White, Secretary-Treasurer; E, &, Saeger,
Iion Tamer. The Club has been active in the development

53
of the Community.

56 News item, "Optimist Club Is Organized", The Rosenberg
Herald, vol. XXX¥I, (August 21, 1925), p. 1.

57 Interview, J. E. Junker, Rosenberg, Texas, ilay 12, 1942,

58 Interview, O, Guenther, Sugar Land, Texas, July 17, 1941.
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Sponsored by ,the Eagle Lake Rotary Club, the Rich-
iwond Rotarians vwiere organized in April, 1936. The charter
was presented June 16, 1936, at a large gathering of Ro-
tarians and Rotary -rns frow other towns. This club is
very active and does the work usually done by a Chamber

of Commerce.59

In 1903 The lMothers' Club of Richmond was organized.
Richmond, therefore, had in effect a Parent-teacher or-
ganization six years before the State organization was
formed. Mrs. J. C., Florea was elected the first president
and served until she lost her 1life in the 1915 storm. ILirs.
T. B. Viessendorff was elected the first treasurer and served
continuously until 1925, 1In 1915 the Mothers$' Club was
af “iliated with the State Parent-Teacher organizsation which
was then called the Ccngress of Mothers and Parent-Teachcrs
Association. Fifteen mothers have served as presidents
since 1915 and the associstion is one of the best in the
county.éo

February ‘1, 1910, twenty or more imothers in Rosenberg
met st the schocl house for the purpose of perfecting an

organization of a Mothers' club. The meeting was called to

59 News item, "Rotarians Organize", The Texas Coaster,
vol. XLI, (April 16, 1936), p. 1.

60 Interview, Nrs, Frank Bell, Richmond, Texas, March 8,
1942,
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order by Mrs. #. L. Nesbitt, chalrmen pro tem. The con-
stitution was read and adopted. Seventeen members were
enrolled., This organization changed its name in 1915
to the Parent-Tesachers Association and now has the largest
membership among similar organizations in the county.

Similuar organizetions camwe into existence in other
communities, There were in 1942 eight Purent-Tesacher
Associations in the white schools, and three in the Mexi-
can schools., The llexicen Association at Simonton has
thirteen members.®

#hen the first Child Welfure Conference of Fort Bend
County was held at Richmond ir March, 1926, a County Council
of Parent-Teachers ..ssociation was formed. This organiza-
tion with 2 membership of 800 is very active in the welfare
of the schools, DIour meetings are held each yesar at differ-

ent places in rotation.62

The Boy 3Scout Troops of Fort Bend County now active
date back to 1933, though Richmond hud a troop organized
in 1926 with Jecob Blasdel as scoutmzster, After two years

of service, Blasdell resigned :nd the troop disbanded.

61 Interview, Louls Buls, Fresident, Fort Bend County Coun-
cil of P. T. A., Beasley, Texas, July 20, 194Z2.

62 News story, "Child Jelfare Conference Held at Richmond™,
The Rosenberg Herald, vol. XXXII, (March 12, 1926),
Pe Ll
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The Rosenberg Boy 3cout Troop No. 109, was organized
in 1973, under the sponsorship of the Lion's Club, Henry
Kastrop was first scoutmaster and Rayrond Reede wus «ssis-
tant. In 1934 the troop was disbanded until liarch, 1937
then it was reorganized under the leadership of C. .. Burris
as scoutmaster with Raymond Rude and Robert Bsss as the
assistants. Rosenberg now has a Boy Iut Troop, a 3Sea 3cout
Troop, a Cub Pack and one Negro Troop. Raymond Rude is the
oresent scoutmaster.

In 1937 Jim Bridges orgurized Troop No. 137 of Rich-
mond and D. V. Barnhill bec=zme scoutmaster with T. li. More-
head as assistant. A number of business men have worked
successfully for the benefit of the troop.

In 1936 a Boy Scout Troop was organized in Sugur Land
with Luke Browner as scoutmaster. . committee composed of
liose Norvick, J. B. Fowler and G. V. Ulrich was appointed
#8 advisers., During this period, Camp Henry, located on
the Brazos River, was given to Boy Scouts of the county by
the 3ugarland Industries.63

The only Girl Scout Troop in the county is the one
organized in Rosenberg October, 1935. lNiss Hilda \iederwann

and Mrs. Frank Miller sponsored the troop and continue in

63 Interview, Raymond kude of Rosenberg, Texas, April 3,
1942; Mrs., B. F. Bracewell of Sugar Land, liarch 9,
1942,
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the capacity of sponsors. Between twenty-five and thirty
girls Aare active members.64

In the fall of 1916 a choral club was organized at
the home of Mrs. John M, Moore, 3r. in Richmond. It was
at lr. Moore's suggestion that the club was formed and
Mrs. M. M, Newell did the telephoning to get the ladies
to attend the first meeting. This orgsnization became
known as the Richmond ‘Women's Choral Club. Due to the
removal from the city of several members, the elub dis-
banded in 1928.65

In 1918 the ladies in Rosenberg organized = music club
called the Treble Clef Club with Mrs. F. L., Heard as presi-
dent and Mrs. Chas. lLea as Secretary. In 1919, the Treble
Clef Club and the Rosenberg Glee Club which had previously
been organized, were consolidated. No one remembers much
about the Glee Club except that it was composed of men and
women who sang in the various church choirs. The club wes
active for several yeers, but disbanded when the director

~

moved to Houston.60

64 Interview, lrs,., J., B, Junker, Rosenberg, Texas, Mey 12,
1942,

65 Interview, lirs. Ivy iloore kiorrison, Richmond, Texas,
June 10, 1942.

66 News story, "New lusic Club™, The Rosenberg lerald,
vol. IXV, (Novewber &3, 191i9), p. 2; Interview,
Mrs. allie Ryba, Rosenberg, Texas.
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About 1932 the ladies of the county becawe interested
in flowers and gardens to such an extent that they began
organizing Garden Clubs., There zre now such clubs in practi-
cally every community. Some of the club activities hsve
been the sponsoring of Flower Shows, Yard Pillgrimages,
Clean Up eek, Christmas lighting Plent ¥Yxchange, and the
general beautification of the towns. The Sugar Land Garden
Club, the oldest in the county, was organized lMay 19, 1932,
by Mrs. W, L. Friend. There are now sixty-give members of
that club.

The Sugar land Club was the only one in the county
until the Richmond Garden Club was organized February 11,
1935, with seventy-one charter rembers., The Richmond Club
has been a member of the Texas Federation of Garden Clubs
since 1935 and is an as-ociate member of the Houston Federa-
tion of Garden Clubs.

Mrs. C., 0. Dickerson snd lirs, T. P. Boyett were the
founders of the Rosenberg Garden Club. They asked all the
ladies in town who were interested in organizing 2 Garden
Club to meet at the home of Mrs, Dickerson on November 5,
1937. Twenty ladies responded and beceme the charter mem-
bers. Cooperation has been the keynote of this club, one

of Rosenberg's strongest organizations.b7

67 Interviews, Yrs., B, F. Bracewell of Sugar Land, March
5, 1942; Mrs. Ivy 'oore Norrison of ikichmond, June 10,
1942; Mrs. E. J. Schendel of Rosenberg, June 10, 1942,
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AS time passed the ccmeteries of Fort bend County
grew larger and were often neglected. also, storms and
hurricanes caused damages. By 1902 the citizens of Rich-
mond felt that an org=nization was necesssry to cure for,
to improve, and to bezutify the cemetery of that city, known
as Morton Cemetery. Its work included the rcising of funds
to insure future care of the grzveyard. Mrs. A. P. George
1s the president of the association vt this time and lrs.
Annie Holmes continues 2s collector of dues. In 1910,
Rosenberg organized & similar associatior but theee are no
records pertaining to it.68

In 1913 several lsdies of Fulshe:r decided to improve
some negledted plots in Union Chapel Cemetery. Their ex-
ample ceused others to do likewise and when some out-of-
town citizens heard of this they asked to pay dues to have
their plots uttended. «n organization called Union Chapel
Cemetery .ssociation was formed with Mrs. E, M. Huggins,
Sr., president. An iron fence was erected tco enclose the
entire cemetery 2mnd much landscaping was done. This usso-
ciution continued for a number of yeurs, but people grew
careless about puying their dues znd the assoclation finally

disbanded.sg

68 Interview, ¥rs. .nnie Holmes, Richmond, Texas, June 10,
1942,

69 Interview, 'rs. Frunk Fields, Fulshesr, Texas, July 7,
1942,
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One of the mos3t recent clubs to orzanize in the ccunty
was the Fort Bend Flying Club. &t a necting held in the
Rosenberg Chamber of Comi.erce Hall april 30, 1941, the Club
was formed and officcrs were electecu. The purpose of the
Club was to proriote interest in aviution in the county and
to make flying lessohs available to anyone interested in
learning to fly. =+ sixty-five horse power Piper Clubdb
trainer plune was purchased from the J. L. Schroeder GCom-
psny of Louston. The flying field is located on the Bealey
highway 2 short distance from Rosenberg.7o

December, 1941, the members sold the =irplune, and
the club became inective so far as flying 1s concerned.
However, it still meintsins its asirport, =nd cmnuirucs its
meetings.,

Women's Home Demonstration Clubs were first organized
in Fort Bend County in September, 1932, by Mrs. Leola Cox
Sides, a Home Demonstration ..gent.

Since ¢he was organizing sthe sz=me wvork in two other
counties, whe did not give full time service in Fort Bend
Cocunty. To help carry osut the work, = County Howe Demon-
stration Council w=s organized with V¥rs. J. L. Boone of

Reesley, chairman., Im 4pril 1933, ¥rs. Sides Became Eome

70 VWNews iten, "Officers .re Eleected for County «ir Club",
The Texus Coaster, vol. LVI, (May 1, 1941), p. 1.
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Demonstraticn ..geat for Matagorda County wznd iliss Loris
Welhousen was apnointed to serve Fort sSend County.

By the end of 1935 the work in the county had grown
to such an extent thut en assistant agent was needed and
HMiss Carolyn Poviell was given the position. In 1936 iiiss
Welhausen was transferred to Nueces County and her pluce
wus taken by Miss Powell with lMiss Yvonne Giesecke as
assistant., Miss Giesecke was transferred Lo Bastrop Coun-
ty in 1938 and iiss Kedron Grace took her face and 1s the
present County ..gent. Her assistant is kiss Dells Blanke-
meyer who was appointed May 1, 1940.

Between 1932 and 1942 Home Demonstration Cluts were
organized in practically every comrunity in the ccunty.
The-e are thirteen women's clubs and twenty 4-E girls' Clubs

active in the work todcy.71

While there are few clubs exclusively for viomen in
Fort Bend County, various church orgarizations, too numer-
ous to mention in this paper, women's lodges and auxilia-
ries, Home Demonsiraticn Clubs, and the various social clubs,
heve Ball exercised grest influence in the affairs of the
county and h=ve brought sbout closer ties umong the women

of all conununities,

71 Interview, }rs. Kedron G. Mitchell, Richmond, Texss,
July 19, 1942.



CHAPTER VIII
EDUCATIONAL AND RELIGIOUS DEVELCPMENT

Schoole. 4According to the available records, the first
school in the territory later designated zs Fort Bend Coun-
ty, was taught near Stafford's Point on Oyster Creck. In
Vay, 1834, while on a business trip to Harrisburg, Dr. P.

7. Rose engaged David Henson, an Irishmsn, "old, ugly, sand
red-headed", as teacher. He comuenced school in a little
log house, formerly a blacksmith ship, on the first of June.
The first opupils of the school were Williem, Foster, and
Harvey Dyer, three Rose children and the older boys, leo

and Jackson Roark and Harvey 3Stafford. The fact that the
multiplication table was copied upon & piece of paste board
by the teacher indicates the shortage of school equipment.l
This school continued until the last day of August. at thzt
time the boys in ettendance were withdrawn because they were
needed in the fields to help gather the crops. The follow-:
ing yesr the school was reopened in June with ten pupils.
Three of the young men students lived with the teacher at
the school house. On week-ends, the boys went home and the
teacher visited with the patrons. The school continued

until the arrest of asndrew Briscoe at Anahuac, when the boys

1 Mrs. Dilue Harris, "Reminiscences", The Quarterly of the
Texas State Historical association, Vol. IV, EOctobcr,
1900), pp. 101-102.
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left school to join Travis who was enlisting voluntecrs
to expel the lexicans from Texas. 3chool was reopened in
July, 1836, following the "Runaway Scrape" and the Revolu-
tion, by a Mr. Bennet who conducted the school until Dec-
ember. The former teacher returned to the United States.z

In 1847 Fort Bend County citizens availed themselves
of the land offered by the Republic for schools. At a meet-
ing of the County Court on August 15 of that year, a school
board was organized, and the rext year John H. Herndon was
naid $400 for surveying the four leagues of Fort Bend County
School land in 1848° ..fter this date, however, private
schools were continued in the county. One such school was
conducted by C. P, Heermans, It evidently was not profit-
able, however, as the teacher offered his services to citi-
zens of the county as a doctor.4

In april J. G. Mclean established another school at
Richmond which he advertised would:

« « o continue a number of yeara ig which the
government will be truly parental.

2 Ibid, np. 180-185.

3 Minutes, Commissioners @ourt, Bock A, pp. 43, 45, 51.
4 .dvertisement, Richmond Telescope and Literary Register,

Vol, I, (October 9, 1339), p. 4; (January 11, 1840),
Ps O

5 Ibid., (April 4) p. 3.
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Yo other accounts sppear concerning lkiclean's school
until 1850. In that yesr three commor. schools were re-
norted having three teachers and one hundred and twenty
pupils, and one academy which had one teacher and forty
pupils.6 The first session was held at a temporary lo-
cation end seventy pupils were enrolled. The second term
vas to begin on September 25, 1851 with over one huadred
pupils expected. An academy building was under construct-
ion during September, which when comnleted was to be sixty
feet long, two stories high and wcs to contain four lurge
rooms, It was located on & two aere tract, a part of
which was to be devoted to playgrounds.7

The earliest legislative action of the State of Texas
in reference to educational facilitie¢s in Fort Bend County
wes an act approved February 13, 1852, which incorporated
the Richmond Male and Female academies., A notable provision
of the Act is "that said acadeuwy shall be forever free from
the control of any particular denominstion of Christians,

but shall be ever open for use und benefit of all.8

6 Seventh Census, 3ocilal 3Statistics, Archives ut Texas

State Library.

7 News story, "Richmond", Galveston \leekly News, Vol.
VIJI, (3eptember 2, 1351), p. 4.

8 K. N. P. Garmmel, Llaws of Texas, Vol. III, pp. 1,167~
1,168.
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The neme of this institution would indicate two
schools, one for girls +«nd one for boys. According to a
former pupil, however, the institution was semi-coeduca-
tional, the girls und boys having separate school rooums,

9 Out of town

but having one or more classes together.
students secured board for ten to twelve dollars a month.
The school continued in operation until July, 1858, when,
because of financial difficulties, it was closed.lo

A Legislative 4ct aporoved on August 26, 1856, incor-
porated another school kncwn as Frost Institute, to be lo-
cated on five acres of land donated by Dr. Johnson Hunter
from the R. H. Eunter survey, approximately six miles north
of Richmond.ll

In addition to the Richmond liale and Female aAcademy
and Frost Institute there were other schools in the county,
as shown by reference in the Commissioners Court minutes.

In compliance with the provisions of the law of 13854,
the County Commissioners Court, on May 16, divided the

12

county into eight school districts. The court issued a

9 Interview, Miss Lavinia Feris, Richmond, Texas, June 6,
1942,

10 Deed Revords, Book &, p. 78,
11 H. N. P. Gammel, laws of Texas, Vol. IV, pp. 704-705.

12 iiinutes County Commissioners Court, Book a4, pp. 86,
96.
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call for an election of three trustees in each district
on July 1, 1854, 3cme of the districts failed to hold the
elections. The returns on the trustees who were elected
are not recorded.15

In order to obtain qualified teschcrs, the Court ap-
pointed a Board of Exawniners to examine anéd license teach-
ers who were to serve in the county.14

In the yeur ending June 1, 1860, there were four
schools in existence in Fort Bend County. The school at
Richmond hed two teachers and an enrollment of one hundred
pupils., It received £498 frou pudlic funds and $1000 from
other sources. The school ut Big Creek had one teacher
and thirty pupils enrolled, receiving {290 from public funds
and ¢300 from other sources, The school at Stafford's Point
had one teacher and twenty pupils, receiving $190 from pub-
lic funds and £200 from other sources. The school at Union
Chapel had one teacher and forty pupils enrolled, receiving
$52.00 from public funds and $500 from other scurces,

During the ar Betweecn the States schools were tempora-
rily closed. During Reconstruction, the people were financial-

ly hard pressed, end naturclly opposed any weesure that in-

creased taxecs;, hence, public education suffered.

13 Ibid., p. 90.

14 Ibid., p. 154,

15 Eighty Census, Social Statistics, archives at Texas State
Library.
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In 1870 the county was divided into sub-school dis-
tricts and after this divisi n a "slow but sure¢™ progress
began. It was at this time that the first extra-schocl
affuirs vere started in the schools of the county. They
consisted of spelling mztches ané Friday afternoon programs.
During the play periods the boys enjoyed playing “"bull=-
pen", "town ball" and "wolf over the river". The girls'
favorite game was " jacks", often using rocks instead of
"jacks". Girls and boys were never permitted to play to-
gether. 1In fact, even in the schocl room, they were always
seated on different sides of the room.16

The text books used during the first yecrs of the pub-
lic school system were those found in most general use,

Yatson's Independent Headers were used in the first five

grades. lNonteith's First lessons in Geography and Manual

of Geography and McNally's Complete Geography were used by
more advanced students. The other text books were Clarg's

First Lessons in Grummar; Quackenbo's Primary, llental and

Practical Arithmetic; Elements of Geography, Llements of

Ceometry, and Llements of Plane Trigonometry by Perkins;

Quackenbo's First Lessons in Composition; =nd Barnes'
17

History of the United 3States.

16 Interview, ¥iss lavinia Feris, Richmond, Texas, June 6,'4<

17 Tirst ..nnual Report of the State Superintendent of Pub-
lic Instruction, 1871.
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The public school at Richmond which wuas fostered by
the county did not go beyond the seventh grade and for most
of the children completion of thut grade ende«d their school
work. a4 few of them were sent to preparatory schools and
college. IPrivate schools continued popul=r.

The O0ffice of County Superintendent of Schools wasg es-
tablished in Fott Bend County on October 12, 1896, uccord-
ing to the Minutes of the Commissioners Court. At the gen-
eral election on November 9th or that year, R. L. liorris
was elected the first County Superintendent.18

During the last ten years there has been an education-
al awakening in Fort Bend County. The qualifications of
teachers have been raised; terms have been lengthened; new
schools have becn built; one consolidation has been effected
and a general interest in school affairs is being shown by
most of the patrons. The independent schnols in the county
are Beasley, Needville, Orchard, kichwond, Rosenberg, Sugar
Leand and Tavener.

There are thirty-two schools for Negroes in the county.
Twenty-five are common schools end the others are admin-
istered in connection with the town schools &t besasley, Need-

ville, Richmond, Rosenberg, and Taverner, with one each, snd

18 Minutes of the County Commissioners Court, Book H,
op. 139, 149,
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Sugar Land with two.19

In recent years separate public free schools for liexi-
cans have been established in the County. There are now
ten such schools taught by fifteen teachers. Seven grades
are taught in 211 schools. The enrollment for 1941-1942
was about 450. In thc other communities and towns the
liexican children are given access to the regular white
schools.20

Fort Bend County, under the leadership of Jesse F,

Ward, blazed a new trail in rural education in 1928. A

radio was placed in every rural school with a broadcasting
station at the county court house in Richmond. On November
11, 1928, the county board received from the Radio Commission
a broadcasting permit, and on November 19, Stzte Superin-
tendent S. M. N. Marrs made the dedicatory address, speak-
king to all the school children and teachers of the county

in their respective schools. TFor a year the radio was u-
tilized for announcements, cducational programs, weather re-
ports, agricultural information and road conditions.zl Later

the peruit was transferred to the Houston Broadcasting Station.

19 Reoords in the office of Fort Bend School Superinten-
dent.

20 Interview, lirs. idattye Schulze, Fort Bend County School
Superintendent, December 30, 1941.

21 Mary Shipp Senders, "The Radio in Fort Bend County 3chools?®
The Texas Cutlook, vol. XIII, (January, 1929), pp.26-27.




The Fort Bend Eusiness College was e€stablished by
lens Nae Risinger of Rosenberg in 3eptember, 1540, The
enrollment averages ten pupils. 4 complete bu3iness course
is taught exccpt those branches requiring expensive ac-
hines. Emphasis is placed upon purely professional courses,
but a review is given of elermentary and high school bran-
ches wlth reference to business. Night school is taught
by the college three nights ezch week in order that em-
ployed persocns nay enroll. Many of the studédnts are being
enabled to pass Civil Service examinations at present.22

Two notable teachers of the county are Miss lary 3erbd
and Yrs. G. W. Dayton. lMiss 3erb of Rosenberg iz the old-
est teacher in the county in point cof service. 3he began
teaching the first grade in Richmond over thirty yezrs ago.
After teaching there she taught in Rosenberg for many years.
In 1940 she took advantage of the Teacher Retirement pri-
vilege.

Vrs. G. W. Dayton (nee Minnie layes) after serving
several yezrs &S a teacher, was elected to the of ice of
County Superintendent of 3Schools being the first woman in
thie county to hold a opublic office. 3he served froxm 1919
to 1922. To these and many other faithful teachers is due
muchk credit for the high cultural development of the people

of I'ort Bend County.

22 Interview, lLena Mae Risinger, Rosenberg, Texas, 4April 3,
1942,
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Churches, In 1834 when court wuas ascembled under a live

oak tree on the bunk of Oy:ter Creek iany people attended

to witness the proceedings. Parson woodruff, a Baptist
preacher who had come with Ben Fort Smith, seized on the
occasion to preach u sermon to the assembly. Lrs. Staf-
ford and lrs. Rose sang, "On Jordan's 3Stormy Sanks I Stand."
This was the first public religiocus service in Fort Bend
Gounty.z5

The provision in the kiexicun colonization laws which
prohibited Protestant worship was fortunutely removed oy
the estublishment of the independence of Texus. after that
achievement, services begun to be advertised in the local
papers. Said one announcement, "The Reverend Thomas
Spragins will preach in the city ol Richmond on the fourth
Sabbath of this month.”

Cn the same puge one resec the following notice: "Divine
3ervice may be expected in the school house toucrrow at
ecleven o'clock, . M. The Reverend John Patton will Offi-
ciate.

Several months later it was announced that services

were held by visiting clergymen:

23 irs. Dilue Harris, "Reminiscences”, gjuurterly of the
Texas Historical Associationm, Vol. IV, (July, 1900),

Die. 102

24 News item, "Notice", Richmond Telescope und Texus liter-
ary Register, Vol. I, (Septeumber 11, 1839), p. 2.
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Reverend lessrs. /llen and iicCuilough preached

at Richmond on Sunday lust. e were highly

pleased with the sermons and impresszive deli-

very of both gentlewen, asnd we trust that the

seeds of holiness, which they have instilled

into the minds of this cowmunity will not be

permitted to_perish for the want of their fos-

tering care.”®

Settlers of Protestant faith esteblishea their churches
in Fort Bend County early in its history. But the list is
too long to be included in this study, only the oldest or-
genization of each denomination is included.

The First Methodist Episcopal Church in the county was
organized in Richmond with six members, Jenuary 22, 1849,
at the home of a Doctor J. L. Bryant by Reverend Jesse Hord. <6
He was a native of Tennessee, who came to the xepublic of
Texas as a miszionary from the Mississippl Conference of the
Methodist Episcopal Church. The Richmond church bec:ume a
part of what was known at that time as the houston Circuit.
Its affairs were administered by the Methodist Episcopal
Church until 1844, when the church divided over the sluvery
question. From 1844 to 1940 the Methodist Episcopal Church,
South, hac the Richmond church in the plan of appcintments

of the Texas Conference., The membership never has becn large.

In 1850 there were one hundrcd and sixteen white members and

25 Nevis item, Richmond Telescope and Texas Liktrary Register,
Yol. I, (april 4, 18480), p. 9.

26 Hocrd's Diery. long extrects from this record, cxpanded
by 5is recollections, were -Hublished by Jesse Lora in
The Texas Christian ..dvocate shortly before his death,
which occurred at Goliad in Janucry, 1£86.
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sixty-one Negro members. In 1859 there were only forty
white members snda twenty-one Negro members.

The church now boasts the best physical plunt of the
county's churches. It consists oI a large brick building,
a two-story brick educational building, and a two-story
parsonage. The present iembership is two hunqred.27

In 1850 the eleventh session of the Texas conference
was held at Richmond froum December 11 to 16, with Bishop
James O. Andrew presiding.28

In 1942 there were six Methodist Churches in the County

as follows:

Location Organizer Yesr Organized
Richmond Jesse Hord 1839
Fulshear no record 1330
Needville J. Ott 1890
Rosenberg Ww. R. Campbell 1394
Sugar Land F. Ww, St. John 1919

The only Episcopal church of Fort Bend County is lo-
cated at Richmond. In 1845 after Texes had become annexed
to the United Stetes, Biship George Washington Freeman was
appointed to supcrvise the work in Arkansas and the Indian
Territory. Rotwithstunding his extensive itenerary Bishop

George Freemun found time to visit Texas almost every year.

27 J. T. Moore, "Richmond Church to Celebrate Its 100th
Anriversary Sunday", The Houston Chromicle, Vol. XXIX,
(January 20, 1939), p. 7.

28 M. Phelan, History of Egrly ¥ethodism in Texas, p. 109.




He held services at Richmond in lay, 1347, In the mean-
time, the Reverend Cherles Gillet, Rector of Christ Church,
Houston, went to Richmond at the earnest invitstion of
friends of the church there, .nd held 3Sunday serwices,

After the Reverend W. T, Dickinson Dalzeil bec..ke
rector of Christ Church, Hou=ton, on iay 16, 1357, he held
missionary services in Richmond where he organized Calvary-
Parish in 1859, and accomplished the erection of a build-
ing, largely through the hearty cooperation of Willism E,
Kenda11.29 That building was destroyed by the tropical
hurricane of 1875. The membership then held services in
the court house until 1878 when a new building was erected.
The storm of 1900 destroyed the steeple and bell of tals
church, but both were scon replaced. Most of the church
furnishings have been presented as memorials to faithful
departed members, The church's property now consists of
the church and rectory which was built in 1888.30

ElijJah Alcorn, David Fitzgereld, John W. Loore, Gell
Borden snd /bner Xuykendall were some of those of the Bap-
tist f2ith ~mong the first settlers of Fort Bend County.
Hiram Iittle and his wife, Polly, cane to Texsas froxn cairo,
I1linois, in 1834. They brougnt their Zaptist church let-
ters with them whep they settled in Fort Eend Ccunty.

Joseph Bays, a Baptist preecher, wes airrested at 3an Felipe

29 Dubose Murphy, A Short History of the Episcopal Church
in Texas, pp. 18-34.

30 Interview, lrs., W. H. Hinson, Richmond, February 6, 1942.
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for holding Protestant services in 1£23. In route to San
Antonio, Bays escaped rrom his guards and after tramping
about for several days, finally reached Joe Kuykendall's
home near Tort Bend.31 Bay s remained in the settlement to
preach at the homces of several Port Bend citizens. Larly
in 1824 he preached to a crowd ol neighbors on the east
side of the Druzos snd near Fort Bend.o2
According to available records, the Baptist Church was
not definitely orga:ized in tne county until years after
the Civil WWar. Jervices were either neld at private homes
or out in the open by traveling preachers and nissicnsries.
The First bBaptist Church ol Ricnmond, the oldest in thne
county, was organized in the home or John M. Moore on July
19, 1835, reverend .. wood, ofiiciating. 'The rirst house
of worship was pbuilt in 1389 und dedicated September 18,
1292, b, Reverend rufus Baroscn. The second house of wor-
ship was built in 1%02 :nd was deaicated December 2L, 1907.
The erection of the building in use at present was
started in 1929. <Comclete with its rfurnishings, including

the pipe orguen, it cost $30,000. Dedication services were

J. K. Carroll, Histocry of Texas Beptist, pp. 21, <9,
67,69, 71.

o
=

32 J. H. Kuykendz1ll, "Reminiscences of Lerly Texes",

uarterly, Texas Stete nistoricel .ssociation, Vol. VII,
iJul'y",_ 'i‘ugos }, o. 52,
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held February 18, 1932, with Dr. George /. Truett of

Dallas preaching the dedicatory sermen.33

The five Baptist Churches in the County in 1942

included:

Location Organizer Yeur Organized
Richmond Rev. W. Wood 1885
Rosenberg W. P. Blalr 1897
Beasley Rev. Wm., Bumbelow 1909
Sugar Land Rev. J. Heall 1914
Orchard C. A. Banfield 1935

In the early history of Rosenberg there was a small
group who were members of Christian Churches elsewhere, but
who had no church building in their respective communities.
These people sttended and worked with the other churches
of the town until they had enough money to start the pre-
sent church home in 1907. Dr. Vernon Chew gave the lot,

and labor was donated by other members.34

In 1909 the Presbyteriaen Church in the United States
of America appointed Rev. Joseph liiksovsky to care for the
Evangelical people of Czechoslovak origin in Fort Bend County,
who at thet time were being spiritually neglected. Ie or-
ganized churches at Rosenberg, Fairchilds and Needville.,

At Fairchilds the services were held at the schocl house,

33 Interview, lrs, George C. Beker, Richwond, Texuas, March
8, 1942,

34 Interview, R. Warren lLain, Pastor, Rosenberg, Texas,
llay 3, 1939.
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and at lcedville et the Cermen Evangelicel Church. Ser-
vices in Rosenberg were held in the Grey Building until
1916 vhen the congreguation dedicated their present brick
ené stcne church. In 1916 & church was organized at 3ugar
Land. %

The three Pregsbyteriun Churches in the County in 1942

WETE :
Location Organizer Year Orgenized
Rosenberg Joseph Miksovsky 1909
Needville Joseph Mlksovsoky 1210
Sugar Land T. C. Johnston 1916

The first cervice of thc luytheran Church held in the
county was concucted by the Reverend G, 4. Zielinger of
Brenhan in the Rosenberg school house., ..8 there were no
kymn btocks, the peoplec sang "llock of ..ges™ and "Neurer My
God to Thec" froa wmewory, cccciupuanied by neverend dlelinger
on an orgun of the schcocol. From that time servicer were
held whencver 2 winizcter coulc be cbtained.

In 1217, Reveread L. A. sagoolel of Brenhem efilucted
a pernanent organlzation which udopted as 1ts officlial title,
"St. Paul's luthersn Church". 3ervices were held twice a
month in the Christiaon Church until 1923, waen on Cctober

fourth of that yecr, thelr building wus dodliceted. A

35 Ipnterview, J. R. Vilt, Nosenberg, Texus, Msy 3, 1939.
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parsonage was erected in 192'7.36

The two Lutheran Churches in the County in 1942

are:
Locatidn Organizer Year Organized
Rosenberg E. A. Sagebiel 1917
Beasley A, J. Apfelbach 1918

In 1903, at Granger in #illiamson County, the
Czechoslovak protestants of Texas organized themselves
into one body which they named the Evangelical Unity of
the Czech Moravian Brethren in North America. Some of
these people moved to Rosenberg and by 1925 services were
held several times a year. In 1929 Reverend F. H. Horak
organized a church with the ten or twelve families and
services were held once a month on the second floor of the
Moers Building. Iater services were held in the Presbyter-
ian church and the Lutheran church., The Czech language
was used at first in preaching and in teaching the Sunday
School lessons. Reverend Horak remained as minister until
1936 and it was through his efforts that & church building
was erected., Services are now held twice a month by Reverend

H. E. Besada who comes from Caldwell. This is the only

36 Hugo Probst, "St. Paul's Lutheran Church", Fort Bend
Reporter, Vol. XITI, (September 30, 1928), p. 10.
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37
Czech Church in the county.

An evangelistic group was invited to Rosenberg in
June, 1933, to conduct the first revival of the Assembly
of God Church, which was held under the Farmers' Gin shed.
From the beginning & Church was organized, a building wsas
erected in I bruary, 1935.

In the following November, Reverend Paul V. Chambles
became pastor and preached in & store building on Liain
Street. In 1934 the congregation secured a lot on Brazos
Street on which they built = brush arbor. They conducted
services there until December when Reverend /. A. llarshall
was called.38

The development of the Protestant Churches after 1895
was retarded by the grest numbers of German, Polish, and
Bohemian immigrants of the Catholie faith, who bought land
in the county and displaced the Anglo-aAmericsan settlers.

In 1906, the Catholic families living at Rosenberg felt the
need of spiritusl guidence and petitioned the lMost Reverend
N. A. Gallagher of Calveston for a director. He appointed

Reverend Jacob Schnetzer of Houston and the first Catholic

37 Interview, Frank R. Chupik, Rosenberg, Texas, April 3,
1942,

38 Interview, Reverend Churles H. Miller, Pastor, Rosen-
berg, Texas, lMay 3, 1939.




gservice was held at the home of Mrs. W. C., Baker. Later

the Gray Building was used. The first church, a wooden
structure, was built in 1911 and dedicated in 1912 by

Bishop Callagher. It w:s given the nsme Holy Rossry Church.
At that time the membership numbered ten families. The
wooden rectory was rebuilt at a cost of $5000., In 1924

fire damaced the church and the present building was erected
of tile and stucco st a cost of {12,000. The membership

has grown to 600 people. A grotto of Lourdes was built in
1931 in corunenoration of the twenty-fifth anniversary of

the founding of the church.39

The five Catholic Churches in the County in 1942

were:
Location Organizer Year Organized
Rosenberg Jacob Schnetzer 1906
Needville ¥. Demal 1911
Beasley /. Demal 1913
Sugar Land J. Dwan 1928
Richmond F. Reyband 1935

The Emmanuel's Evangelical Church was organized ih
1390 by the early German zettlers near Needville. It was
not until 18¢9 that the church building was eccted across
the road from the present Seiler school h:iuse. This build-
ing was destroyed in 1900 by a hurricane. In 1902 a church

house was erected in Needville and was in use until 1924,

39 Interview, Father Jerome Tydlocka, Hosenberg, Texas,
May 3, 1939.



The congregation grew as many people moved in, mzinly
from 'Yashington County, and the church house became too
smell., A new §10,000 church wzs built, and August 10,
1924, it was dedicated.40

The four Ivangelicul Churches in the County in 1942

were:
Location Organizer Year Organized
Needville J. Settner 1890
Beasley Karl Merkel 1912
Cottonwood Karl Merkel 1912
Rosenberg Wm, J. Luthe 1941

Churches of other denominations were also organized,
but their development was retarded. In December, 1925,
about forty Polish families of Fort Bend County quit the
Roman Catholic Church end formed their own church. The
fundamental reason was that those who were most nationally
inclined were determined to have their old Polish trudions
and mother tongue preserved from any infringement of American-
ization. They organized a parish in Rosenberg, under the
name of the Holy Family National Catholic Church. A house
was bought for the pastor and lot on which to build a
church was required. Services were held twice a month in

the Presbyterian Church. A church house was never built

40 F. C. Anderson, "The Emmanuel's Evangelical Church",
The Rosenberg Reporter, vol. XIII, (September 30,
1938), p. 10.
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because the edherents kept dwindling and by 1938 no efrort

4
was made to continue services, .

Ten or twelve yexurs ago, a group of women of 3imonton
organized for the purpose of promoting Christian activity
and the building of a church. This orgenization became
knovn ss the "Willing “orkers."™ Through the years, suppers
and entertainments of =2]1 kinds were given, the proceeds
being seved to build a church the cous.unity hoped to have.
On May 5, 1940, the hope became a reelity, the church was
dedicated. It is located in the scuthern part of town, %2
Sunday 3chool is held every weck, but church services de-

pend upon visiting clergymen with whom arrangements are

made each month.,

On February 12, 1941, & group uf saporoximately thirty
people met in the Rosenberg Chamber of Comuecrce room to
further the plans for the beginning of an Evangelicul and
Reformed Church in Rosenberg. These people were the rep-
resentatives of a group who hud felt the nced of such a
church in the county. Plans were mede for orgenizing a
Sunday 3chool. Throuch the kindness of the :osenberg

Christiaen Church, the Sunday 3chool met in thet church for

41 Edward J., Dworaczyk, Polish Colonies of ~merice in
Texas, p. 190; anonymous, "New Church Eas Been
Org=nized," The Rosenberg Herald, Vol., XXI, (Decewber
4, 1925), p. 8.

42 Anonymous, "Simonton to Dedicate New Church," The Texas
Coaster, Vol. XLV, (May 2, 1940), p. l.
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the first time on !arch 2, 1941, 3Since 1942 all services
are held in the John Huss Presbyterian Church.43

A Ministerial Association was organized in Rosenberg
at the First Methodist Church on September 25, 1925. It
was called the Ministerial .issociation of Fort Bend County.
Reverend H. /. Welse was elected Chairmen and Reverend H.

C. Ziehe was elected Secretary. JlMonthly meetings were
held for the purpose of discussing problems that pertained
to the welfare of the church.44 llo records are available
stating when and why the association ceused functioning.

In September, 1939, a Pastors Alliance was organized,
sponsored by the lethodist and Baptist pastors of Rosenberg.
They invited other ministers to join, but due to ecclesi asti-
cal reasons, the Catholic priests &nd Lutheran ministers
did not do 30.45 This organization has made its influence

very marked by cooperating in all vorthwhile uctivitites of

the communities represented.

In 1940, a number of Fort Bend County women felt the

need "to unify the efforts of the church women in the tusk

43 Interview, lrs. ¥. C. Scherer, Rosenberg, Texas, July
20, 1941.

44 News item, "Ministerial Association Organized", The
Rosenberg Herald, vol. XXXI, (September 25, 1928),

p. 1.

45 Interview, R. G. Commander, Rosenberg, Texas, Asugust
12, 194z2.
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of establishing a Christian social order in which all

areas of life shall be brought into harmony with the life
and teachings of Jesus Christ". These women, with the
assistance of Mesdames J, C. Reed and H. M, Harris of
Houston, met at the Methodist Church in Richmond on June

13, 1940, and organized the Fort Bend Council of Church
Women. Meetings sre held at designeated places in the after-

noon on third Wednesdays of each month.46

46 Interview, Mrs. G, C. Baker, Richmond, Texas, sugust
18, 194z2.
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1919, November 25, 1919); XXXI, (May 15, 1925,
august 21, 1925, September 25, 1925); XXXII,
(Februery 6, 19:5, December 4, 1925, January 2,
1926, Mareh 12, 1926); XLIII, {Scptecber 3, 1936),
XLVIII, (4pril 25, 1941), XLVIII, (april 3, 1942).
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The San Antonio Express, Vols. LiAX, (Septeuber 8,
1935); LZXITT, (February 20, 1932).

Telegranh and Texas Register, (The place of pub-
lication =nc the nzme of the Telegraph were chunged
several times: Telegraph rnd Texas Register (San
Felipe de Austin) October 10, 1835 to ~pril 11, 1836;
(Columbie) August 9, 1836 to April 11, 18I7; (Houston)
llay 2, 1837, to iarch 4, 1lcd46; Democratic Telegraph
end Texus Register (Houstorn) March 18, 1846, to Febsu-
ary 18, 1854; The ,/eekly Telegraph (Houstons February
6, 1356 to Cctober 27, 1£58. Files from 1835 to 1846
are at the University of Texas, The files for the
yeers 1846-1858 are st the Touston Tublic librery.)
Issues of: November 14, 1845; February 3, 1837;
August 1, 1837; October 1, 1537; October 28,
18373 January 12, 1839; March 2, 1843; iarch 15,
1843; August 23, 1843; November 1, 18<43; Noveuber
15, 1843%; December 30, 1843; iiarch 13, 1844;
April 16, 1845; July 2, 1845; May 20, 1846;
3eptember 21, 1848; Februczry 4, 1857,

The Texas Coaster, Vols. XIV, (4pril 3, 1919); XXV,
[Tebrusry 27, 1920, September 10, 1920); XXVI,
(June 2, 1921, October 14, 1921); XXVII, (October
22, 1922); XXVITI, (May 3, 1923, Kay 4, 1923);
XXXV1i, (January 30, 1931, February 13, 1%31, Lay
1, 1931). ¥1I, (Jsnuary 30, 1936, April 16, 1936,
June 15, 1938). XLIII, (August 18, 1938); XLV,
(Fey 2, 1940); AVI, (Februsry 20, 1941, Kay 1,
1941).

Texss Commercial News, Vol, IV, (Decemver 9, 192z),

Texas Cazette, Vol., I, (May 22, 1830).

Tri-.‘eekly Telegraph, Vol, IV, (February 6, 1895).

The :eekly Telegrnm, (October 3, 18¢8), (June 7, 1678).

0fficial Records

Federsl Census, 1850, 1860, 1940.

Fort Bend Countyv Records
Bond Record, Book V
Brand Record, Book A
Deed Record, Book &




Election Record, Books II, III

license Record, Book A

Varriage Record, Book A

Minutes
District Court, Books £, B, C.
Commiagioners Court, Boocks ¢, H, J, ¥, R.
County Court, Book A.
Probate Court, Book A.

State Archives, austin
Election Register
Nos. 255 (1836-1842)
256 (1842-1846)
257 (1346-1854)
264-271 (1870-183%)
Journal of the Secession Convention of Texss,
1861.
Revised Civil 3tatutes of State of Texus, 1925.
Special Election Returns:
C. C. Dyer to Ashbel Smith, October 27, 1845
C. C. Dycr to James B, :'ebb, March 15, 1850
C. C. Dyer to lLdward Clark, ( - )
Gecrge P. Foster to the Secretary of State,
Jenuery 27, 1861,

Letters to iiiss Lee Nesbitt from:
Aylor, Sam, Orchard, Texss, June 6, 1lv42,
Belev:, George H., Weco, Texas, June 10, 1942,
Boone, J. L., Beasley, Texcs, June 20, 1940.
Sracewell, !Mrs. C. F., 3Sugar Land, Texas, March
&, 1942; June 350, 1942,
Buls, Mr. lLouis, Tevener, Texas, July 20, 1942,
Conmaander, K. G., Rosenverg, Texas, August 12,
1942,
Cabney, L. R., ~ustin, Texas, July o0, 1941;
Narch 31, 1942.
Fenn, F. M., C., Richmoné¢, Texas, June £5, 1938,
Flanagen, R. J., Sugar land, Texas, lMerch 3, 1942,
Guenther, L, 0., Sugar Land, Texss, July 17, 1941,
Eoward, C. ., Kendleton, Texas, lMarch 7, 1941,
Howze, Frs. J. E., sustin, Texes, June 15, 1942,
Jackson, C. G., Houston, Texus, December 18, 1942.
Mewberry, Ffarrer, Omaha, Nebrsasks, July 15, 1942.
Pollurd, J. K., Bcuston, Texeas, March 26, 1942;
June 25, 194Z,
Posey, liiss Cora, «r.!unghton, Texzs, July 9, 1942.

RN, §YhET r YORT R RN hER Fe e FRortity- 25,
2 1942.
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Vanderhider, Ches., Rosenberg, Texas, July 20,
194z,
Zich, Chus. 7., Needviile, Texzs, June 20, 1941,

VI. Intcrviews of lis:z Lee Fesbitt with:

Allvright, lras. Keuae, Hosenberg, Texus, Febru-
ary 25, 1942,

Saker, kr. and Xrs, George C., Richmond, Texes,
YMarch 3, 1942; .august 13, lu4:,

Bell, Mrs. Irank, Richuoné, Texys, Xarch 8, 1942,

Burns, liss I, A., Susar land, Texas, larch 9,
1342,

Bysars, Thcmas w., Jolwubus, Texazs, August 31,
1937,

Catron, Mr, «nd Mrs, Joe, Rosenberg, Texas, April
3, 1v<z,

Chupik, TFrank R., Rosenberg, Texas, April 3,

lg4z,
Davis, Mrs, Rezchel, Richmond, Texas, July 27,
1942,

Darst, liomer, Richmohd, Texas, January 10, 1942,

Parmer, J. R., xichwcnd, Texus, Larch O, 1942,

Fenn, F, K. O,, Richmond, Texas, June 3, 1938;
June 10, 1938; June 26, 19365,

Feris, Miss Laviaisa, Rlchmond, Texas, June 6,
1945,

Georce, A, 7., Richmond, Texas, July 7, 1942,

Goss, . ., 440 ilawthorve Street, Houston, Texas,
auwgust 7, 1942,

Griffin, L. H., Ro0scanberg, Texas, February 25,
1942,

Guenther, Z, C., 3ugu> Lund, Texus, July 17, 1941,

Hurper, kiss Tillie, Richwond, Texss, June 15,
1942,

Harris, Dr. R. D., Fulsheur, Texas, Januury 15,
1v4l.,

Eeard, i&». and Yrs., Roseuberg, Texas, February
25, 1942,

FejJl, Jcseph, Rosenberg, Texus, June 3, 194k,

Hinson, lrs. iie E., Richizond, Tezas, Tebruury 6,
1042,

Heclmes, ¥rs. annie, ichuond, Texas, June 10,
1942,

Hubvard, F. ., Rlchmond, Texus, Lay 20, 1942,

Johnson, B. L., fosenberg, Tex=s, rebruary 25,
1942,

Junker, Mr, ané Mrs, J. L., Rosenberg, Texas,
ay 12, 194c%.
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Kirkpetrick, Dr. 7. He, 3ugur Land, Texuas, Janu-
sry 20, 1942,

Law, Joe, hocenberg, Texes, Februery 25, 19842,

Yein, R. . errer, lozenberg, Texas, May 3, 1939.

Yenaker, rs. H. P., Pulshe:r, Texas, July 5,
164%,

"{ller, Chus, H., Rosenberg, Tcxas, lLay 3, 1939.

Mitchell, lMrs. Kedron G., Richmond, Texas, July
19, 13542,

ilons, Mise 3tells, Rosenberg, Texas, Februery
25, 1942,

Yorrisoa, ¥rs, Ivy lloore, Richmond, Texas, June
10, 194z,

Myers, Clem, Richmond, Texas, June 10, 1942,

Myers, 4. K., Richmond, Texzas, June 10, 1942,

Vewton, £, ¥,, Rlchmond, Texais, June 10, 1942,

Parrott, “r. and Xrs. &, E,, Hoscnberg, Texus,
April 3, 1942,

Patterson, %arl, 3Sugar land, Texas, March 9,
1942,

Paarscn, D. R,, Richmond, Texus, June 26, 1938,

Petter, Richard, Rosenberg, Texas, April 3, 1942,

Randall, )rs. Cerl, Richmond, Texas, Msy 15,
1241,

Risinger, Xias lena Nee, Rosenberg, Texas, April
3, 1942,

fude, R2ymond, SKcoenberg, Texss, spril &5, 1942,

Rogs, ii. B., Rosenberg, Texee, Febru:ry 25, 1942,

Ryba, ¥rs. Allle, Rosenberg, Texzs, February 25,
1942,

3ager, lrs, lsry, Orchzrd, Texss, Septeuber 13,

933,

Sohawe, \r, and Mrs, T, -i,, Rosenberg, Texes,
July 20, 1941; .april 3, 1942,

=

3chendel, ¥re. », J., Rogendbsrg, Texas, April 3,
194z,

Scherer, Lirs. ¥. C.,, Rosenberg, Texas, July 20,
13941,

3chulze, i'rs, Mattye, Jichwmonéd, Texzs, December
30, 1941.

Jeydler, Churlie, lcscenberg, Texes, February 25,
194z,

Shannon, ir. and ¥rs. ¥. ¥X,, Richrnd, Texas, June
15, 1941; July 19, 18i23; Zecember 29, 194Z2.

Shultz, Yrs. l. 0., loseaberg, Texzs, February 25,
1942,

Stinnett, W. H., Jugor land, Texus, March 9, 1942,

Tyllacka, Jerome, Hosenberg, Texzs, kay 3, 1939.

vilt, J. R., Rosenterg, Texus, May 3, 1939.
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Voskanp, louis, Cclumbus, Texes, liay 20, 1942,

“leddell, J. K., losenberg, Texus, September 13,
1959,

J{inner, Mrs. Vance, Richmord, Texas, December £9,
1941,





